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1 EXAMINER JONES: Let's go back on the 

2 record t h i s afternoon. We have three cases l e f t on the 

3 docket. Let's c a l l three cases and commingle the cases. 

4 Let's c a l l Case Number 14507, a p p l i c a t i o n of Cimarex 

5 Energy Company f o r a non-standard o i l spacing and 

6 p r o r a t i o n u n i t and compulsory p o o l i n g , Chaves County, 

7 New Mexico. 

8 Let me c a l l a l l three of them. Let's c a l l 

9 Case 14508, a p p l i c a t i o n of Cimarex Energy Company f o r a 

10 non-standard o i l spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t and 

11 compulsory p o o l i n g , Chaves County, New Mexico; and Case 

12 14500, a p p l i c a t i o n of COG Operating, LLC, f o r designation 

13 of a non-standard spacing u n i t and f o r compulsory 

14 p o o l i n g , Chaves County, New Mexico. 

15 C a l l f o r appearances. 

16 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l , 

17 Montgomery & Andrews, Santa Fe, appearing on behalf of 

18 COG Operating, LLC, and we have three witnesses t h i s 

19 afternoon. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good afternoon, 

21 Mr. Examiners. Ocean Munds-Dry, w i t h the law f i r m of 

22 Holland & Hart, LLP, here rep r e s e n t i n g Chesapeake 

23 Operating, LLC, t h i s afternoon. We have two witnesses. 

24 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of 

2 5 Santa Fe, re p r e s e n t i n g Cimarex. I have three witnesses. 
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1 EXAMINER JONES: W i l l a l l e i g h t 

2 witnesses please stand and s t a t e your names f o r the 

3 record, please. 

4 MR. TRESNER: Hayden Tresner. 

5 MR. LAUTENSCHLEGER: Jason Lautenschleger. 

6 MR. WORTHINGTON: Ralph Worthington. 

7 MR. ZERKLE: J u s t i n Zerkle. 

8 MR. MARTIN: Robert M a r t i n . 

9 MS. SPRADLIN: Jan Sp r a d l i n . 

10 MS. SLATON: Barbara Slaton. 

11 MR. GAWLOSKI: Ted Gawloski. 

12 (Eight witnesses were sworn.) 

13 EXAMINER JONES: We've got three cases, 

14 and we're combining those cases. Maybe w e ' l l s t a r t w i t h 

15 Att o r n e y Scott H a l l . Do you have a synopsis of what 

16 you're going t o --

17 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Jim, do you have any 

18 o b j e c t i o n t o comingling? 

19 MR. BRUCE: No. 

2 0 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiners, t h i s case, we 

21 t h i n k , i s f a i r l y simple, two competing compulsory p o o l i n g 

22 cases. Cimarex has f i l e d a p p l i c a t i o n s t o e s t a b l i s h f o u r 

23 non-standard spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t s c o n s i s t i n g of 

24 f o u r contiguous 4 0-acre t r a c t s f o r f o u r w e l l s , each i n a 

25 stand-up c o n f i g u r a t i o n . 
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1 COG, i n t h e i r case, 14500, i s proposing 

2 lay-down c o n f i g u r a t i o n f o r t h e i r w e l l c o n s i s t s i n g of the 

3 south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of Section 3, Township 15 South, 

4 31 East. 

5 The a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r a permit t o d r i l l , the 

6 p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s , are i n obvious c o n f l i c t . We don't 

7 b e l i e v e t h a t the p o o l i n g issues themselves are 

8 n e c e s s a r i l y complex, but there i s a dispute between the 

9 p a r t i e s about the proper development of Section 3. So 

10 g r a n t i n g one p a r t y ' s a p p l i c a t i o n n e c e s s a r i l y e n t a i l s 

11 denying the others. 

12 There are some n o t i c e issues among the p a r t i e s 

13 we w i l l apprise you of through the course of the hearing, 

14 but we thought i t would be appropriate t o present t o you 

15 p r i m a r i l y the geologic, the fundamentals of the 

16 compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s , and then we w i l l ask 

17 t h a t the record be he l d open f o r an a d d i t i o n a l p e r i o d so 

18 t h a t the p a r t i e s may p u b l i s h proper n o t i c e and send 

19 a d d i t i o n a l w e l l proposals t o a d d i t i o n a l unjoined p a r t i e s 

2 0 whose i d e n t i t i e s were only r e c e n t l y discovered. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, would you 

22 l i k e t o give an opening statement now? 

23 MR. BRUCE: Just very b r i e f l y . Cimarex 

24 does have f o u r w e l l proposals i n t h i s s e c t i o n , but we're 

2 5 o n l y here today f o r two of them. I t h i n k Scott s a i d 
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1 f o u r . I t h i n k the only company t h a t has an APD i s COG. 

2 They f i l e d q u i t e some time ago f o r an APD, and, 

3 t h e r e f o r e , pursuant t o D i v i s i o n p o l i c y , Cimarex could not 

4 o b t a i n APDs. They have staked t h e i r w e l l s , but they have 

5 not f i l e d f o r APDs. 

6 And I agree w i t h Scott t h a t there needs t o be 

7 a continuance of t h i s matter, although we t h i n k t h a t ' s 

8 minor, because the p a r t i e s who w i l l be d r i l l i n g the w e l l 

9 are a l l here today. 

10 And, yeah, there w i l l be -- we t h i n k t h i s 

11 i s n ' t -- we also b e l i e v e t h i s i s not too complicated. We 

12 w i l l present geology and engineering, as w e l l as land 

13 testimony, and w e ' l l be -- I t h i n k we would l i k e t o be 

14 f a i r l y b r i e f , I know, i n our p r e s e n t a t i o n and continue 

15 the case. I don't t h i n k there w i l l be need f o r 

16 a d d i t i o n a l witnesses coming i n at some p o i n t i n the 

17 f u t u r e . We t h i n k e v e r y t h i n g can be handled by a f f i d a v i t 

18 subsequent t o t h i s . 

19 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, since 

20 you don't have an a p p l i c a t i o n , what's your p o s i t i o n i n 

21 t h i s case? 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Why are we here? 

23 EXAMINER FESMIRE: That's the question I'm 

24 t r y i n g t o ask. 

25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: C h e s a p e a k e i s h e r e b e c a u s e 
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1 Cimarex i s seeking t o pool Chesapeake i n t h e i r Boxer 3 

2 Fee Number 3 w e l l . Chesapeake opposes t h a t a p p l i c a t i o n . 

3 I n f a c t , they have already j o i n e d i n the w e l l proposed by 

4 COG. So we are here t o not only support COG's 

5 a p p l i c a t i o n , but oppose t o Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n . 

6 EX7AMINER FESMIRE: So you're b a s i c a l l y 

7 a l l y i n g w i t h Mr. H a l l ' s c l i e n t ? 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, s i r . 

9 EXAMINER FESMIRE: What w e ' l l do i s go 

10 ahead and l e t Mr. H a l l present h i s case, l e t you present 

11 your a d d i t i o n a l case, and l e t Mr. Bruce present h i s case, 

12 and then give you a l l a break. 

13 MR. HALL: I f I may approach and 

14 d i s t r i b u t e e x h i b i t s ? We'll ask Ms. Sp r a d l i n t o come t o 

15 the stand. 

16 JAN SPRADLIN 

17 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

18 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. HALL: 

20 Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 

21 A. Jan S p r a d l i n . 

22 Q. Ms. Sp r a d l i n , where do you l i v e and by whom 

23 are you employed? 

24 A. Midland, Texas. I'm employed by COG 

25 Operating, LLC. 
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1 Q. What do you do f o r them? 

2 A. I'm a senior landman. 

3 Q. You have p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

4 D i v i s i o n and the Commission and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as a 

5 petroleum landman e s t a b l i s h e d as a matter of record; i s 

6 t h a t correct? 

7 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

8 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d 

9 i n these cases and the lands t h a t are the subject of the 

10 a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, we would o f f e r 

13 Ms. Sp r a d l i n as an expert petroleum landman. 

14 EXAMINER JONES: So q u a l i f i e d . 

15 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I f you would, please, give the 

16 Hearing Examiner a b r i e f synopsis of what COG i s 

17 proposing by i t s a p p l i c a t i o n . 

18 A. We're seeking an order c o n s o l i d a t i n g f o u r 

19 40-acre spacing u n i t s i n t o a south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f 

20 p r o r a t i o n u n i t d e s i g n a t i n g those consolidated u n i t s as a 

21 160 non-standard u n i t t o pool i n the lower Abo/Wolfcamp 

22 Formation. 

23 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 1. What does t h a t show 

24 us? 

25 A. That i s our p e r m i t . 
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1 Q. And f o r the record, l e t ' s s t a t e the lands 

2 you're seeking t o designate as a non-standard u n i t . 

3 A. Yes, i t i s . 

4 Q. Could you s t a t e those lands, please? 

5 A. The south h a l f of the south h a l f of Section 3, 

6 15 South, 31 East. 

7 Q. I s E x h i b i t 1 Concho's APD f o r the well? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. I f we look at the second and t h i r d pages of 

10 E x h i b i t 1, does i t show us the surface and bottomhole 

11 loc a t i o n s ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Could you i n d i c a t e those f o r the record? 

14 A. We have standard l o c a t i o n s 330, 660 f o r 

15 bottomhole l o c a t i o n , and the surface i s 430, 660. Our 

16 p r o j e c t area i s w i t h i n the pro d u c t i o n r u l e s f o r producing 

17 out of the lower Wolfcamp. 

18 Q. And i s t h i s a Wildcat Wolfcamp o i l pool f o r 

19 t h i s area? 

20 A. Yeah, i t i s . 

21 Q. I n each of the 40-acre t r a c t s you are 

22 desi g n a t i n g as your non-standard u n i t f o r your d r i l l i n g 

23 p r o j e c t , does COG have the r i g h t t o d r i l l i n each of 

24 those t r a c t s ? 

25 A. Yes, we do. 
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1 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 2, please. Would you 

2 t e l l us what t h a t shows? 

3 A. I t i n d i c a t e s the e n t i r e t y of the south h a l f of 

4 Section 3, 15 South, 31 East, i n the southwest quarter. 

5 COG and Chesapeake own 100 percent of t h a t t r a c t , 50-50 

6 each. They agreed t o j o i n w i t h us i n d r i l l i n g of the 

7 l o c a t i o n s . I n the west h a l f of the southeast quarter, 

8 Chesapeake owns a 12-and-a-half percent, and Pure Energy, 

9 an unleased mineral i n t e r e s t , has j o i n e d us, agreed t o 

10 j o i n us, and signed an ope r a t i n g agreement f o r t h e i r 

11 i n t e r e s t under t h a t t r a c t . 

12 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Could you say t h a t 

13 again. Who? 

14 THE WITNESS: You've got Thomas --we have 

15 the r i g h t under c o n t r a c t f o r Chesapeake and Pure Energy 

16 f o r the west h a l f of the southeast qua r t e r . The other 

17 owners l i s t e d there are Thomas Jennings, Chisos, Blanco 

18 and F i r s t Roswell. And they were n o t i c e d , but they have 

19 not -- Chisos i s j o i n i n g Cimarex, and we have not heard 

20 from Blanco, F i r s t Roswell or Thomas Jennings. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I'm a l i t t l e confused 

22 here. Chesapeake has j o i n e d you i n t h a t h a l f - q u a r t e r 

23 section? 

24 THE WITNESS: Yes. I n the west h a l f o f 

25 the southeast qua r t e r , Chesapeake owns 12-and-a-ha l f 
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1 percent i n t e r e s t . 

2 EXAMINER FESMIRE: And they j o i n e d you 

3 there? 

4 THE WITNESS: Yes. So has Pure Energy, 

5 who owns a q u a r t e r . 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. 

7 THE WITNESS: Then i n the east h a l f of the 

8 southeast, COG owns 29 -- b a s i c a l l y , 29.44 i n t e r e s t from 

9 fee leases we have acquired. We have acquired by farmout 

10 OXY's i n t e r e s t , which i s 31.8. And we have -- i t came t o 

11 l i g h t t h a t New Mexico Boys and G i r l s Ranch Foundation was 

12 unleased, and we acquired a lease from them yesterday. 

13 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) For c l a r i f i c a t i o n , the 

14 ownership you're showing, e v e r y t h i n g h i g h l i g h t e d i n 

15 yellow i s committed t o Concho? 

16 A. COG. 

17 Q. And the ownership i s also r e f l e c t e d f o r the 

18 e n t i r e south h a l f t h e r e ; correct? 

19 A. Correct. 

2 0 Q. I s ownership c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the south 

21 h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of the u n i t you're proposing? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Could you t e l l the Examiner, do you know how 

24 long COG held i t s i n t e r e s t i n the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f ? 

25 A. We acquired the lease from Heyco i n J u l y . I 
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1 t h i n k i t was J u l y of 2007. 

2 Q. When, approximately, d i d COG begin i t s 

3 geologic e v a l u a t i o n of the acreage? 

4 A. When we bought the acreage. 

5 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 3. What does E x h i b i t 3 

6 show us? 

7 A. I t gives you a t i m e l i n e f o r the development 

8 and how we s t a r t e d t h i s p r o j e c t a f t e r we acquired the 

9 Heyco acreage. 

10 Q. Could you run through those f o r the record, 

11 please? 

12 A. We d i d ownership r e p o r t s from Continental 

13 Land. 

14 Q. When was that ? 

15 A. May of 2007. Then we acquired the leases i n 

16 Ju l y . I n November of 2007, we received proposals from 

17 Chesapeake on the Pegasus Well, which was i n the south 

18 h a l f of Section 3. A f t e r t h a t , we d i d have hearings on 

19 t h a t . We came t o agreements, and we both operate j o i n t l y 

2 0 i n d i f f e r e n t areas w i t h i n --• which i s covered by a BLM 

21 lease. 

22 We've continued t o develop t h a t area. We 

23 entered i n t o the o p e r a t i n g agreement i n November of 2008. 

24 We submitted a permit f o r these p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s . The 

25 south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f was submitted t o the BLM i n March 
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1 of 2009. 

2 We had a surface -- t h i s i s a s p l i t e s t a t e . 

3 The southwest q u a r t e r i s s p l i t e s t a t e . We have an 

4 agreement w i t h the surface owner, but over t h i s p e r i o d of 

5 time, he has asked us t o amend i t f o r -- increase what we 

6 were paying him over the p e r i o d . So we entered i n , and 

7 i t was f i n a l i z e d -- the second amendment t o the n o t i c e of 

8 memorandum and what we would be paying him -- i n January 

9 of 2010. 

10 I n February, the APD was approved by the BLM 

11 and, f i v e days l a t e r , the OCD. And we've been d r i l l i n g 

12 w e l l s . We've d r i l l e d -- I b e l i e v e Chesapeake has d r i l l e d 

13 several w e l l s . We're developing what we c a l l the Taurus 

14 area, the Hercules, Andromeda. Wells have been d r i l l e d 

15 out there. Most of them have been very good. We've been 

16 successful, i n c l u d i n g Cimarex's w e l l s . We n o t i c e d t h a t 

17 on A p r i l 4 th, Marshall P&A'd the f i r s t w e l l i n t h i s play. 

18 Q. A p r i l 4 t h of t h i s year? 

19 A. Right. 

2 0 Q. Where was t h a t as well? 

21 A. That w e l l i s i n Section 35, 14 South, 30 East. 

22 Q. I s t h a t l o c a t e d immediately t o the n o r t h of 

23 Section 3? 

24 A. I t ' s a l i t t l e n o r t h e a s t . I have t o look a t my 

2 5 map. 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: Why d i d they plug t h a t 

2 well? Was i t depleted? 

3 THE WITNESS: I t was the only -- I ' l l l e t 

4 the g e o l o g i s t and engineers t a l k t o you, but i t was dry. 

5 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) A f t e r t h a t w e l l was plugged, 

6 what happened next? 

7 A. I received, on A p r i l 9th, f o u r Boxer Well 

8 proposals from Cimarex. 

9 Q. Explain t o the Hearing Examiner, when you say, 

10 "the f o u r Boxer Wells," where are they located? What's 

11 t h e i r u n i t c o n f i g u r a t i o n ? 

12 A. They were going from the n o r t h t o the south. j 

13 Q. They're a l l i n Section 3? 

14 A. They're a l l i n Section 3. And we received 

15 f o u r , and we d i d n ' t own any acreage i n one of the -- the 

16 west h a l f of the east h a l f . We have no working i n t e r e s t 

17 i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r . t r a c t . Their proposal included an AFE 

18 and t h a t an op e r a t i n g agreement would be sent under 

19 separate cover, which we d i d n ' t receive u n t i l June. 

20 We, i n t u r n , sent out a w e l l proposal on the 

21 south h a l f of the south h a l f . And the t r a c k i n g sheet on 

22 those n o t i c e s and who was n o t i c e d i s an attachment t o 

23 t h i s e x h i b i t . 

24 We then contacted the Hinkle Law Firm i n 

25 Roswell t o prepare a t i t l e o p i n i o n . I n May, the Hinkle 
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law f i r m c o n f l i c t e d out because both Cimarex and Concho 

2 were t h e i r c l i e n t s . Hayden and I attempted t o work out 

3 something, which was not approved by h i s management. 

4 Q. For the record, who i s Hayden? 

5 A. Hayden Tresner i s the landman f o r Cimarex. 

6 So as a r e s u l t , we both had t o go get separate 

7 counsel, and t h a t ' s when I contacted J e f f Bowman t o 

8 prepare us a d r i l l i n g t i t l e o p i n i o n . And on J u l y 17th, I 

9 received a p r e l i m i n a r y t i t l e r e p o r t , i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

10 there were m u l t i p l e unleased mineral owners and 

11 discrepancy i n working i n t e r e s t ownership, and have since 

12 contacted and g o t t e n commitments from some of those 

13 people. 

14 Q. Let me walk you back a l i t t l e b i t . How d i d 

15 COG go about determining the surface and bottomhole 

16 l o c a t i o n f o r t h i s w e l l , the Boxer Well -- the Leo. I'm 

17 s o r r y . 

18 A. How d i d we determine i t ? By geology. 

19 Q. How d i d you l o c a t e the surface and bottomhole 

20 l o c a t i o n s ? 

21 A. By the r u l e s set out by the Commission, t h a t 

22 we needed t o be 43 0 o f f i n our o f f s e t . 

23 Q. Are both the surface and bottomhole l o c a t i o n s | 

24 orthodox l o c a t i o n s ? 

25 A. Yes, they are, and our setbacks are, also, 
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1 w i t h i n the p r o j e c t area. 

2 Q. I n the course of e s t a b l i s h i n g the surface 

3 l o c a t i o n , d i d you confer w i t h the surface occupant, the 

4 rancher? 

5 A. Yes, we d i d . Mr. Medlin was there. He 

6 approved our rig h t - o f - w a y s , the various ways i n t h a t we 

7 were going t o be coming i n and using the surface. 

8 Q. Was there a s i t e v i s i t by a Concho landman 

9 w i t h Mr. Medlin? 

10 A. Noel Olivas i s the landman t h a t was handling 

11 our surface use agreements now. 

12 Q. And was i t pursuant t o t h a t process whereby 

13 you conferred w i t h the surface owner t h a t l e d t o the 

14 BLM's approval of your APD? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . They would not approve i t 

16 u n t i l Mr. Medlin had signed o f f on every t h i n g . 

17 Q. Let me ask you, i s the east/west o r i e n t a t i o n 

18 t h a t COG i s proposing f o r i t s Leo 3 w e l l consistent w i t h 

19 the e s t a b l i s h e d p r e v a i l i n g development p a t t e r n i n t h i s 

2 0 area? 

21 A. Yes, i t i s . 

22 Q. Look back t o E x h i b i t 2, j u s t b r i e f l y . Can you 

23 t e l l the Hear ing Examiner what i s COG's working i n t e r e s t 

24 c o n t r o l i n the e n t i r e non-standard u n i t 160 acres? 

25 A. We have 127 acres out o f the 160 acres i n our 
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1 c o n t r o l . 

2 Q. Roughly, 80 percent? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Are you asking the D i v i s i o n t o pool the 

5 unjoined working i n t e r e s t owners and mineral i n t e r e s t 

6 owners? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. And there are s t i l l some remaining unleased 

9 mineral i n t e r e s t owners? 

10 A. There are. And u n n o t i f i e d mineral i n t e r e s t 

11 owners. 

12 Q. I s COG seeking the i m p o s i t i o n of a 200 percent 

13 r i s k p e n a l t y against the unjoined i n t e r e s t s ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And COG i s asking t o be designated operator of 

16 the Leo well? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. I n your opinion, has COG made a g o o d - f a i t h 

19 e f f o r t t o n e g o t i a t e and o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y 

20 p a r t i c i p a t i o n from the unleased mineral i n t e r e s t owners 

21 or the working i n t e r e s t owners t h a t you know of? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. W i l l COG r e q u i r e a d d i t i o n a l time t o make w e l l 

24 proposals or o b t a i n leases from the i n t e r e s t owners whose 

25 i d e n t i t y you r e c e n t l y discovered? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Let's t u r n t o what we've marked as E x h i b i t 4. 

3 What I ' d l i k e you t o do i s i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t f o r us 

4 and give us a summary of a l l of your e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n 

5 v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of a l l the i n t e r e s t owners i n 

6 your south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f u n i t . 

7 A. Okay. We sent out those proposal l e t t e r s 

8 asking people t o e i t h e r -- depending on what type of 

9 i n t e r e s t they have --

10 Q. Let me ask you t h i s way: I s E x h i b i t 4 a 

11 c o m p i l a t i o n of your w e l l proposal l e t t e r s t h a t went out 

12 t o a l l of the i n t e r e s t owners you're seeking t o pool? 

13 A. Known at t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time, based on the 

14 i n f o r m a t i o n . There i s some p a r t i e s t h a t were not 

15 n o t i f i e d p r o p e r l y . 

16 Q. I'm s o r r y . Go ahead and walk us through the 

17 h i s t o r y of t h a t . 

18 A. Of the --

19 Q. Of your w e l l proposal. 

2 0 A. We always send Fed Ex. We hand-delivered t o 

21 Cimarex because they're i n town. And i t gives you a 

22 choice of j o i n i n g . We t e l l where our w e l l i s going t o 

23 be, the l o c a t i o n . We provide an AFE, and we also 

24 f u r n i s h , a t the time we send the proposals, an 

25 executeable o p e r a t i n g agreement, and ask people t o s e l l 
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1 t o us, j o i n us, you know, give us a lease. 

2 Some of the l e t t e r s are a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t , 

3 depending whether i t 1 s a mineral i n t e r e s t or i f people 

4 have acquired leases from other p a r t i e s . 

5 Q. I f we walk through the contents of E x h i b i t 4, 

6 does i t c o n s i s t of an A p r i l 22, 2010, w e l l proposal 

7 l e t t e r sent t o Cimarex? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Underneath t h a t , i s there a w e l l proposal of 

10 t h a t same day t h a t went t o Chisos Limited? 

11 A. Correct. And one t o the Blanco Company, which 

12 was returned, and we Fed Ex'ed i t back out again. They 

13 d i d n ' t have t h e i r c u r r e n t address on the s t a t e s i t e . We 

14 sent one t o Thomas Jennings. We sent one t o F i r s t 

15 Roswell Company. 

16 Q. Were you successful i n o b t a i n i n g the 

17 commitment of those i n t e r e s t s t o your w e l l proposal? 

18 A. Unless i t went t o Chesapeake, but I don't --

19 yes. Pure Energy has j o i n e d , and Chesapeake j o i n e d i n 

20 the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l . 

21 Q. So we're c l e a r , a l l the i n t e r e s t owners who 

22 received the l e t t e r s t h a t comprise E x h i b i t 4 d i d not 

23 e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the well? 

24 A. I never d i d hear back from them. 

25 Q. And l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t 5 q u i c k l y . What i s 
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1 E x h i b i t 5? 

2 A. Our AFE f o r the Leo 3 Fed Com 1. 

3 Q. Is t h i s the AFE t h a t went out w i t h each of 

4 your w e l l proposals? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. And t u r n t o E x h i b i t 6. What i s tha t ? 

7 A. That's the f r o n t page of our o p e r a t i n g 

8 agreement showing what acreage w i l l be covered under t h i s 

9 OA and also what w e l l i s being proposed on page 5. 

10 Q. And so i s E x h i b i t 6 an excerpt from the 

11 op e r a t i n g agreement you sent w i t h your w e l l proposals? j 

12 A. Yes, i t i s . 

13 Q. Now, l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t 7. Would you 

14 i d e n t i f y t h a t , please? 

15 A. This i s a p r e l i m i n a r y t i t l e r e p o r t from my 

16 at t o r n e y . J e f f Bowman, which was sent Saturday evening, 

17 l a t e -- I d i d n ' t receive i t u n t i l Monday -- s e t t i n g f o r t h 

18 the t i t l e i n the south h a l f of Section 3. 

19 W i t h i n t h i s t i t l e there are several p a r t i e s 

20 t h a t were t o t a l l y unknown t o us through even our 

21 t a k e - o f f s t h a t we had done. And also some of the 

22 ownership was very d i f f e r e n t from the standpoint i t names 

23 OXY as an owner. I t also had unleased mineral owners 

24 t h a t we were not -- had not seen before. 

25 Q. Look at page 2 of t h a t e x h i b i t . Does t h a t 
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1 summarize the leasehold ownership i n the southeast 

2 qu a r t e r of Section 3? 

3 A. Yes, as f a r as I know. And I d i d n ' t know 

4 Penroc. I had never seen anything on Penroc i n t h i s 

5 area. 

6 Q. And you received t h i s r e p o r t when? 

7 A. I t was sent Saturday evening, and I received 

8 i t on Monday. 

9 Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f we look at subparagraph 

10 B ( l ) ( a ) , i t r e f l e c t s an i n t e r e s t f o r OXY NM LP? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Do we know where those i n t e r e s t s came from? 

13 A. From the Bold merger, a name change t h a t OXY 

14 acquired. 

15 Q. And the l a s t e n t r y under t h a t category B ( l ) ( a ) 

16 shows unleased --

17 A. Unleased, but 19 percent of t h a t , which i s the 

18 New Mexico Boys Ranch, I have under lease now. 

19 Q. When d i d you get t h a t lease? 

20 A. I t was e f f e c t i v e J u l y 21st, and I have a 

21 commitment from OXY f o r a farmout. 

22 Q. And can you t e l l us who the remaining unleased 

23 mineral i n t e r e s t owners --

24 A. The person's name i s A.D. Jones and P a t r i c i a 

25 A. Jones. I found out through my at t o r n e y t h a t they l i v e 
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1 i n Roswell -- which they w i l l begin contacting. 

2 Q. W i l l i t be necessary t o send them a w e l l 

3 proposal l e t t e r ? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. I n your op i n i o n , Ms. Spr a d l i n , has COG acted 

6 d i l i g e n t l y t o develop the reserves t h a t i t owns i n the 

7 south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of Section 3? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. And has Cimarex proposed a w e l l u n i t t h a t i s 

10 i n c o n f l i c t w i t h yours? 

11 A. Correct. 

12 Q. I n your op i n i o n , would the g r a n t i n g of COG's 

13 a p p l i c a t i o n and the d e n i a l of the two Cimarex 

14 a p p l i c a t i o n s be i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation, the 

15 pr e v e n t i o n of waste, and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

16 r i g h t s ? 

17 A. Yes, I be l i e v e so, i n my opinion. 

18 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 prepared by you or 

19 at your d i r e c t i o n ? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Examiner, we 

22 move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 7, and I pass 

23 the witness. 

24 EXAMINER JONES: Any objection? 

2 5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No. 
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1 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

2 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 w i l l 

3 be admitted. 

4 (COG E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 were admitted.) 

5 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, do you 

6 have any questions of t h i s witness? 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I don't have any questions 

8 of Ms. Sp r a d l i n . 

9 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Jim? 

10 MR. BRUCE: Just a few. 

11 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. BRUCE: 

13 Q. Ms. Spr a d l i n , l o o k i n g a t your E x h i b i t 1, the 

14 APD, the few pages from the f e d e r a l APD, I'm guessing 

15 there's about 50 a d d i t i o n a l pages? 

16 A. Yes. I t ' s j u s t a p o r t i o n of i t . 

17 Q. The surveyor c e r t i f i c a t e was September 9th, 

18 2007. I s t h i s the f i r s t APD t h a t was f i l e d on t h i s 

19 acreage? 

20 A. Yes. I t was f i l e d i n -- i t was submitted 

21 March 26th, but we d i d a l l our surveying back i n 2007, 

22 when we were doing the Chesapeake -- a l l i n t h a t . But 

23 the permit was not a c t u a l l y sent f o r p e r m i t t i n g , but we 

24 d i d a l o t of work w i t h the surface owner. Because 

25 Mr. Medlin owns i n t h a t e n t i r e area. I t i s s p l i t e s t a t e . 
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1 His Section 3 was i n our o r i g i n a l surface use agreement, 

2 so we d i d p i c k l o c a t i o n s . 

3 But I'm going by t h a t the permit was not sent 

4 i n u n t i l March, when i t was submitted. I couldn't t e l l 

5 you i f there was another one or not. 

6 Q. I j u s t want t o be c l e a r . You sent t o the 

7 Blanco Company. Are you t e l l i n g me t h a t the one sent t o 

8 Ruidoso came back? 

9 A. There was one t h a t was sent back. 

10 Q. Because i t ' s c u r r e n t l y i n Albuquerque now; 

11 r i g h t ? 

12 A. I would have t o -- where i s t h a t t r a c k i n g 

13 sheet? Yes. I t came back, and then i t went t o 

14 Albuquerque. 

15 Q. And your JOA proposes your p a r t i c u l a r w e l l i n 

16 the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f , but t h i s JOA proposed t o 

17 Cimarex and the others covers the e n t i r e south h a l f ; 

18 correct? 

19 A. Right. Because the ownership was common 

2 0 between the two w e l l s , I t r i e d t o do op e r a t i n g agreements 

21 where you're not having t o come back on a w e l l - b y - w e l l 

22 basis i f the ownership i s common. 

23 Q. Looking at your E x h i b i t 7, I wasn't q u i t e 

24 c l e a r on who you sa i d COG s t i l l needs t o give n o t i c e t o . 

25 A. We have not given n o t i c e t o Merch. Penroc, we 
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1 d i d not n o t i f y . We d i d not n o t i f y the unleased owner, 

2 the A.D. Jones, by v i r t u e of c a l l i n g OXY and g e t t i n g a 

3 commitment. And, also, the unleased i n t e r e s t w i t h 

4 New Mexico Boys Ranch, those people don't -- I have 

5 leases w i t h them. 

6 Q. T i t l e i n t h i s fee land i n Southeast New Mexico 

7 i s g e t t i n g i n c r e a s i n g l y d i f f i c u l t , i s n ' t i t ? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. So you have t o do two p a r t i e s a t t h i s point? 

10 A. Yes, I do. 

11 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

12 Mr. Examiner. 

13 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

14 EXAMINER JONES: Can you r e s t a t e your 

15 r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Chesapeake i n t h i s area? Do you have a 

16 JOA w i t h them i n t h i s area f o r developing these 

17 h o r i z o n t a l wells? 

18 THE WITNESS: We have a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

19 agreement t h a t covers the m a j o r i t y of t h i s s p e c i f i c lease 

20 i n t h i s area. The south h a l f of Section 3 was not 

21 included i n t h a t , and we entered i n t o a separate OA f o r 

22 j u s t the south h a l f . 

23 EXAMINER JONES: That's a l l . 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

25 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 
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1 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

2 MR. BRUCE: Nothing. 

3 MR. HALL: Thank you, Ms. Sp r a d l i n . 

4 At t h i s time we would c a l l Ted Gawloski t o the 

5 stand. 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Gawloski, you've 

7 been p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case; correct? 

8 MR. GAWLOSKI: Yes, s i r . 

9 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Take the witness stand. 

10 TED GAWLOSKI 

11 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

12 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. HALL: 

14 Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 

15 A. Ted Gawloski. 

16 Q. And where do you res i d e , and by whom are you 

17 employed? 

18 A. I l i v e i n Midland, Texas, and I work f o r COG 

19 or Concho Resources. I f you hear both of them, they're 

2 0 the same t h i n g . 

21 Q. How are you employed? 

22 A. I'm a senior g e o l o g i s t i n the E x p l o r a t i o n 

23 Group. 

24 Q. You t e s t i f i e d be fo re the D i v i s i o n and the 

25 Commission a number o f t imes and had your c r e d e n t i a l s 
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1 accepted as a matter of record as an expert petroleum 

2 geologist? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands i n the 

5 a p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t are the subject of t h i s hearing today? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Examiner, 

8 we'd o f f e r Mr. Gawloski as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

9 EXAMINER JONES: Any objection? 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

11 MR. BRUCE: No. 

12 EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Gawloski i s q u a l i f i e d 

13 as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

14 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Gawloski, you have some 

15 experience i n the lower Abo/Wolfcamp p l a y t h a t we're 

16 t a l k i n g about here today? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. Why don't you give us an overview of your 

19 experience? 

20 A. I've been working the pl a y ever since the 

21 beginning of -- over two years, e x c l u s i v e l y . And I've 

22 been the g e o l o g i s t responsible f o r the recommendation of 

23 17 w e l l s , operated w e l l s , and another 12 non-operated 

24 w e l l s . And we had three w e l l s approved t o d r i l l t h i s 

25 year. 
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1 Q. Have you conducted a geologic i n v e s t i g a t i o n t o 

2 determine whether each of the 40-acre t r a c t s t h a t Concho 

3 proposes t o dedicate t o i t s lay-down non-standard u n i t 

4 are each prospective f o r production? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. What d i d you conclude? 

7 A. The COG l o c a t i o n s w i l l e f f e c t i v e l y d r a i n the 

8 r e s e r v o i r w i t h two w e l l s , as opposed t o fo u r w e l l s t h a t 

9 Cimarex has proposed. 

10 Q. And are each of the 40-acre t r a c t s i n the 

11 south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of Section 3 prospective f o r 

12 production? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Let's look at some of the e x h i b i t s you 

15 prepared t o discuss today. Let's look at E x h i b i t 9. I f 

16 you would i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

17 A. E x h i b i t 9, b a s i c a l l y , i t ' s a t a l l y sheet t h a t 

18 I keep of the play. There's some dynamics t o i t . Some 

19 people may have more w e l l s or less w e l l s . But I have 319 

20 t o t a l h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s p e r m i t t e d , d r i l l e d or completed so 

21 f a r . 77 have been completed, approximately. 308 of 

22 these w e l l s are o r i e n t e d east t o west or west t o east, 

23 and 11 are o r i e n t e d north/south or south/north. About 

24 96-and-a-half percent of the w e l l s are o r i e n t e d east/west 

25 or west/east. 
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1 Q. I m i s i d e n t i f i e d an e x h i b i t f o r you. Were you 

2 r e f e r r i n g t o E x h i b i t 8? 

3 A. This i s E x h i b i t 8 here. This i s the e x h i b i t I 

4 was r e f e r r i n g t o here. 

5 Q. My mistake. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 9. 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I n the play, there are 

7 only, b a s i c a l l y , two sets of north/south w e l l s i n Section 

8 18 and Section 3? 

9 THE WITNESS: This d i s p l a y s f o r a c e r t a i n 

10 township. There's many more l o c a t i o n s besides t h i s . 

11 This township has 95 l o c a t i o n s , and the remaining are i n 

12 d i f f e r e n t townships and ranges. 

13 This e x h i b i t here i s e s s e n t i a l l y the play map 

14 of the Township 15 South, 31 East, where the Leo Federal 

15 and the Boxer w e l l s are loca t e d . They're up i n Section 

16 3. I f you r e f e r t o the legend down here, the green w e l l s 

17 are Cimarex p e r m i t t e d l o c a t i o n s or stake l o c a t i o n s , and 

18 some of them haven't been p e r m i t t e d . 

19 Cimarex completed w e l l s are shown i n gray. 

2 0 The other completed h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s are shown i n black. 

21 COG p e r m i t t e d w e l l s are shown i n red t h a t haven't been 

22 d r i l l e d . Then the black w e l l s , again, are already 

23 completed w e l l s . The blue w e l l s are w e l l s staked by 

24 other companies t h a t have not been completed y e t . 

25 To date, I have 95 l o c a t i o n s i n the township, 
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1 87 o r i e n t e d i n the east t o west or west t o east. Cimarex 

2 had, i n my count, 61 l o c a t i o n s , w i t h 53 o r i e n t e d east t o 

3 west or west t o east, and e i g h t o r i e n t e d north/south, the 

4 f o u r Boxer w e l l s and the f o u r w e l l s i n Section 18. 

5 EXAMINER FESMIRE: As a g e o l o g i s t , do you 

6 have a theory as t o why the east/west o r i e n t e d w e l l s have 

7 been more successful than the north/south? 

8 THE WITNESS: B a s i c a l l y , the play s t a r t e d 

9 t h a t way when we d r i l l e d our i n i t i a l w e l l a couple of 

10 years ago. And subsequent t o t h a t , most -- almost every 

11 w e l l has been staked i n t h a t d i r e c t i o n . There's been 

12 some studies done, but they had c o n f l i c t i n g r e s u l t s as t o 

13 o r i e n t a t i o n . 

14 So most of the operators j u s t kept i t going 

15 the way i t was, because there's been a great t r a c k record 

16 i n t h i s p l a y . B a s i c a l l y , there's o n l y one w e l l d r i l l e d 

17 t h a t -- a l a t e r a l t h a t has been d r i l l e d t h a t ' s a c t u a l l y 

18 been plugged. 

19 There's been a couple others t h a t some p i l o t 

20 holes have been abandoned, but o n l y one w e l l -- t h i s 

21 Marshall Winston w e l l up here i n Section 35 i s the only 

22 one I'm aware of t h a t was d r i l l e d as a l a t e r a l and 

23 a c t u a l l y plugged. 

24 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Gawloski, l e t me ask you, 

25 i s Cimarex's proposal t o develop Section 3 w i t h stand-up 
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1 u n i t s advisable i n your opinion? 

2 A. No, i t ' s not. 

3 Q. Why not? 

4 A. Well, I can e x p l a i n w i t h the next e x h i b i t 
5 here. 

6 Q. A l l r i g h t . Turn t o E x h i b i t 10. Would you 

7 i d e n t i f y t h a t and e x p l a i n t h a t t o us? 

8 A. This i s an isopach of a dolomite pay zone i n 

9 the lower Abo pay i n t e r v a l . B a s i c a l l y , i t shows a t h i c k 

10 t h a t runs k i n d of d i a g o n a l l y and across Sections 17 and 

11 18, upwards, towards the southeast q u a r t e r of Section 3, 

12 where the Leo Federal l o c a t i o n s are, and back down t o the 

13 southwest t h e r e . 

14 I t also shows a pinch-out l i n e , b a s i c a l l y , 

15 where t h a t blue i s shown on the contour map of the 

16 pinch-out of the zone. And t h i s i s based upon 

17 i n f o r m a t i o n on t h i s new w e l l t h a t we've been r e f e r r i n g 

18 t o , t h i s Marshall & Winston w e l l , which was abandoned at 

19 a TD of 12,267. And I ' l l have f u r t h e r d i s p l a y s t h a t go 

20 i n t o d e t a i l on t h a t . 

21 But, b a s i c a l l y , they only had a t h r e e - f o o t 

22 d r i l l i n g break i n the p i l o t hole and the mud l o g on i t . 

23 That's where I got the number. They ran an e l e c t r i c l o g , 

24 but i t was only an i n d u c t i o n l o g , so I used the mud l o g 

25 f o r the number, and I have t h a t included here. 
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1 But, e s s e n t i a l l y , t h a t i s the main c o n t r o l J 

2 p o i n t f o r the n o r t h t o show, as you go from t h a t 

3 d i r e c t i o n , t h a t you're d r a s t i c a l l y t h i n n i n g . The Cimarex 

4 w e l l i n Section 2, the Wasp s t a t e w e l l , has 76 f e e t of 

5 pay, and you go t o three f e e t r i g h t there. 

6 And t o show t h a t t h a t can happen, i f you look 

7 over i n Section 8, y o u ' l l see these Marshall & Winston 

8 w e l l s , the Medlins, i t goes from 42 f e e t t o 14 i n one 

9 p r o r a t i o n u n i t r i g h t t h e r e . They d i d make a w e l l l i k e 

10 t h a t , because they took the l a t e r a l and got i n t o the pay. 

11 You can see how they went back t o the west. So the 

12 abrupt t h i n n i n g i s d e f i n i t e l y documented i n here. 

13 So we f e e l -- you know, l o o k i n g at t h i s 

14 isopach, i t ' s much more f e e t of pay i n the south h a l f of 

15 Section 3, and i t can c e r t a i n l y be b e t t e r developed by 

16 two east t o west or west t o east w e l l s on here. 

17 Q. Based on your geologic mapping, i n c l u d i n g 

18 E x h i b i t 10, do you have an o p i n i o n whether each of the 

19 40-acre t r a c t s t h a t comprise Cimarex's proposed stand-up 

20 w e l l u n i t s are prospective f o r production? I'm t a l k i n g 

21 about the Cimarex t r a c t s now. 

22 A. Yeah. I be l i e v e t h a t the n o r t h h a l f would be 

23 extremely r i s k y d r i l l i n g f o r t h i s Abo pay zone. 

24 Q. Do you have an o p i n i o n whether a spacing and 

25 p r o r a t i o n u n i t comprised of the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f i n 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
b5fd8025-50bd-451 e-9dab-7fe170584bd1 



Page 35 
1 a lay-down c o n f i g u r a t i o n i s b e t t e r s i t u a t e d t o produce 

2 the reserves u n d e r l y i n g Section 3? 

3 A. Very much so, yes. 

4 Q. Would you r e f e r t o E x h i b i t s 11 and 12 and 

5 i d e n t i f y those f o r us? And i f you would also r e f e r those 

6 l o c a t i o n s back on E x h i b i t 10. 

7 A. Okay. The next e x h i b i t i s p a r t of the mud log 

8 of the Marshall & Winston Caprock 35 State w e l l . I t ' s 

9 lo c a t e d i n Section 3 5 i n the n o r t h end of the map, 

10 14 South, 31 East, j u s t t o the n o r t h and east of 

11 Section 3. 

12 EXAMINER FESMIRE: This i s the plugged 

13 w e l l ; r i g h t ? 

14 THE WITNESS: Yes. This i s the p i l o t hole 

15 mud l o g t h a t they had. And, b a s i c a l l y , there's three 

16 f e e t of d r i l l i n g break, and I t h i n k I was generous i n 

17 g i v i n g i t three f e e t . 

18 They ran seven-inch casing and d r i l l e d t h e i r 

19 l a t e r a l . They d r i l l e d about 3,162 f e e t of l a t e r a l , and 

20 w i t h i n the l a t e r a l there were o n l y two i n t e r v a l s t h a t 

21 t o t a l 180 f e e t t h a t had a mud l o g show, so less than 6 

22 percent of the e n t i r e l a t e r a l had a mud l o g show. 

23 Therefore, when they were d r i l l i n g t h i s , they got, 

24 b a s i c a l l y , t i r e d of d r i l l i n g a bunch of hard rock and 

25 abandoned the w e l l and plugged i t . They were 902 f e e t 
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1 shy of t h e i r f i n a l TD, but they s t i l l d r i l l e d over 3,000 

2 f e e t of l a t e r a l . 

3 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Do you know what date t h a t w e l l 

4 was abandoned? 

5 A. They TD 1d the w e l l on A p r i l 4 th, and there i s 

6 no o f f i c i a l data released on t h i s . But I'm p r e t t y sure 

7 they would have plugged i t the next day or two, because 

8 they had the r i g out there, so A p r i l 5th or 6th, 

9 somewhere i n there. 

10 Q. Look at E x h i b i t --

11 A. The next e x h i b i t i s , b a s i c a l l y , an example of 

12 a good mud l o g . I t ' s one of the Cimarex w e l l s down i n 

13 Section 11, the E n t e r p r i s e Number 1. I t ' s 32 f e e t of 

14 d r i l l i n g break i n t h i s mud l o g . I t has r e a l l y good shows 

15 i n i t . A c t u a l l y , 89 percent of the l a t e r a l here had good 

16 shows i n i t , and i t ' s a productive w e l l , about 60,000 

17 b a r r e l s i n 14 months. That's an example of what a good 

18 w e l l looks l i k e and what you had up here i n t h i s Caprock 

19 State w e l l . 

2 0 Q. Mr. Gawloski, developing Section 3 w i t h two 

21 lay-down u n i t s i n the south h a l f of the s e c t i o n , w i l l 

22 a l l o w us t o avoid the d r i l l i n g of unnecessary wells? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And as a r e s u l t , w i l l p r o j e c t economics be 

25 improved when you d r i l l two w e l l s versus f o u r we l l s? 
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1 A. Abs o l u t e l y . 

2 Q. And i n your opinion, w i l l g r a n t i n g COG's 

3 a p p l i c a t i o n , approving of the lay-down u n i t 

4 c o n f i g u r a t i o n , be i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation, the 

5 preven t i o n of waste, and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

6 r i g h t s ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 8 through 12 prepared by you or 

9 at your d i r e c t i o n ? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Look at one more e x h i b i t t h a t we don't have 

12 marked. Let's c a l l i t 12A. 

13 Do you need t o take a break? 

14 A. No. I'm f i n e . 

15 This e x h i b i t here e s s e n t i a l l y s t a t e s what we 

16 j u s t mentioned, t h a t i t ' s j u s t , b a s i c a l l y , a blowup of 

17 Section 3, j u s t showing t h a t our two Leo w e l l s w i l l 

18 e f f e c t i v e l y d r a i n the lower Abo r e s e r v o i r and prevent 

19 waste. The pay thickens t o the south, and there's much 

2 0 more pay developed i n the south, and two w e l l s could 

21 e f f e c t i v e l y d r a i n t h i s r e s e r v o i r . 

2 2 MR. HALL: I misspoke. We've marked t h i s 

23 as E x h i b i t 13. 
24 Q. (By Mr. Ha l l ) I ' l l ask you again, were 

25 E x h i b i t s 8 through 13 prepared by you or at your 
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1 d i r e c t i o n ? 

2 A . Yes, t h e y w e r e . 

3 MR. HALL: We move the admission of 

4 E x h i b i t s 8 through 13, and pass the witness. 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

6 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

7 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 8 through 13 

8 w i l l be admitted. 

9 (COG E x h i b i t s 8 through 13 were admitted.) 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No questions. 

11 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

12 MR. BRUCE: Really, j u s t one question. 

13 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. BRUCE: 

15 Q. Mr. Gawloski, you said t h a t -- I t h i n k your 

16 f i n a l statement was t h a t two w e l l s would e f f e c t i v e l y 

17 d r a i n the r e s e r v o i r i n t h i s s e c t i o n . I n c l u d i n g reserves 

18 i n Section 3, i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 3? 

19 A. No. The two w e l l s i n the south h a l f of 

20 Section 3. 

21 MR. BRUCE: Okay. T h a t ' s a l l I have . 

22 EXAMINATION 

23 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

24 Q. I f o r g o t t o ask , i s t h i s a r e g u l a r s e c t i o n , do 

25 you know? I s h o u l d have asked Jan S p r a d l i n . 
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1 A. Yes. I b e l i e v e i t i s j u s t a r e g u l a r s e c t i o n . 

2 Q. This Abo/Wolfcamp business, I n o t i c e you're 

3 c a l l i n g i t the Abo. 

4 A. Right. A c t u a l l y , i n these d i s p l a y s I put 

5 "Abo/Wolfcamp." I b e l i e v e Cimarex uses t h a t terminology, 

6 as w e l l , because the OCD -- d i f f e r e n t places, they c a l l 

7 i t the Wolfcamp, and another place, t h e y ' l l c a l l i t Abo. 

8 So we put both names t o i t , t o j u s t i d e n t i f y i t as the 

9 pay zone t h a t we're l o o k i n g a t . 

10 Q. You're showing the Wolfcamp top has got some 

11 limestone i n i t on these -- I'm sorry. This i s the mud 

12 l o g shows. That's j u s t a coincidence, I guess? 

13 A. That's a mud logger's i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h e r e . 

14 This i s mostly dolomite he's showing on both of these mud 

15 logs. But there's lime mixed i n , probably, a limey 

16 dolomite. 

17 Q. So i t ' s p r e t t y c l e a r where the Wolfcamp is? 

18 A. Yes, i t i s . There's a d i s t i n c t break i n the 

19 top seal t o t h i s , where there's a n h y d r i t i c dolomite. 

20 Then you come i n t o e i t h e r dolomite or limestone j u s t 

21 r i g h t below t h a t . And t h a t pay i s , b a s i c a l l y , 150 f e e t 

22 below t h a t . 

23 Q. Below the top o f the Abo? 

24 A. No. I t would be a lower marker i n the Abo. 

25 I t ' s a l i t h o l o g y - - d i s t i n c t l i t h o l o g y d i f f e r e n c e , where 
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i f you have a d e n s i t y neutron l o g , i t w i l l show 

2 anhydrite The d e n s i t y w i l l be reading minus 10, and 

3 then an abrupt change r i g h t below t h a t , and t h a t ' s where 

4 the pay i s . That top i s the seal f o r the r e s e r v o i r . 

5 Q • Does t h a t a n h y d r i t e e x p l a i n how you can keep 

6 your b i t i n i t , below i t ? 

7 A. I t helps you steer i t . I f you get i n t o t h a t , 

8 you know you want t o get away from t h a t and move down. 

9 Q. Do you lose many of those w e l l s d r i l l i n g them? 

10 A. No, we haven't l o s t any. But I can t e l l you 

11 i t ' s very d i f f i c u l t t o stay i n the pay. You have t o 

12 watch i t 24 hours. 

13 Q. Watch i t i n the samples? 

14 A. Steering the w e l l , t o keep i t i n the pay. 

15 Q. With what a i d do you do t h a t , w i t h gamma 

16 rays --

17 A. Yeah. 

18 Q. -- or logging w e l l d r i l l i n g ? Gamma ray? 

19 A. Yes, s i r , and a good mud logger. 

20 Q. And a mud logger? 

21 A. Yeah. 

22 Q. That gamma ray, i s i t one j o i n t back? 

23 A. Yeah. I t h i n k i t gets roughly 30, 40 f e e t , 

24 somewhere i n t h e r e . I'm not e x a c t l y sure, but i t ' s 

25 close. 
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1 Q. So you're a ways back from your b i t when you 

2 see i t ? 

3 A. Yeah. When you react t o i t , you're a l i t t l e 

4 l a t e , of course. 

5 Q. How many f e e t a day do you d r i l l i n a 

6 h o r i z o n t a l section? 

7 A. Depending upon your c o n f i g u r a t i o n , we use a 

8 r o t a r y steerable assembly, and you can make a l o t , up t o 

9 from 70 f e e t an hour, even more than t h a t sometimes. So 

10 they can d r i l l f a s t , so you have t o react q u i c k l y i f you 

11 get out of the pay zone. 

12 Q. So a f o o t a minute? 

13 A. Yeah. I t ' s not uncommon. I f you have PDC 

14 b i t s i n there, they can chew i t up. 

15 Q. So you see your samples -- mud loggers, are 

16 they p r e t t y d e f i n i t i v e samples? 

17 A. Yeah. They get p r e t t y small, but they get 

18 enough rock t o where they can get good samples and good 

19 shows of gas, enough t o know t h a t you're i n a pay zone or 

2 0 not. 

21 Q. Do you guys always d r i l l v e r t i c a l w e l l s and 

22 l o g them? 

23 A. No, s i r . Based upon -- l i k e an area l i k e 

24 t h i s , you know, i f we d r i l l e d i n , l i k e , the south 

25 h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of 15, we might d r i l l a p i l o t hole. But 
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1 i f we were d r i l l i n g up where we have w e l l c o n t r o l and 

2 t h a t p i l o t hole i s going t o be next t o another w e l l , we 

3 w i l l do i t without i t . I t ' s t r i c k y , but we can save a 

4 s u b s t a n t i a l amount of money, $200,000, something l i k e 

5 t h a t . So my engineers are always a l l over me. I p r e f e r 

6 t o have a p i l o t , because i t gives me the c o n t r o l t o f e e l 

7 comfortable when I d r i l l the l a t e r a l . 

8 Q. I f you d r i l l where you're proposing t o d r i l l 

9 here, do you need t o d r i l l a p i l o t hole? 

10 A. I t depends i f I get the l o g on the Cimarex 

11 w e l l . I f I had t h a t , then 1 1d be able t o -- or have more 

12 of i t , I guess, I ' d be able t o use i t f o r the c o n t r o l I 

13 need because i t ' s close enough where I can land i t . 

14 We've done t h a t enough t o where we f e e l comfortable doing 

15 i t . 

16 Q. So i f you d r i l l e d where Cimarex i s proposing 

17 t o d r i l l , s t a r t i n g --

18 A. I f I s t a r t e d way up there t o the north? 

19 Q. Would you have t o d r i l l a p i l o t hole? 

2 0 A. Sure I would, because t h a t may be out of the 

21 pay zone up there, up t h a t f a r n o r t h . I don't even know 

22 i f I ' d f i n d pay i n t h a t w e l l . 

23 Q. What c o n t r o l d i d you have t o draw these 

24 s t r u c t u r e maps? 

25 A. I t ' s an isopach map. I t ' s a thickness map of 
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1 the pay, e s s e n t i a l l y . 

2 Q. Okay. 

3 A. I had the w e l l i n Section 2, and then, again, 

4 t h a t Marshall & Winston Caprock w e l l . When you see a red 

5 number by the w e l l s i s where I had c o n t r o l . So there's 

6 q u i t e a b i t of w e l l c o n t r o l i n here. 

7 Q. To the south? 

8 A. To the south. Then, b a s i c a l l y , on s t r i k e t o 

9 t h a t , those w e l l s i n Section 8 I r e f e r r e d t o , Medlin 

10 Wells and Marshall & Winston, you can see t h a t company 

11 l i k e s t o p l a y t h i s pinch-out. When you do t h a t , you get 

12 the r i s k of doing what they d i d up i n 35. They were 

13 r e a l l y close t o missing i t i n t h a t Medlin w e l l i n Section 

14 8. 

15 Q. You're basing a l o t on t h i s w e l l i n Section 35 

16 t o the n o r t h , t h a t three feet? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . Like I sai d , i t ' s the only w e l l I'm 

18 aware of t h a t was d r i l l e d i n a l a t e r a l and was a c t u a l l y 

19 abandoned. 

2 0 Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e i f you d i d spud a w e l l t o the 

21 n o r t h h a l f of Section 3, you would o b t a i n more 

22 i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t might help you t o a c t u a l l y extend t h i s 

23 r e s e r v o i r out t o the north? I s i t possible? 

24 A. I f you wanted t o d r i l l t h a t . I c e r t a i n l y 

25 wouldn't want t o take t h a t r i s k . 
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1 Q. So you're t o t a l l y sure of your map here? 

2 A. I f e e l very confident i n the map, yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Okay. 

4 A. I've been working t h i s p l a y since i t s t a r t e d 

5 e x c l u s i v e l y . Yeah, i f t h a t was me, I wouldn't be doing 

6 i t . 

7 EXAMINER JONES: I don't have any more 

8 questions. 

9 EXAMINATION 

10 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: 

11 Q. G e o l o g i c a l l y , what's happened here? What 

12 causes t h i s s t a t e of development? 

13 A. There's many f a c t o r s . We've taken some core 

14 w i t h some of t h i s s t u f f , and i t i s an extremely 

15 complicated rock system here. The best r e s e r v o i r s are on 

16 the dolomites. They have the best p o r o s i t y and 

17 p e r m e a b i l i t y . There's i n t e r m i x of lime, l i t t l e b i t s of 

18 chert and other t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . But you r e a l l y want t o 

19 be i n the dolomite, because you get b e t t e r p o r o s i t y and 

2 0 p e r m e a b i l i t y . 

21 Q. So secondary m i n e r a l i z a t i o n i s s o r t of 

22 c r i t i c a l t o t h a t p o r o s i t y development? 

23 A. Yes. The dolomization process i s probably the 

24 biggest. There i s some d i s s o l u t i o n of f o s s i l s and 

25 i n t e r p a r t i c l e p o r o s i t y i n the limestones, but i t ' s not 
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1 connected, so you get r e a l l y low p e r m e a b i l i t y numbers. 

2 Q. Anybody given any thought t o how the dolomite 

3 would respond t o a water f l o o d w i t h the h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s 

4 the way they're i n there? 

5 A. Yeah. There's been some thought t o t h a t , and, 

6 b a s i c a l l y , t h a t ' s about i t , because there hasn't been 

7 enough -- I t h i n k you're going t o have t o wait u n t i l t h i s 

8 whole area gets developed before you s t a r t seeing how 

9 t h a t works. But i f you were t o do t h a t , you'd c e r t a i n l y 

10 want the w e l l s o r i e n t e d i n one d i r e c t i o n . And c e r t a i n l y 

11 the p r e v a i l i n g d i r e c t i o n i n t h i s whole p l a y i s on 

12 lay-down u n i t s , east t o west or west t o east. 

13 Q. That's the p o i n t I was making. But on the 

14 other side, don't you t h i n k Cimarex's proposal f o r the 

15 marginal reserves up on the northern t i p of Section 3, 

16 don't you t h i n k t h e i r proposal would probably b e t t e r 

17 develop those reserves? 

18 A. I don't t h i n k t h a t there's very much reserves 

19 t o be found up the r e , t o be q u i t e honest w i t h you. I f 

2 0 they wanted t o do t h a t , they can d r i l l a south h a l f t o 

21 the n o r t h h a l f on t h e i r own. And you'd have more pay i n 

22 t h a t than you would i n any of the north/south. 

23 Q. That's the p o i n t I'm making, t h a t probably --

24 you know, o r i e n t e d t h i s way, t h a t probably would be a 

25 marginal, i f not a l o s i n g w e l l . Whereas developed t h i s 
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1 way, those reserves -- developed the way they propose, 

2 those reserves would probably be captured, don't you 

3 thi n k ? 

4 A. With f o u r w e l l s , as opposed t o two. That's 

5 what pre v e n t i n g waste i s a l l about, I b e l i e v e . 

6 Q. Your argument i s t h a t the d r i l l i n g f o u r w e l l s , 

7 while i t might capture more o i l , would not be as 

8 economically v i a b l e ? 

9 A. Correct. 

10 Q. How would the ownership change -- w e l l , you're 

11 the wrong one t o ask. 

12 A. Yeah 

13 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any more questions, 

14 Mr. Hall? 

15 MR. HALL: B r i e f l y . 

16 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. HALL: 

18 Q. I n response t o a question from Mr. Fesmire, I 

19 understood you t o say t h a t there was nothing p r e v e n t i n g 

2 0 Cimarex from d r i l l i n g n o r t h t o south. I s i t more 

21 accurate t o say there's nothing preventing them from 

22 d r i l l i n g east t o west lay-down u n i t s ? 

23 A. No. 

24 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 
2 5 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Nothing, no. 

2 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

3 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

4 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. 

5 MR. HALL: That concludes our examination 

6 of t h i s witness. 

7 We would c a l l Barbara Slaton t o the stand. 

8 EXAMINER JONES: Can we take a break f o r 

9 about 10 minutes? 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Sure. 

11 (A recess was taken.) 

12 EXAMINER FESMIRE: The record should 

13 r e f l e c t t h a t the Hearing Examiners have returned and t h a t 

14 we've gone back on the record. 

15 I b e l i e v e , Mr. H a l l , you had one more witness? 

16 MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . We c a l l Barbara 

17 Slaton t o the stand. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Slaton, you've been 

19 p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

20 MS. SLATON: Yes. 

21 BARBARA SLATON 

22 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. HALL: 

25 Q. For the r e c o r d , please s t a t e your name. 
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1 A. Barbara Slaton. 

2 Q. Ms. Slaton, where do you l i v e , and by whom are 

3 you employed? 

4 A. I l i v e i n Midland, Texas, and I'm employed by 

5 COG Operating, LLC. 

6 Q. I n what capacity? 

7 A. Senior r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

8 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

9 D i v i s i o n or i t s examiners? 

10 A. I have not. 

11 Q. Why don't you give the Examiners a b r i e f 

12 overview of your educational background and work 

13 experience. 

14 A. I have a B.S. i n chemical engineering from the 

15 U n i v e r s i t y of P i t t s b u r g h . I have 2 9 years' i n d u s t r y 

16 experience, p r i m a r i l y w i t h Marathon O i l , B u r l i n g t o n 

17 Resources, Conoco P h i l l i p s , and now COG Operating. 

18 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands and the 

19 proposed w e l l s t h a t are the subject of the a p p l i c a t i o n s 

2 0 we're hearing today? 

21 A. Yes, I am. 

2 2 MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Examiner, 

23 we'd o f f e r Ms. Slaton as a q u a l i f i e d expert i n petroleum 

24 engineering. 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, any 
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1 o bjection? 

2 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 1 

3 EX7AMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Slaton, are you a 

4 licensed petroleum engineer? 

5 THE WITNESS: I am not. 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Notwithstanding t h a t , I 

7 t h i n k her q u a l i f i c a t i o n s be accepted as an expert i n | 

8 petroleum engineering. j 

9 Q. (By Mr. Ha l l ) Ms. Slaton, have you conducted j 

10 an engineering e v a l u a t i o n t o reach an op i n i o n whether the 

11 reserves u n d e r l y i n g Section 3 can be e f f i c i e n t l y and 

12 economically recovered w i t h two w e l l s d r i l l e d on lay-down ] 

13 u n i t s i n the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of the section? 

14 A. Yes, I have. 1 

15 Q. T e l l us what your o p i n i o n i s . ] 

16 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t the most e f f e c t i v e way t o 

17 develop the reserves i n Section 3 i s by the d r i l l i n g of j 

18 two east/west lay-down u n i t s on 160-acre spacing. I 

19 Q. And do you have an o p i n i o n whether developing j 

20 Section 3 w i t h f o u r stand-up u n i t w e l l s would r e s u l t i n 

21 the d r i l l i n g of unnecessary wells? 

22 A. Yes, I believe so. 

23 Q. And would waste r e s u l t ? 

24 A. Yes, i t would. 

25 Q. From a petroleum engineering perspective, have 
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1 you compared the p o t e n t i a l r e l a t i v e drainage areas of the 

2 stand-up non-standard u n i t s being proposed f o r Cimarex 

3 w e l l s versus the lay-down u n i t s t h a t COG i s proposing? 
4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. T e l l us about the r e s u l t s of your comparison. 

6 Let's look a t E x h i b i t 14. 

7 A. E x h i b i t 14 shows t h a t the proposed development 

8 by COG Operating showing t h a t two lay-down u n i t s would 

9 e f f e c t i v e l y cover a l l -- every -- a l l p o r t i o n s of t h a t 

10 l a t e r a l i s w i t h i n e f f e c t i v e , p r o d u c t i v e r e s e r v o i r rock. 

11 So those two w e l l s would f u l l y develop what we bel i e v e t o 

12 be productive r e s e r v o i r rock i n t h a t s e c t i o n . 

13 Q. And l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t 15. What does t h i s 

14 show us? 

15 A. This i s what the proposed Boxer Federal w e l l s 

16 would look l i k e . I f we honor the pinch-out, we do honor 

17 t h a t pinch-out, I b e l i e v e t h a t those f o u r w e l l s would not 

18 be f u l l y d r i l l e d w i t h i n producing r e s e r v o i r rock. And 

19 I've assigned some expected drainage areas t o those. 

20 Moving from east t o west, the f i r s t w e l l would d r a i n 90, 

21 then the next two w e l l s would d r a i n 100 acres, and the 

22 l a s t w e l l would d r i l l 80 acres. So you compare the 320 

23 acres drained by two w e l l s versus f o u r w e l l s t h a t i t 

24 would take t o d r a i n 370 acres. 

25 Q. Now, d i d you take your drainage areas f o r both 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
b5fd8025-50bd-451 e-9dab-7fe170584bd1 



Page 51 

1 the lay-down and stand-up w e l l s and apply an economic 

2 ana l y s i s t o tha t ? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. And t e l l us about t h a t . Let's look at 

5 E x h i b i t 16. 

6 A. Yes. What I d i d f o r t h i s was I j u s t took a 

7 type-curve w e l l t h a t ' s s o r t of an average f o r t h i s play, 

8 a p p l i e d drainage area of 160 acres t o the base w e l l , and 

9 then reduced the recoverable reserves based on the 

10 percentage of acreage being d r i l l e d . 

11 I ran cases, economic cases. I d i d i t both at 

12 Cimarex's AFE costs and at Concho's because they are 

13 d i f f e r e n t . What you can see very c l e a r l y i s the 

14 economics of 160-acre w e l l w i t h a 49.6 r a t e of r e t u r n i s 

15 very, very robust economics. But as you move down and 

16 decrease what you a c t u a l l y recover i n those w e l l s , your 

17 economic -- your r a t e of r e t u r n i s destroyed very q u i c k l y 

18 t o the p o i n t where, i n my opi n i o n , i t ' s not economic t o 

19 d r i l l those w e l l s . 

20 Q. Why don't you run through the r a t e s of r e t u r n 

21 f o r each of those perspective drainage areas. 

22 A. 160-acre w e l l at Cimarex's AFE cost i s a 

23 49.6 percent r a t e of r e t u r n . The hundred-acre w e l l would 

24 be a 12.2 percent. A 90-acre drainage area, 7.4 percent. 

25 And f i n a l l y , the 80-acre drainage radius would get you 
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1 2.2 percent r a t e of r e t u r n . 

2 Q. Does Concho u t i l i z e a minimum r a t e of r e t u r n 

3 economic c r i t e r i a n t o decide whether i t goes forward w i t h 
4 the p r o j e c t ? 

5 A. Yes, we do. We have a bare-bones minimum, i f 

6 you w i l l , of 20 percent r a t e of r e t u r n . But when we have 

7 competing p r o j e c t s f o r our money, we c e r t a i n l y p r e f e r 

8 something c l o s e r t o 40 percent r a t e of r e t u r n f o r our 

9 money. 

10 Q. And i f we a p p l i e d t h a t economic c r i t e r i a n t o 

11 the fo u r w e l l proposals of Cimarex, would a l l of them get 

12 d r i l l e d ? 

13 A. None of them would get d r i l l e d . 

14 Q. I s Cimarex's proposal t o e s t a b l i s h stand-up 

15 d r i l l i n g u n i t s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the p r e v a i l i n g development 

16 p a t t e r n i n the area? 

17 A. No, i t i s not. 

18 Q. I s t h i s a concern? 

19 A. I t ' s very much a concern f o r us. We f e e l l i k e 

2 0 i t introduces an element of r i s k . When you move away 

21 from what's the standard analogous way of developing a 

22 r e s e r v o i r , you g r e a t l y i ntroduce r i s k i n t o t h a t equation, 

23 c e r t a i n l y magnified by the r i s k of the dryhole t h a t ' s 

24 d i r e c t l y o f f s e t t i n g t h i s acreage. 

25 Q. I s Concho a p u b l i c l y - t r a d e d company? I s t h a t 
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1 r i g h t ? 

2 A. Yes, we are. 

3 Q. I s i n c o n s i s t e n t development a concern t o a 

4 p u b l i c l y - t r a d e d company? 

5 A. Let's t a l k about i t through the lens of how we 

6 deal w i t h the SCC on our reserve bookings f o r h o r i z o n t a l 

7 w e l l s . The SCC w i l l o n l y allow a proved o f f s e t i f i t i s 

8 p a r a l l e l t o an e x i s t i n g producing w e l l . When you go 

9 perpendicular, they no longer see t h a t as a proved 

10 reserve. They downgrade your r e s e r v o i r category. And 

11 they do t h a t because t h a t ' s how they q u a n t i f y r i s k i n the 

12 SCC world, i s based on your reserve category. 

13 So by d r i l l i n g o f f the analogous way of doing 

14 t h i n g s , where you're not p a r a l l e l t o the producing w e l l , 

15 you're not going t o be able t o c a l l t h a t o f f s e t w e l l a 

16 proved l o c a t i o n . Because we're a p u b l i c l y - t r a d e d 

17 company, our value i s t i e d i n t o our proved reserves t h a t 

18 we're able t o book. So we would see t h a t as d e f i n i t e l y a 

19 d e s t r u c t i o n i n value. 

20 EXAMINER FESMIRE: That's only i f you hold 

21 t h a t i n i n v e n t o r y as an undeveloped l o c a t i o n ; r i g h t ? The 

22 proposal here i s t o d r i l l i t , i s i t not? 

23 THE WITNESS: Well, once you d r i l l i t , 

24 c e r t a i n l y you can. As long as i t ' s on your books, you 

25 d e f i n i t e l y p r e f e r a proved reserve on your book as 
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1 opposed t o a non-proved. 

2 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) What are the r e l a t i v e impacts 

3 t o the surface when you compare developing Section 3 w i t h 

4 two lay-down w e l l s versus f o u r stand-up? 

6 less impact on the surface area, the f o o t p r i n t , i f you 

7 w i l l . We can develop the same reserves w i t h two pads f o r 

8 d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n . And because there's common ownership 

9 i n the south h a l f of t h a t s e c t i o n , we would only need t o 

10 b u i l d one tank b a t t e r y . So t h a t reduces the number of 

11 f l o w l i n e s , roads, t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . The two w e l l s go t o 

12 one common b a t t e r y under the east/west development. 

13 I t ' s my understanding t h a t when you d r i l l the 

14 f o u r w e l l s , not only w i l l you have fo u r pads of 

15 f o o t p r i n t , but w i l l be m u l t i p l e b a t t e r i e s because of some 

16 ownership issues. So y o u ' l l probably have twice the 

17 impact, i f not more, on the surface w i t h the f o u r - w e l l 

18 m u l t i b a t t e r y completion, as opposed t o our two-well, 

19 s i n g l e b a t t e r y development. 

2 0 Q. Let's r e f e r back t o E x h i b i t 5. Could you 

21 review those dryhole and completed w e l l costs f o r the 

2 2 Hearing Examiner shown i n E x h i b i t 5? 

23 A. Yes. This i s f o r Leo 3 Number 1. The dryhole 

24 cost i s $2.1 m i l l i o n , and the completed cost i s $4.5 

25 m i l l i o n . 

5 A . We b e l i e v e t h a t i t would have much more - - o r 
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1 Q. And are these costs i n l i n e w i t h what other 

2 operators are charging i n the area? 

3 A. Yes, they are. 

4 Q. Has COG made an estimate of the overhead and 

5 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs while d r i l l i n g and producing the 

6 well? 

7 A. Yes. The overhead a d m i n i s t r a t i v e cost w h i l e 

8 d r i l l i n g are $6,500 a month, and whi l e producing, $650 a 

9 month. 

10 Q. And are those overhead charges i n l i n e w i t h 

11 what's being charged i n the area by other operators? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Are you recommending t h a t those producing and 

14 d r i l l i n g overhead r a t e s be inc o r p o r a t e d i n t o the 

15 D i v i s i o n ' s order from t h i s hearing? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Are you asking the D i v i s i o n t o enter an order 

18 t h a t provides f o r adjustment t o those r a t e s i n accordance 

19 w i t h the then c u r r e n t COPUS b u l l e t i n ? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. I f you look back at some of the area a c t i v i t y 

22 maps or even the isopach map, do you see any impediment 

23 t o Cimarex's geology, n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g t o t h e i r d r i l l i n g 

24 lay-down u n i t w e l l s i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 3? 

25 A. No. 
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1 Q. Your E x h i b i t 16 r e f l e c t s the AFE costs f o r 

2 both Cimarex and COG. I f you want t o r e f e r back t o those 

3 numbers, they are somewhat d i f f e r e n t , are they not? 

4 A. Yes, they are. 

5 Q. Can you compare those r a t e s f o r the --

6 A. Yes, I t h i n k I can. When you l a y the AFEs 

7 side by side, you see a l o t of minor d i f f e r e n c e s . 

8 Probably the s i g n i f i c a n t major d i f f e r e n c e s i n AFE costs 

9 are i n the r o t a r y steerable equipment t h a t we use, t h a t 

10 Mr. Gawloski r e f e r r e d t o e a r l i e r , which g r e a t l y helps us 

11 steer and reduce our time i n d r i l l i n g , but there's a cost 

12 f o r t h a t t o use those t o o l s . 

13 We also put higher d o l l a r s i n f o r completion 

14 costs than Cimarex does. And at the bottom l i n e , they 

15 only put a 5 percent contingency on t h e i r AFE versus a 

16 10 percent t h a t COG uses. So those are the s i g n i f i c a n t 

17 d i f f e r e n c e s i n the 3.8 versus 4.5 m i l l i o n AFE cost. 

18 Q. I n your view, those AFEs, do they compare 

19 favorably? 

2 0 A. Yes, they do. 

21 Q. Ms. Slaton, were E x h i b i t s 14, 15, and 16 

22 prepared by you or at your d i r e c t i o n ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 MR. HALL: We move admission o f E x h i b i t s 

25 14, 15, and 16. And t h a t concludes our d i r e c t o f the 
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1 witness. 

2 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

3 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 14, 15, and 16 
5 w i l l be admitted. 

6 Ms. Munds-Dry, do you have questions of t h i s 

7 witnes? 

8 (COG E x h i b i t s 14, 15, and 16 were admitted.) 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

11 MR. BRUCE: Just a couple. 

12 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. BRUCE: 

14 Q. Ms. Slaton, you know, your E x h i b i t 15, t h i s i s 

15 based on what you c a l l e f f e c t i v e pinch-out. I f t h i s l i n e 

16 i s f u r t h e r n o r t h , then t h i s chart i s i n c o r r e c t ? 

17 A. I f i t ' s f u r t h e r south, i t ' s also i n c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. The reason I ask t h a t i s because your 

19 e f f e c t i v e pinch-out l i n e seems a l o t f u r t h e r -- moves a 

2 0 l o t f u r t h e r south than Mr. Gawloski's pinch-out. 

21 A. There needs t o be a minimum amount of 

22 r e s e r v o i r t o make a prod u c t i v e w e l l . So three f e e t i s 

23 not going t o do i t . You need probably 10, 15, 20 f e e t t o 

24 be an e f f e c t i v e producing w e l l . 

25 Q. Well, l o o k i n g a t Mr. Gawloski's E x h i b i t 10, a 
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1 w e l l -- l e t ' s say Cimarex was fo r c e d t o d r i l l a south 

2 h a l f / n o r t h h a l f w e l l . According t o h i s own map, t h a t 

3 doesn't look -- the south h a l f / n o r t h h a l f of Section 3 

4 doesn't look much d i f f e r e n t than the Cimarex Yorktown 

5 w e l l i n Section 12 or COG's w e l l s proposed or otherwise 

6 down i n Section 15, nor does i t look much d i f f e r e n t than 

7 some of the Cimarex w e l l s , Ticonderoga w e l l s i n Section 

8 16, does i t ? 

9 A. I t h i n k our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n would be t h a t i t 

10 does look d i f f e r e n t than those w e l l s , because of the 

11 thickness t h a t you encounter along the l e n g t h of the 

12 l a t e r a l . 

13 Q. I'm l o o k i n g at h i s p l a t . Show me where 

14 there's a d i f f e r e n c e . 

15 MR. HALL: I'm going t o ob j e c t a t t h i s 

16 p o i n t , Mr. Examiner. This i s beyond the scope of t h i s 

17 witness's d i r e c t testimony. They're questions b e t t e r 

18 d i r e c t e d t o the g e o l o g i s t . 

19 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I t h i n k Mr. Bruce does 

20 make a p o i n t . One of the witnesses i s using a c e r t a i n 

21 pinch-out and another witness i s using a d i f f e r e n t 

22 pinch-out. I t h i n k he's e n t i t l e d t o explore the 

23 d i f f e r e n c e . 

24 A. The pinch-out t h a t I was provided i n my 

25 e x h i b i t s came from Mr. Gawloski, where he f e l t t h a t was 
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1 e f f e c t i v e r e s e r v o i r . The existence of r e s e r v o i r i n and 

2 of i t s e l f i s not s u f f i c i e n t t o be economic, so t h a t i s 

3 what we would say would be --

4 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) What he provided t o you i s 

5 d i f f e r e n t than t h i s p l a t . 

6 A. He provided t h a t p l a t and also provided my 

7 e x h i b i t -- the base of my e x h i b i t w i t h t h a t purple l i n e 

8 on i t was h i s e f f e c t i v e r e s e r v o i r pinch-out. 

9 Q. Again, a w e l l i n the south h a l f / n o r t h h a l f of 

10 Section 3 would p r e t t y much have 40 f e e t of r e s e r v o i r , 

11 and you are t o t a l l y d i s c r e d i t i n g t h a t i n your e x h i b i t s , 

12 c e r t a i n l y i n your E x h i b i t 15. 

13 MR. HALL: Objection, argumentative. 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I ' l l s u s t a i n t h a t one. 

15 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) I'm asking you, i f you're 

16 l o o k i n g at Mr. Gawloski's E x h i b i t 10, he p r e t t y much 

17 shows a l o c a t i o n t h a t Cimarex would d r i l l i n the south 

18 h a l f / n o r t h h a l f t h a t would have approximately 40 f e e t , 

19 which i s s i m i l a r , i s i t not, t o a number of other w e l l s 

2 0 t h a t are d r i l l e d and/or proposed? 

21 A. Could you p i c k a s p e c i f i c w e l l , please, t h a t 

22 we could compare to? 

23 Q. Sure. I already p o i n t e d some out. The 

24 Yorktown --

25 A. I would l i k e f o r you t o repeat t h a t , p lease . 
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1 Q. The Yorktown Fee i n Section 12. 

2 A. Number 1 or Number 2? 

3 Q. The one t h a t ' s been completed. 

4 A. Right, the Number 2. I f you w i l l see, t h a t 

5 a c t u a l l y gets i n t o some very t h i c k r e s e r v o i r . Towards 

6 the end of t h a t wellbore, i t a c t u a l l y gets i n t o some 60 

7 f e e t of pay. And we've demonstrated over here w i t h the 

8 Marshall & Winston w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d on the pinch-out 

9 t h a t a c t u a l l y made a good w e l l t h a t i f you can get i n t o 

10 t h a t t h i c k , you can make a decent w e l l . But i f you stay 

11 i n the t h i n or i f i t ' s not present a t a l l , you r e a l l y do 

12 run the r i s k of having t h a t . 

13 Q. So the Marshall & Winston w e l l you're t a l k i n g 

14 about i s i n Section 8? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. That w e l l looks g e o l o g i c a l l y i n f e r i o r t o a 

17 south h a l f / n o r t h h a l f w e l l i n Section 3, does i t not? 

18 A. No. Because you're s t i l l i n -- you're high i n 

19 the higher than 4 0 l i n e on t h a t one; whereas, i f you go 

20 south h a l f of n o r t h h a l f , you b a r e l y skim the 30 l i n e , so 

21 i t ' s much t h i n n e r . 

22 Q. I guess what I'm asking i s , then, i n Section 

23 15, the Hercules Federal, are those COG proposals? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. W e l l , those look i n f e r i o r a l so t o a south 
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h a l f / n o r t h h a l f of Section 3 w e l l . 

2 A. I disagree w i t h your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

3 Q. I t ' s going through the 20-foot l i n e . 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, you made 

5 your p o i n t . Go ahead and move on. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Okay. 

7 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Because the n o r t h boundry l i n e 

8 of t h i s r e s e r v o i r i s not determined, t h i s i s a l l 

9 s p e c u l a t i v e a t t h i s point? 

10 A. That's where the r i s k comes i n . 

11 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

12 Mr. Examiner. 

13 EXAMINATION 

14 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

15 Q. Can you s t a t e one more time -- I spaced i t 

16 out -- the d r i l l i n g r a t e t h a t you're asking f o r and the 

17 producing rate? 

18 A. The overhead? 

19 Q. The d o l l a r s . 

20 A. 6,500 a month f o r d r i l l i n g , and 650 f o r 

21 producing. 

22 Q. Okay. I s t h i s up on the cap? I t ' s 10 miles 

23 n o r t h of Maljamar. Does t h a t mean i t ' s r i g h t on top of 

24 the cap, or i s t h i s s t i l l o f f i n the --

25 A. I don't know the p h y s i c a l l o c a t i o n . 
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That's probably not a b i g deal. So i t looks ! 

2 l i k e on these h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n t h i s Abo -- you're j 

3 c a l l i n g i t Abo, too; r i g h t ? 

4 A. Abo/Wolfcamp. 

5 Q. Your geologic r i s k i s low, but your commercial 

6 r i s k i s p r e t t y -- i s what gets you on t h i s ; r i g h t ? j 

7 Because you're spending a l o t of money f o r these w e l l s , 

8 and yet commercially, they've got -- you've got t o pay 

9 t h a t out, and you've got t o -- so the w e l l path 

10 themselves, i s i t dependent on the r e s e r v o i r , I take i t , 

11 the d i p of the r e s e r v o i r ? Or do you t r y t o design them 

12 t o where the bottomhole l o c a t i o n of your w e l l i s higher 

13 than where i t enters the r e s e r v o i r , where your w e l l path 

14 enters i t , so you can get your drainage t o your pump 

15 b e t t e r t h a t way? 

16 A. Yes. You d e f i n i t e l y want t h a t sump. 

17 Q. You t r y t o do that? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. I s t h a t a f f e c t e d here by the o r i e n t a t i o n of 

20 the w e l l of your choice of o r i e n t i n g i t east/west? 

21 A. No. 

22 Q. I s i t because you're i n the t h i n n e r p a r t of 

23 the r e s e r v o i r so you can't c o n t r o l t h a t anyway, or would 

24 you s t i l l t r y t o do that ? 

25 A. To geosteer? I s t h a t what you're --
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1 Q. What I mean i s , your bottomhole l o c a t i o n , you 

2 want i t t o d r a i n down t o your v e r t i c a l p a r t of your w e l l ; 

3 r i g h t ? 

4 A. Urn-hum. 

5 Q. So i s t h a t d e s i r e t o do t h a t a f f e c t e d by the 

6 o r i e n t a t i o n t h a t you p i c k on the w e l l , whether i t ' s 

7 north/south or east/west i n t h i s area? 

8 A. I t h i n k your biggest job i s t r y i n g t o h i t 

9 t h i c k e s t pay. 

10 Q. I don't know i f we saw a s t r u c t u r e map here. 

11 We saw --

12 A. Isopach. 

13 Q. Okay. And what's the f r a c t u r e d i r e c t i o n out 

14 here? 

15 A. That's a very good question. There's been 

16 some work done w i t h FMIs, and there's r e a l l y not a very 

17 c l e a r p i c t u r e of f r a c t u r e o r i e n t a t i o n . I t h i n k i t ' s very 

18 i n c o n c l u s i v e a t t h i s p o i n t t o say. 

19 I t ' s my understanding there are some w e l l s 

2 0 t h a t have minimal f r a c t u r e s at a l l t h a t are d r i l l e d 

21 through, where they see j u s t a handful of f r a c t u r e s . 

22 Q. I f you don't have any f r a c t u r e s , do you s t i l l 

23 get decent production? 

24 A. With s t i m u l a t i o n . 

25 Q. So you can a c t u a l l y put a b i g f r a c job on i t 
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1 or stages of fracs? 

2 A. Yes, m u l t i p l e stages, 10 plus stages of 

3 f r a c t u r i n g . 

4 Q. What about the st r e s s d i r e c t i o n ? Does t h a t 

5 correspond w i t h the f r a c t u r e d i r e c t i o n ? I n other words, 

6 you're t r y i n g t o i n t e r s e c t your -- which s t r e s s d i r e c t i o n 

7 are you t r y i n g t o d r i l l the w e l l i n i n order t o get your 

8 completion -- successful completion on the well? 

9 A. Again, there's a l o t of discussion about what 

10 t h a t i s , and I don't t h i n k the answers are conclusive, or 

11 I'm not the person t o answer t h a t . That may be more the 

12 g e o l o g i s t . 

13 Q. So they would be l o o k i n g t o the FMIs and 

14 eve r y t h i n g , but they -- we already heard the predominant 

15 d i r e c t i o n i s east/west out here, but your f r a c jobs, you 

16 t h i n k they go alongside the wellbore, or they go orthodox 

17 t o the wellbore? 

18 A. We've had success. I t h i n k i t ' s hard t o argue 

19 w i t h the success we've seen w i t h the f r a c j o b designs 

2 0 we've been using and the w e l l o r i e n t a t i o n we've been 

21 using. 

22 Q. I guess y o u ' l l have comple t ion engineers here 

23 t o t e s t i f y today. Okay. I f you have success, t h a t ' s 

24 always a good t h i n g . 

25 What d i scount f a c t o r d i d you use on these 
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1 economics? Just b a l l p a r k . I don't need t o know COG's --

2 A. That's a PB10. 

3 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I don't have any 

4 more questions. 

5 EXAMINATION 

6 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: 

7 Q. Ms. Slaton, f o r the two w e l l s t h a t you're 

8 proposing, what's the expected EUR f o r each of them? 

9 A. I t h i n k I ' d r a t h e r t a l k i n terms of ranges. I 

10 t h i n k we could expect between 200 and 400 MBOEs per w e l l 

11 based on t h i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , which I agree w i t h . 

12 C e r t a i n l y the lower w e l l , the southern-most w e l l , would 

13 probably have higher EUR than the northernmost, because 

14 i t i s c o n t a c t i n g t h i c k e r r e s e r v o i r rock. 

15 Q. You're expecting them t o average between 2-

16 and 400 EUR? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . That's our p l a y average. 

18 Q. Have you run the p o t e n t i a l reserves on the 

19 Cimarex o r i e n t a t i o n ? 

2 0 A. Yes. That's the e x h i b i t t h a t you're seeing. 

21 I took the type curve model and reduced the recoveries, 

22 assuming t h a t 100 percent recovery i s a 160-acre w e l l ; 

23 t h e r e f o r e , an 80-acre w e l l would be h a l f the recovery. 

24 And t h a t was run on a 250 MBOE model, but t h a t ' s j u s t the 

25 model t h a t I selected, not n e c e s s a r i l y what I would 



Page 66 | 
1 assign t o these s p e c i f i c s w e l l s . j 

2 Q. I guess I understood wrong. Did you hold the 

3 reserves constant f o r both the f o u r - w e l l case and the 

4 two-well case? 

5 A. No. \ 

6 Q. No? 

7 A. No. I t ' s a v o l u m e t r i c equation w i t h 160 acres 

8 of recovery versus 80 acres or 100 or 90. So the 

9 reserves are p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced based on reduced 

10 v o l u m e t r i c . 

11 Q. You're e s t i m a t i n g t h a t your w e l l s w i l l d r a i n I 

12 160 acres and t h a t t h e i r w e l l s w i l l -- t h a t ' s the --

13 A. 16, yeah. 

14 Q. I guess what I'm g e t t i n g at i s how much more 

15 o i l would be recovered under the Cimarex proposal down t o 

16 the economic l i m i t i n a l l the cases? 

17 A. I'm s o r r y . I don't understand your question. 

18 They would recover less o i l than the Concho w e l l s . 

19 Q. They would recover less o i l than --

20 A. An i n d i v i d u a l w e l l ; t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. But the f o u r w e l l s , the t o t a l , what would 

22 be --

23 A. The e x h i b i t -- I t h i n k i t ' s 32 0 acres f o r two 

24 w e l l s f o r COG, and 370 acres f o r f o u r w e l l s f o r Cimarex. 

25 Q. So since we don't have a constant thickness 
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1 here, how much o i l would be recovered under the Cimarex 

2 proposal? 

3 A. I need a c a l c u l a t o r . You have 20 more acres, 

4 whatever you get f o r an a d d i t i o n a l 20 acres. I would say 

5 i t ' s n e g l i g i b l e a d d i t i o n a l o i l t o be recovered at the 

6 cost of d r i l l i n g f o u r w e l l s t o get 20 more acres worth of 

7 reserves. 

8 Q. 2 0 acres, what thickness? 

9 A. The same thickness i n a l l w e l l s . I j u s t 

10 assumed a constant thickness. 

11 Q. We go, e s s e n t i a l l y -- you know, i n your w e l l s , 

12 you got a 30-foot plus -- no, 50-foot plus on one of them 

13 and probably 60 on the other. Their w e l l s are going t o 

14 average somewhere i n the neighborhood of 35; r i g h t ? 

15 A. Right. I won't argue w i t h you t h a t i f you get 

16 down t o t r y i n g t o do volumetric w e l l - b y - w e l l a n a l y s i s , 

17 you w i l l get d i f f e r e n t EURs f o r each w e l l . We don't have 

18 the data t o do t h a t . I t r i e d t o keep i t simple t o 

19 express a p o i n t of v i r t u a l l y the same reserves can be 

2 0 developed w i t h two w e l l s as could be developed w i t h f o u r 

21 w e l l s . 

22 Q. But you're s t a r t i n g w i t h t h a t presumption. 

23 I'm saying by d r i l l i n g f o u r w e l l s , you're going t o d r a i n 

24 more of the r e s e r v o i r . And what would not be 

25 economically v i a b l e under your proposal would be 
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1 recovered under t h e i r proposal; r i g h t ? I s there any way 

2 we can q u a n t i f y t h a t o i l t h a t ' s not going t o be produced 

3 by development w i t h two w e l l s i n s t e a d of four? 

4 A. A c t u a l l y , I b e l i e v e t h a t we would e v e n t u a l l y 

5 d r a i n more than 320 acres. I f no one comes i n and 

6 competes w i t h us i n t h a t n o r t h h a l f w i t h an east/west 

7 w e l l , w e ' l l recover those b a r r e l s w i t h our w e l l . So i t ' s 

8 a time t h i n g . I t becomes a value issue and how long you 

9 want t o take t o get i t . 

10 Q. So t h e i r proposal would e s s e n t i a l l y be an 

11 a c c e l e r a t i o n p r o j e c t ? I s t h a t what you're saying? 

12 A. No, I don't agree w i t h t h a t so much. Because 

13 I f e e l l i k e the idea of having t o d r i l l f o u r w e l l s t o get 

14 e s s e n t i a l l y the same amount of o i l i s uneconomic. So 

15 while you may get reserves back f a s t e r , i t ' s -- you know, 

16 double the cost i s not o f f s e t t i n g the f a c t t h a t you get 

17 those reserves out a l i t t l e f a s t e r . 

18 Q. I'm saying, l o o k i n g a t the two proposals, 

19 you're going t o produce under your proposal X number of 

2 0 reserves; r i g h t ? And i f t h i n g s are done the way Cimarex 

21 i s proposing, they're going t o recover Y number of 

22 reserves. Do you know what t h a t d i f f e r e n c e is? 

23 A. I t would be the d i f f e r e n c e between -- w e l l , 

24 I'm r e l u c t a n t t o go there i n a s p e c i f i c w e l l - b y - w e l l 

25 s i t u a t i o n , because we don't r e a l l y have the data t o say 
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1 what those thicknesss are along the l i n e s of the l a t e r a l . 

2 Q. I'm saying i f i t i s as mapped by your 

3 g e o l o g i s t , and you've expressed a l o t of confidence i n 
4 t h a t map. 

5 A. We w i l l recover the same amount of reserves 

6 they recover e v e n t u a l l y --

7 Q. Okay. 

8 A. provided there's no o f f s e t w e l l d r i l l e d . 

9 Q. Okay. I'm curious about the d i f f e r e n c e i n 

10 d r i l l i n g . With the way you do i t w i t h the steerable --

11 A. Rotary s t e e r a b l e . 

12 Q. -- r o t a r y s t e e r a b l e , you're able t o , w i t h i n 4 0 

13 or 50 f e e t , apparently, i d e n t i f y the rock t h a t you're 

14 d r i l l i n g i n t o ; i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. So i f Cimarex does t h i s , and the isopach i s 

17 c o r r e c t , they're going t o be able t o save s u b s t a n t i a l 

18 money o f f t h e i r AFEs because they're going t o see they're 

19 outside of the producing horizon and save, you know, t h a t 

20 l e n g t h of l a t e r a l ; i s t h a t correct? 

21 A. No. They're s t i l l -- they're d r i l l i n g from 

22 n o r t h t o south, so they're s t i l l going t o have --

23 Q. Okay. You're r i g h t . I'm so r r y . So by your 

24 map, they're going t o be d r i l l i n g through barren 

25 formation before they get t o the pay; r i g h t ? 
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A. Correct. 

2 EXAMINER FESMIRE: No f u r t h e r questions. 

3 Mr. H a l l , do you have anything? 

4 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s 

5 witness. I n view of the a d d i t i o n a l l i n e of que s t i o n i n g 

6 t h a t ' s come up w i t h respect t o geologic issues, we'd l i k e 

7 t o r e c a l l Mr. Gawloski. 

8 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n , 

9 Mr. Bruce? 

10 MR. BRUCE: Yeah, I t h i n k I ' l l o b j e c t . 

11 They could have addressed t h i s on d i r e c t . 

12 EXAMINER FESMIRE: They're c a l l i n g a 

13 r e b u t t a l witness. 

14 MR. BRUCE: To h i s own witness. 

15 EXAMINER FESMIRE: A c t u a l l y , t o my 

16 questions. 

17 MR. BRUCE: Go ahead. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. 

19 MR. HALL: We r e c a l l Mr. Gawloski t o the 

20 stand. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Gawloski, you've 

22 been p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

23 MR. GAWLOSKI: Yes, s i r . 

24 TED GAWLOSKI ! 

25 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 
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1 REBUTTAL EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. HALL: 

3 Q. Mr. Gawloski, would you take E x h i b i t s 10 and 

4 15 before you -- or 14 or 15? 

5 A. Okay. 

6 Q. So which do you have before you? 10 and 14? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Would you e x p l a i n t o the Hearing Examiners how 

9 you a r r i v e d at your l o c a t i o n f o r your Abo/Wolfcamp 

10 pinch-out l i n e s on E x h i b i t 10 and then on E x h i b i t 14? 

11 EXAMINER FESMIRE: This i s i n r e b u t t a l t o 

12 Mr. Bruce's question? 

13 MR. HALL: Yes. And i t also goes t o some 

14 of the new questions r a i s e d by Mr. Jones w i t h respect t o 

15 geology. 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, normally we 

17 put t h i s a f t e r your case. Do you have any o b j e c t i o n t o 

18 r e c e i v i n g i t t h i s way? 

19 MR. BRUCE: No. Go ahead. 

20 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Thanks. Go ahead. 

21 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Let's compare E x h i b i t s 10 and 

22 14. I f you would compare the l i n e s you've i n d i c a t e d f o r 

23 the pinch-out of the Abo/Wolfcamp Formation i n each of 

24 those e x h i b i t s , e x p l a i n t o the Hearing Examiners how you 

25 a r r i v e d a t the l o c a t i o n s f o r each of those contour l i n e s . 
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1 A. B a s i c a l l y , the l i n e i n E x h i b i t 14 i s roughly 

2 where the 20-foot contour i s on E x h i b i t 10. B a s i c a l l y , 

3 you know, an e f f e c t i v e pinch-out i s not a l l the way t o 

4 zero. I f e e l you have t o have at l e a s t 20 f e e t t o get 

5 any -- t o get s u b s t a n t i a l reserves t o make a w e l l . 

6 That Marshall & Winston w e l l i s 14 f e e t . That 

7 wouldn't have made i t -- i f they had 14 f e e t through t h a t 

8 l a t e r a l , t h a t probably would not have made a good w e l l a t 

9 a l l . That's what they're r e f e r r i n g t o , t h i s e f f e c t i v e 

10 pinch-out. 

11 Q. What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of any r e s e r v o i r w i t h 

12 less than 2 0 f e e t of thickness t o your company? 

13 A. Well, i t would be a w e l l t h a t would d e f i n i t e l y 

14 have t o get looked a t hard as t o whether or or not i t 

15 would be pr o d u c t i v e . 

16 And Mr. Bruce d i d b r i n g up, you know, another 

17 p a r t of the map. We're a c t u a l l y l o o k i n g at -- we haven't 

18 d r i l l e d those Hercules l o c a t i o n s i n the Number 4, and 

19 we're a c t u a l l y l o o k i n g at t h a t t o see i f t h a t would be an 

20 economical place t o d r i l l . So we had t h a t new c o n t r o l 

21 p o i n t from the w e l l we d r i l l e d up i n the n o r t h p a r t of 

22 t h a t s e c t i o n , so i t ' s new data and we have not d r i l l e d 

23 t h a t w e l l y e t . 

24 Q. Ms. S l a ton was asked about her knowledge o f 

25 the s t r e s s and f r a c t u r e d i r e c t i o n s i n the area based on 
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1 FMI s t u d i e s . Do we have any a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h 

2 respect t o tha t ? 

3 A. I have looked at some FMI data t h a t was 

4 throughout the p l a y . There's not a whole l o t of i t , but 

5 what was there was in c o n c l u s i v e . 

6 F i r s t of a l l , there was very l i t t l e f r a c t u r e s 

7 even i n the r e s e r v o i r . Most of them -- one of them had 

8 only one, which i s not even enough t o conduct a r e a l l y 

9 decent study. Some of them had two and three and four, 

10 and t h e i r o r i e n t a t i o n was northwest, southeast, you know, 

11 diagonals, l i k e t h i s . Which i f you went perpendicular, 

12 the st r e s s would be i n between. So i t was c o n f l i c t i n g 

13 data. So we d i d n ' t change our d i r e c t i o n of d r i l l i n g , 

14 because we've had r e a l l y good success d r i l l i n g i t t h a t 

15 way. So t h a t data d i d not change our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

16 how we should be d r i l l i n g the w e l l s . 

17 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No questions. 

19 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

2 0 REBUTTAL CROSS-EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. BRUCE: 

22 Q. Mr. Gawloski, l o o k i n g down i n Section 15, you 

23 mentioned the Hercules Federal Number 4 --

24 A. Um-hum. 

25 Q. - - t h a t you would have t o look at t h a t . What 
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1 about the Hercules Federal Number 3? 

2 A. We probably --we have the second Hercules 

3 w e l l t h a t we're going t o d r i l l -- or proposed -- and we 

4 would evaluate t h a t t o see how t h a t would look before we 

5 would proceed i n t o the other w e l l s . 

6 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have. 

7 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Real quick question. 

8 Again, on the t r a n s f e r of the isopach t o the 

9 r e s e r v o i r e x h i b i t , j u s t i n the shape, going from the 

10 s e c t i o n l i n e between the middle of 3 t o the -- l e t ' s not 

11 go there. 

12 I have no questions. Mr. Hall? 

13 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, I have one 

14 a d d i t i o n a l e x h i b i t t o tender i n t o the record, our E x h i b i t 

15 17, our n o t i c e a f f i d a v i t f o r Case 14500. We move the 

16 admission of E x h i b i t 17, and t h a t concludes our case. 

17 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , are you going 

18 t o au t h e n t i c a t e the e x h i b i t ? 

19 MR. HALL: I t ' s my a f f i d a v i t , 

20 s e l f - a u t h e n t i c a t e . 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, any 

22 objection? 

23 MR. BRUCE: I don't have any -- I w i l l ask 

24 permission t o ask Mr. H a l l a question. 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I t ' s h i s a f f i d a v i t . I 
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1 t h i n k t h a t would be proper i n t h i s case. 

2 MR. BRUCE: Mr. H a l l , i s t h i s simply the 

3 a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e t o the p a r t i e s being pooled? 

4 MR. HALL: I t i s , known at the time of the 

5 f i l i n g of the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: You s t i l l have one 

7 p a r t y t o notice? 

8 MR. HALL: That's c o r r e c t . That's why 

9 we're asking the record t o be kept open, I t h i n k , u n t i l 

10 September 5th or beyond, t o allow us t o provide 

11 a d d i t i o n a l n o t i c e t o those r e c e n t l y discovered p a r t i e s 

12 and make w e l l proposals t o them. 

13 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any obje c t i o n ? 

14 MR. BRUCE: I don't mind i t being kept 

15 open u n t i l the 5th. I t h i n k i t might need t o be kept 

16 open longer than t h a t . But w e ' l l continue i t t o the 5th, 

17 and w e ' l l deal w i t h i t a t t h a t time. 

18 MR. HALL: That concludes our d i r e c t i n 

19 Case 14500. 

20 EXAMINER FESMIRE: E x h i b i t 17 w i l l be 

21 admitted. 

22 Ms. Munds-Dry , y o u ' v e g o t two w i t n e s s e s ? 

23 (COG E x h i b i t 17 was a d m i t t e d . ) 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes , s i r . I ' d l i k e t o 

25 c a l l Mr . Z e r k l e . 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Zerkle, you've been 

2 p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

3 MR. ZERKLE: Yes. 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Would you be so k i n d as 

5 t o , again, s p e l l your name f o r the court r e p o r t e r ? 

6 MR. ZERKLE: Z-e-r-k-l-e. 

7 JUSTIN ZERKLE 

8 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

9 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

10 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

11 Q- Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

12 record. 

13 A. J u s t i n Zerkle. 

14 Q. Where do you reside? 

15 A. Oklahoma C i t y , Oklahoma. 

16 Q. By whom are you employed? 

17 A. Chesapeake Energy. 

18 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n ? 

19 A. Landman. 

20 Q. And have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

21 D i v i s i o n ? 

22 A. I have not. 

23 Q. Would you review f o r the Examiners your 

24 education and work h i s t o r y ? 

25 A. I graduated w i t h a bachelor of a r t s from 
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1 Anderson U n i v e r s i t y i n Anderson, Indiana, w i t h a degree 

2 i n finance and investments. I then began work w i t h 

3 Chesapeake i n 2 005 i n lease records, and have worked my 

4 way up t o landman, and I'm a landman of New Mexico f o r 

5 a l l of Chesapeake's assets. 

6 Q. You've been r e c e n t l y appointed a l l the 

7 New Mexico t e r r i t o r y of Chesapeake; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t 

10 have been f i l e d on behalf of Cimarex and COG? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the st a t u s of the lands 

13 t h a t Chesapeake has ownership i n t e r e s t i n i n Section 3? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ocean, do we need t o 

16 c e r t i f y him? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I was going t o do t h a t 

18 w i t h my very next question. 

19 We would tender Mr. Zerkle as an expert i n 

20 petroleum land matters. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Zerkle, do you hold 

22 any of the CPL c e r t i f i c a t i o n s or anything l i k e t hat? 

23 THE WITNESS: I do not. 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Withstanding t h a t , i s 

25 there any obje c t i o n ? 
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1 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

2 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

3 EXAMINER FESMIRE: He w i l l be so admitted. 

4 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Would you b r i e f l y 

5 summarize the basis f o r Chesapeake's o b j e c t i o n t o the 

6 Cimarex a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r the Boxer Wells? 

8 p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h COG's a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the Leo 3 Fed Com 

9 Number 1H, located i n the south h a l f of the south h a l f of 

10 Section 3, 15 South, 31 East. And, t h e r e f o r e , because of 

11 t h a t , we ob j e c t t o Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r t h e i r Boxer 

12 3 w e l l s i n the east h a l f / e a s t h a l f and the west h a l f of 

13 the east h a l f . 

14 Q. And as you understand i t , what i s the primary 

15 reason t h a t Chesapeake decided t o j o i n w i t h COG on i t s 

16 Leo well? 

17 A. I t was p r i m a r i l y g e o l o g i c a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , 

18 and we b e l i e v e through the geology t h a t the south 

19 h a l f -- the lay-downs t h a t COG has proposed i s what we 

20 would l i k e t o pusue and p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h . 

21 Q. W i l l Chesapeake be c a l l i n g a geology expert t o 

22 f u r t h e r explore i t s reasons f o r j o i n i n g --

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. I f you could please t u r n t o what's been 

25 marked - -

7 A . Chesapeake supports and has e l ec t ed t o 
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1 MR. BRUCE: And we're going t o take these 

2 out of order, Mr. Examiners, so you know t h a t we d i d t h a t 

3 on purpose. 

4 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Turn t o what's been marked as 

5 Chesapeake E x h i b i t 4. What i s Chesapeake -- i f you could 

6 i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t and then t e l l the Examiners what 

7 Chesapeake's ownership i s i n Section 3. 

8 A. What you're l o o k i n g at i s an ownership p l o t of 

9 Section 3. Chesapeake owns 50 percent i n the southwest 

10 quarter and 12-and-a-half percent i n the west h a l f of the 

11 southeast q u a r t e r . Chesapeake does not own an i n t e r e s t 

12 i n the east h a l f of the southwest q u a r t e r . 

13 Q. And the gray i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 3? 

14 A. That's based o f f of j u s t i n t e r n a l ownership. 

15 And because we don't have t i t l e , t h a t ' s what our best 

16 guess was at t h i s time. 

17 Q. Thank you. I f you could t u r n t o what's marked 

18 as Chesapeake E x h i b i t Number 1 and i d e n t i f y and review 

19 t h i s set of documents f o r the Examiners. 

20 A. Yes. This i s Cimarex's proposal t h a t we 

21 received on A p r i l 8th. This i s f o r t h e i r Boxer 3 Fee 

22 Number 3 w e l l l o c a t e d i n the west h a l f / e a s t h a l f . 

23 Q. I s E x h i b i t Number 1 a packet c o n s t i t u t i n g a 

24 summary of communications t h a t you had w i t h Cimarex? 

2 5 A. Yes. We received the proposal l e t t e r and an 
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2 Q. So t h a t , I b e l i e v e you s a i d , was the l e t t e r 

3 dated A p r i l 8th? 

4 A. Correct. 

5 Q. And what would Chesapeake's i n t e r e s t be i n the 

6 Boxer 3 Fee Number 3 well? 

7 A. Approximately 6.2 percent. 

8 Q. And i f you could t u r n t o the bottom of the 

9 l e t t e r , I b e l i e v e i n t h a t l a s t paragraph. What does the 

10 l a s t sentence i n t h a t n e x t - t o - t h e - l a s t paragraph state? 

11 A. "An o p e r a t i n g agreement i d e n t i c a l i n form t o 

12 t h a t p r e v i o u s l y agreed upon and entered i n t o between 

13 Cimarex and Chesapeake w i l l f o l l o w under separate cover." 

14 Q. Did Chesapeake receive an op e r a t i n g agreement 

15 from Cimarex? 

16 A. Yes . 

17 Q. When was that? 

18 A. We received i t approximately June 2 5th or 

19 26th. 

20 Q. I s the f o u r t h page the cover l e t t e r w i t h t h a t 

21 operating agreement t h a t was sent t o Chesapeake? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. I b e l i e v e the 5th and 6th page i s the 

24 signature page and the cover page t h a t was sent t o the 

25 operating agreement; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Did you or any other landman from Chesapeake 

3 have any other communications w i t h anyone at Cimarex 

4 regarding t h i s proposal? 

5 A. Yes. Hugh Brower was the previous landman 

6 t h a t oversaw t h i s area, and I took t h i s area over i n l a t e 

7 June. Hugh Brower had a conversation w i t h Hayden Tresner 

8 on June 18th, and Hugh communicated t o Hayden t h a t 

9 Chesapeake had e l e c t e d t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h COG's proposal 

10 i n the south h a l f of the south h a l f , and, t h e r e f o r e , 

11 would e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h Cimarex's proposal i n the 

12 west h a l f of the east h a l f . 

13 Q. I b e l i e v e on your f i r s t l e t t e r from Cimarex, 

14 the A p r i l 8th l e t t e r , i t ' s Mr. Tresner t h a t signed the 

15 l e t t e r of the w e l l proposal; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. I f you would t u r n t o what's marked Chesapeake 

18 E x h i b i t 2 and i d e n t i f y t h i s set of documents f o r the 

19 Examiners. 

20 A. This i s the proposal t h a t Concho had sent t o 

21 Chesapeake dated A p r i l 22nd, and Chesapeake received i t 

22 A p r i l 26th. This i s COG's proposal t o d r i l l the Leo 3 

23 Fed Com 1H, l o c a t e d i n the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of 

24 Section 3, 15 South, i n Chaves County. 

25 Q. Did they include an AFE? 
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1 A. Yes. Their proposal included an AFE and a 

2 proposed o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

3 Q. What i s the t h i r d page of t h i s e x h i b i t ? What 

4 i s t h i s document? The f o u r t h page. I'm s o r r y . 

5 A. This i s the e l e c t i o n l e t t e r t h a t Hugh Brower, 

6 my predecessor, executed i n f o r m i n g COG t h a t Chesapeake 

7 e l e c t e d t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h Concho's proposed Leo 3 Fed 

8 Com 1H. 

9 Q. What date i s on the l e t t e r ? 

10 A. May 25th. 

11 Q. I f we t u r n three more pages beyond t h a t , 

12 there's a l e t t e r dated J u l y 8th. What i s t h i s l e t t e r ? 

13 A. This i s the follow-up l e t t e r . Chesapeake 

14 e l e c t e d t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n Concho's Leo 3 Fed Com 1H. 

15 Hugh Brower and Jan S p r a d l i n were working out some minor 

16 d e t a i l s as f a r as the language i n the j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

17 agreement. Therefore, when I took over the area, the 

18 o p e r a t i n g agreement was executed by Chesapeake, and we 

19 sent those executed pages t o Concho. 

20 Q. And besides these l e t t e r s , d i d you or 

21 Mr. Brower have any other communications w i t h , I guess i t 

22 would be Ms. S p r a d l i n at COG? 

23 A. Yes. We had communications t o discuss how t o 

24 proceed concerning the c o n f l i c t i n g proposals from COG and 

25 Cimarex. 
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1 Q. What i s Chesapeake's i n t e r e s t or what would 

2 Chesapeake's i n t e r e s t be i n the Leo well? 

3 A. 28.125 percent. 
4 Q. Did Chesapeake receive any other w e l l 

5 proposals from Cimarex i n Section 3? 

6 A. Yes. We received two a d d i t i o n a l proposals, 

7 the Boxer 3 Number 1 and Number 2. The Number 1 i s 

8 lo c a t e d i n the west h a l f of the west h a l f of the s e c t i o n , 

9 and 2 i s loc a t e d i n the east h a l f of the west h a l f . 

10 Q. Do you know the s t a t u s of those proposals now? 

11 A. Those have been withdrawn i n t e r n a l l y . 

12 Q. What does t h a t mean? 

13 A. Withdrawn means -- when we receive a proposal 

14 from an outside company, i t i s then routed i n t e r n a l l y , 

15 and the team reviews t h a t proposal t o see i f i t ' s a 

16 proposal t h a t the team wants t o recommend t o upper 

17 management. The team c o n s i s t s of a land manager, 

18 g e o l o g i c a l manager, engineering manager, and t h e i r 

19 subordinates. And i f they decide t h a t proposal i s 

2 0 something they want t o recommend, i t i s then routed 

21 i n t e r n a l l y t o upper management f o r approval t o 

22 p a r t i c i p a t e . 

23 So when I say "withdrawn," i t means t h a t the 

24 team does not recommend t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n those w e l l s t o 

25 upper management. Therefore, i t ' s withdrawn from our 
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1 system. 

2 Q. Are you aware of whether Chesapeake had any 

3 f u r t h e r communication from Cimarex on e i t h e r the 1H or 2H 

4 wells? 

5 A. I'm not aware of any communication. 

6 Q. You explained f o r us s o r t of i n t e r n a l l y how 

7 Chesapeake processes a w e l l proposal once you receive i t . 

8 Once you -- or Mr. Brower, I guess, i n t h i s case --

9 receive a proposal, what departments do you c i r c u l a t e a 

10 w e l l proposal to? 

11 A. Usually the proposal w i l l come t o the land 

12 department, and then the land department then would route 

13 i t t o geology and engineering f o r t h e i r review. 

14 Q. And w i l l Chesapeake be c a l l i n g -- I be l i e v e 

15 you answered t h i s -- be c a l l i n g a g e o l o g i s t t o discuss 

16 the geology i n t h i s area? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. I n summary, Mr. Zerkle, what does Chesapeake 

19 request the Examiner do i n Cases 14507, 14508 and 14500? 

20 

21 A. Chesapeake requests t h a t Cimarex's 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n s be denied and t h a t COG's a p p l i c a t i o n be 

23 granted. 

24 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , would the g r a n t i n g of COG's 

25 a p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t of conservation, the 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
b5fd8025-50bd-451 e-9dab-7fe170584bd1 



Page 85 
1 p r e v e n t i o n of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

2 r i g h t s ? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Were Chesapeake's E x h i b i t s 1 through 2 and 4 

5 e i t h e r prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t 

6 supervision? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we would 

9 move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 4. 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any objection? 

11 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

12 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

13 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 4 are 

14 admitted t o the record. 

15 (Chesapeake E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 4 were admitted.) 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t 

17 examination of Mr. Zerkle. Pass the witness. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , can I assume 

19 t h a t you won't have any questions of these witnesses? 

20 MR. HALL: I have no questions. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I won't make 

22 the same assumption about you. 

23 MR. BRUCE: I j u s t had one question of 

24 Mr. Zerkle. 

25 I s be ing appointed Chesapeake's sole landman f o r 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
b5fd8025-50bd-451e-9dab-7fe170584bd1 



Page 86 

1 New Mexico a form of punishment? 

2 No need t o answer. 

3 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce withdraws the 

4 question. 

5 Mr. Examiner? 

6 EXAMINATION 

7 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

8 Q. Was the d e c i s i o n t o go w i t h COG based s o l e l y 

9 on the acreage percentage would be higher i n t h a t w e l l , 

10 or d i d you hear other --

11 A. Are you asking as f a r as what Chesapeake's 

12 i n t e r e s t would be depending on which o r i e n t a t i o n of the 

13 well? 

14 Q. Yes. 

15 A. The de c i s i o n was based on geology, but the 

16 i n t e r e s t f o r the Boxer Wells would d i f f e r depending on, 

17 again, the proposed -- at the time, i n d i v i d u a l JOAs. I f 

18 we worked out a JOA f o r the whole s e c t i o n , i t would be. 

19 But there was no -- the i n t e r e s t d i d not p l a y a p a r t i n 

2 0 our recommendation t o the team of whether or not we would 

21 evaluate the proposals. 

22 Q. I j u s t wondered how i n t e r n a l l y you --

23 A. The geology d e f i n i t e l y i s the d r i v e r of 

24 whether or not we're going t o d r i l l or p a r t i c i p a t e i n a 

25 w e l l . The i n t e r e s t j u s t comes alongside. 
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The AFE amount, what about that? Was t h a t 

2 t a l k e d about also? 

3 A. I do not know. 

4 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I don't have any 

5 more questions. 

6 EXAMINATION 

7 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: 

8 Q. Has Chesapeake proposed any w e l l s out here on 

9 t h i s play? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Where are those wells? 

12 A. We proposed i n Section 13, 15 South, 31 East, 

13 t h a t 1 s the Wrinkle w e l l , and t h a t has been d r i l l e d and 

14 completed. 

15 Q. Make a good well? 

16 A. Right now, no. 

17 Q- That's the only w e l l they proposed out here? 

18 A. We have proposed another w e l l , the Poseidon, 

19 which i s i n Section 22, 15 South, 31 East. Cimarex would 

20 be a 50 percent p a r t n e r i n t h a t w e l l . 

21 Q. When you say we've proposed i t , have you 

22 approached Cimarex w i t h that? 

23 A. Yeah. 

24 Q. Because t h a t l o c a t i o n , i t looks l i k e i t ' s 

25 marked on t h e i r map as a Cimarex l o c a t i o n . 
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1 A. Well, there's a l e t t e r agreement between 

2 Cimarex and Chesapeake on which w e l l s w i l l be operated, 

3 and I be l i e v e i n Section 22 -- i t ' s not on t h i s p l a t 

4 here, but I b e l i e v e i t ' s the south h a l f of the n o r t h 

5 h a l f , we would operate t h a t . 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: So they would operate 

7 the one i n the n o r t h h a l f , which i s where they were 

8 l o o k i n g a t . 

9 No f u r t h e r questions. 

10 Mr. Hall? 

11 MR. HALL: No questions. 

12 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Thank you very much, 

13 s i r . 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have j u s t one follow-up 

15 on what you j u s t asked. 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. 

17 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

19 Q. This i s u n f a i r , because I know you're new t o 

2 0 the area so you're j u s t l e a r n i n g . But do you know i f the 

21 Chesapeake w e l l i n Section 10, Perseus Fed Com, i f t h a t ' s 

22 been d r i l l e d ? 

23 A. Yes, t h a t has been d r i l l e d . I b e l i e v e i t ' s 

24 being completed at t h i s time. 

25 Q. I t hasn't been completed yet? 
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No. ! 

2 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That's a l l . ; 

3 FURTHER EXAMINATION | 

4 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: j 

5 Q. I s t h a t j u s t one w e l l , or are there two w e l l s | 

6 there? 

7 A. There's another proposed one. When I say, 

8 "proposed, " a planned w e l l on our d r i l l schedule. 

9 Q • Proposed i n t e r n a l l y ? 

10 A. Correct. 

11 Q. They're both east/west wells? 

12 A. Correct. Those are d i r e c t l y south of Section j 

13 3 . 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? j 

15 MR. BRUCE: No questions. 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Zerkle, thank you 

17 very much. 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Mr. 

19 Ma r t i n . 

20 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Mar t i n , you've been 

21 p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

22 MR. MARTIN: Yes, s i r , I have. 

23 ROBERT MARTIN 

24 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : j 

25 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION j 

2 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: I 

3 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

4 record. 

5 A. Yes. Robert M a r t i n . 

6 Q- Where do you reside? 

7 A. Edmond, Oklahoma. 

8 Q. By whom are you employed? 

9 A. Chesapeake Energy Corporation. 

10 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n ? 

11 A. I'm a senior g e o l o g i s t w i t h the Permian Group. 

12 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d and your 

13 c r e d e n t i a l s made a matter of record and accepted before 

14 the D i v i s i o n ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Have you f a m i l i a r i z e d y o u r s e l f w i t h the 

17 a p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t have been f i l e d i n what are known as 

18 Cases 14507, 14508, which are Cimarex a p p l i c a t i o n s , and 

19 14500, which i s the COG a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Have you made a study of the geology i n t h i s 

22 area of Section 3? 

23 A. Yes, I have. 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We would tender Mr. Martin 

25 as an expert i n petroleum geology. 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: I s there any objection? j 

2 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . j 

3 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. M a r t i n w i l l be so j 

4 accepted. 

5 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Ma r t i n , were you the j 

6 ge o l o g i s t responsible f o r reviewing Cimarex's w e l l 

7 proposals f o r the Boxer Wells? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Did you review COG's w e l l proposal f o r the Leo 

10 Well, as well? 

11 A. Yes, I d i d . 

12 Q. As a r e s u l t of these w e l l proposals t h a t you 

13 received from Cimarex and COG, did you conduct your own < 

14 study of the geology i n t h i s Section 3? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Would you please e x p l a i n f o r the Examiner your : 

17 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the geology i n Section 3? And i f i t 

18 helps you t o r e f e r t o E x h i b i t Number 3, i f you could 

19 i d e n t i f y and review t h a t . 

20 A. Yes. I w i l l be l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t 3. E x h i b i t 

21 3 i s an i sopach of the Net Wolfcamp/Basal Abo. I t ' s 

22 based on den s i t y p o r o s i t y c u t o f f of zero percent or 

23 greate r , and i t s contour i n t e r v a l a t f i v e f e e t . 

24 What you see on the map i n the brown dashed 

25 l i n e , t h a t ' s the acreage t h a t a f f e c t s Chesapeake t h a t we ! 
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1 have a working i n t e r e s t i n . We have the three w e l l s t h a t 

2 we would be inv o l v e d i n , the Cimarex Boxer -- the only 

3 one w e ' l l t a l k about today i s the Boxer 3 Fee i n the west 

4 h a l f of the east h a l f . 

5 The squares are surface hole l o c a t i o n s . The 

6 c i r c l e s are bottomhole l o c a t i o n . The only w e l l s t h a t are 

7 showing on here are Wolfcamp w e l l s t h a t have been 

8 d r i l l e d , w i t h the exception of the Cimarex Wrinkle Well 

9 t h a t ' s been proposed f o r r e - e n t r y l a t e r a l . That i s an 

10 a c t u a l v e r t i c a l w e l l t h a t s t a r t e d t h i s whole play. 

11 That's where the Wolfcamp was found v e r t i c a l l y . 

12 I f there's not a w e l l on here, i t ' s because I 

13 don't know about i t y e t , or i t hasn't been brought t o the 

14 f r o n t as f a r as being produced y e t . I t d i s p l a y s a 

15 southwest t o northeast p o r o s i t y t r e n d . 

16 Q. Why d i d you use the zero percent c u t o f f ? 

17 A. Several years ago when P a r a l l e l and EOG, about 

18 s i x township and ranges west of here i n Chaves and Eddy 

19 County, were d r i l l i n g up the Wolfcamp h o r i z o n t a l gas 

2 0 play, we were par t n e r s i n some of those w e l l s , and t h a t ' s 

21 what they used as t h e i r c u t o f f , was the d e n s i t y p o r o s i t y . 

22 We also tend t o be l i e v e the d e n s i t y p o r o s i t y 

23 i s t i e d i n a l i t t l e b i t w i t h p e r m e a b i l i t y , because we 

24 have an in-house p e t r o p h y s i c a l group t h a t w i l l go i n and 

25 do what I consider black box c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t I don't 
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1 understand. That's j u s t a quick summary of what they do. 

2 That's the reason we use the d e n s i t y p o r o s i t y as our 

3 c u t o f f . 

4 Q. When you are lo o k i n g and recommending whether 

5 or not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l or d r i l l a w e l l , what are 

6 you l o o k i n g a t i n terms of your f e e t of pay t h a t you'd 

7 l i k e t o make an economic well? 

8 A. What I've seen i n t h i s area and the Crow F l a t s 

9 area, we l i k e t o see at l e a s t 10 f e e t . There's nothing 

10 super s c i e n t i f i c about t h a t . That's j u s t what we've seen 

11 tends t o work i n those areas f o r the b e t t e r w e l l s . 

12 Q. Do you disagree w i t h Mr. Gawloski's geology 

13 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i n h i s c u t o f f t h a t he used? I t h i n k they 

14 used 20 f e e t . 

15 A. Mr. Gawloski used more of the neutron p o r o s i t y 

16 i n the r e . I guess t h a t would tend t o add a l i t t l e b i t 

17 more pay. So mine, I b e l i e v e , i s a l i t t l e more 

18 conservative. That's -- no, I don't disagree w i t h what 

19 he's done. You can get three g e o l o g i s t s i n a room and 

2 0 get f o u r opinions. 

21 Q. I s i t f a i r t o say t h a t you used a d i f f e r e n t 

22 methodology, but your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s --

23 A. I would say they're f a i r l y s i m i l a r . We have 

24 the same type of trends. 

25 Q. On the r i g h t side I see you have a type l o g . 
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1 Would you review t h a t f o r the Examiners? 

2 A. This i s the Cimarex Energy Ent e r p r i s e 11 State 

3 2, and I've marked t h a t on E x h i b i t 3, as w e l l , where t h a t 

4 i s a t . A l l I wanted t o show there i s what i t i s t h a t we 

5 h i g h l i g h t and what we isopach as our net f e e t , the 

6 Wolfcamp. That's what the pi n k h i g h l i g h t s are. And then 

7 the t a r g e t i n t e r v a l there shows what they t a r g e t e d i n 

8 t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . That t a r g e t i n t e r v a l i s p r e t t y 

9 predominant throughout t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area of the Cedar 

10 Point. The lower p o r o s i t y zones tend t o show up. 

11 Q. I'm not sure i f I asked t h i s . Pardon me f o r 

12 backing up. What d i d you use as your main c o n t r o l w e l l 

13 f o r your isopach? 

14 A. My main c o n t r o l well? 

15 Q. For your main w e l l c o n t r o l . Did you use the 

16 Marshall & Winston Caprock well? 

17 A. Oh, t o the n o r t h , yes. That w e l l c e r t a i n l y 

18 s u r p r i s e d me, and the dry and abandoned, not much shows, 

19 and e v e r y t h i n g t o l d me t h a t the f u r t h e r n o r t h we go, we 

20 do s t a r t t o reach t h a t p o r o s i t y c u t o f f and t h a t the 

21 p o r o s i t y w i l l s t a r t t o go away w i t h i n the dolomite. 

22 Q. Based on the data you've given us here today 

23 and your study of the geology of Section 3, what i s your 

24 geologic conclusion about the p r o b a b i l i t y of d r i l l i n g an 

25 economic north/south w e l l t r e n d i n g i n the west h a l f of 
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1 the east h a l f of Section 3? 

2 A. I have very serious concerns t h a t i t would be 

3 economic. 

4 Q. Looking at Cimarex's proposal f o r Boxer Fee 

5 Number 3, do you b e l i e v e t h a t each of the qu a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

6 sections i n t h a t west h a l f / e a s t h a l f would be equally 

7 prospective? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. What i s your geologic conclusion about the 

10 p r o b a b i l i t y of d r i l l i n g an economic w e l l i n the south 

11 h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of Section 3? 

12 A. Right now, I b e l i e v e i t ' s good. 

13 Q. And s i m i l a r l y , do you b e l i e v e t h a t each of the 

14 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections i n the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of 

15 Section 3, the w e l l proposed by COG, w i l l be equally 

16 prospective? 

17 A. Can you ask t h a t again? I'm sorry. 

18 Q. Do you b e l i e v e t h a t each of the 

19 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections i n the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f 

20 w i l l be e q u a l l y prospective? Do you t h i n k t h e y ' l l each 

21 c o n t r i b u t e equally? 

22 A. Yes, I do. I'm so r r y . Yes. I was going t o 

23 say the thickness does change. I thought you were asking 

24 about t h a t . But, no, I t h i n k each one w i l l c o n t r i b u t e 

25 s i g n i f i c a n t pay. 
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1 Q. Did you recommend t o Chesapeake t h a t i t 

2 p a r t i c i p a t e i n the COG w e l l and not i n the Cimarex well? 

3 A. Yes, I do recommend the COG w e l l . 

4 Q. Why d i d you make t h a t recommendation? 

5 A. Based on the geology and the way t h a t 

6 Chesapeake has mapped t h i s or the way I have mapped i t , I 

7 bel i e v e i t i s more prospective and more economic. 

8 Q. I n your o p i n i o n w i l l the g r a n t i n g of COG's 

9 a p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t of conservation, the 

10 prevention of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

11 r i g h t s ? 

12 A. Yes, I do. 

13 Q. Was E x h i b i t 3 e i t h e r prepared by you or under 

14 your d i r e c t supervision? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we move the 

17 admission of Chesapeake's E x h i b i t 3 i n t o evidence. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any objection? 

19 MR. BRUCE: No. 

2 0 EXAMINER FESMIRE: E x h i b i t Number 3 w i l l 

21 be so admitted. 

22 (Chesapeake E x h i b i t 3 was admitted.) 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t 

24 examination of Mr. M a r t i n . Pass the witness. 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 
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MR. BRUCE: Really, j u s t one or two 

2 questions, Mr. M a r t i n . j 

3 CROS S-EXAMINATION | 

4 BY MR. BRUCE: 

5 Q. Looking down i n Section 13, t h a t w e l l has been 

6 d r i l l e d and i s producing? I 

7 A. The Wrinkle 13 Federal Com 1H? 

8 Q. Yes. | 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. I s t h a t the w e l l t h a t Mr. Zerkle mentioned was j 

11 not a very good well? j 

12 A. Right now i t ' s not, no. We are s t i l l working 1 

13 on t h a t one and are hopeful f o r a turnaround. 

14 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, j 

15 Mr. Examiner. i 

16 EXAMINATION j 

17 BY EXAMINER JONES: j 

18 Q. Mr. M a r t i n , was t h i s a l l l a i d down as 

19 limestone and i t ' s dolomitized? 

20 A. Correct. | 

21 Q. Can you e x p l a i n t o me why t h i s i s pinched out, j 

22 then? I f i t does pinch-out before the Marshall w e l l , how 

23 i s i t -- t h i s p o r o s i t y i s developed i n the dolomite; i s 

24 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

25 A. Yes. 
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I n o t i c e i t does go negative 10 on the 

2 de n s i t y . I guess i t ' s run on a lime matrix? j 

3 A. I t i s run on a limestone. Yes, t h a t ' s j 

4 c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. So you end up w i t h a p r e t t y c l e a r top t o 

6 your -- whatever you c a l l i t out here? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. 
i 

Abo or Wolfcamp? 

9 A. P r e t t y c l e a r . Your d e n s i t y comes up p r e t t y ! 

10 f a s t . 

11 Q. This i s an isopach again. What about a • 

12 s t r u c t u r e map? 

13 A. I apologize about t h a t . I t ' s more of a j 

14 northwest t o southeast d i p . I t doesn't q u i t e mimic what ) 

15 i s going on w i t h the isopach, but i t i s s i m i l a r . 

16 Q. And t h i s d o l o m i t i z a t i o n , was i t caused by 

17 waters moving through? 

18 A. That's what we b e l i e v e , t h i s was probably some 

19 k i n d of i n t e r - t o mid-shelf and the waters come i n and 

20 d o l o m i t i z e and preserve the p o r o s i t y . 

21 Q. Preserved i t ? 

22 A. Yes. The p o r o s i t y was created and preserved. 

23 Q. Well, what I'm g e t t i n g a t i s does t h a t process 

24 cause any k i n d of l i n e a t i o n s or f r a c t u r i n g i n --

25 A. Not t h a t I have seen. And the f r a c t u r i n g I 
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1 have not seen e i t h e r , so I can't answer t h a t . 

2 Q. So these logs, you can't run -- can you run 

3 them on these h o r i z o n t a l sections? 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. But you don't normally? 

6 A. No. I t ' s very expensive. 

7 Q. You j u s t normally have the gamma ray and a mud 

8 l o g through the --

9 A. Through the l a t e r a l . 

10 Q. So the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you gained, you p r e t t y 

11 much have t o d r i l l -- you gained some i n f o r m a t i o n by 

12 d r i l l i n g a h o r i z o n t a l , obviously. But you don't, 

13 obviously, have the nice logged s e c t i o n t o see. So 

14 you're d r i l l i n g along, and you may be i n a r e a l t h i n 

15 zone, but you don't -- there's no way t o t e l l , i s there? 

16 A. No. 

17 Q. So s t i l l , you're based on the c o n t r o l of the 

18 v e r t i c a l logged wells? 

19 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. You can't see t h i s on seismic; i s t h a t 

21 c o r r e c t ? 

22 A. I d o n ' t know, and I ' v e never seen seismic out 

23 here . I d o n ' t know i f they can o r n o t . 

24 EXAMINER JONES: I d o n ' t have any more 

25 ques t ions . 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: Just r e a l quick. 

2 . EXAMINATION 

3 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: 

4 Q. You don't have the BL 3 Fed Number 2 spotted 

5 on here. Why i s that? 

6 A. Which one? 

7 Q. The northernmost of the COG w e l l s i n Section 

8 3, i n the no r t h e r n h a l f of the southern h a l f of the 

9 s e c t i o n . 

10 A. Oh, I'm not sure -- t h a t ' s the only one t h a t 

11 I've p e r s o n a l l y seen t h a t ' s been c i r c u l a t e d t o me. I f i 

12 you're asking me i f I've seen the COG Leo 3 Fed Com 

13 Number 2H, I have not. ; 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. No f u r t h e r 

15 questions. Anything else? 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . That concludes 

17 our case. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Ma r t i n , thank you 

19 very much. 

20 Ms. Munds-Dry, do you have anything f u r t h e r ? 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do not. 

22 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I don't 

23 remember whether you reserved an opening statement. 

24 MR. BRUCE: I t h i n k I ' d r a t h e r reserve my 

25 comments f o r the end. 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. I bel i e v e you've 

2 got your f i r s t witness a v a i l a b l e ? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

4 HAYDEN TRESNER 

5 Having been f i r s t d uly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. BRUCE: 

8 Q. Please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

9 A. Hayden Tresner. 

10 Q. Where do you reside? 

11 A. Midland, Texas. 

12 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

13 A. Cimarex Energy Company as a landman. 

14 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

15 D i v i s i o n ? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert petroleum 

18 landman accepted as a matter of record? 

19 A. Yes, they were. 

20 Q. And i s t h i s township -- are you, w i t h i n 

21 Cimarex, responsible f o r the land matters regarding t h i s 

22 township? 

23 A. Yes, I am. 

24 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender 

25 Mr. Tresner as an expert petroleum landman. 
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1 EXAMINER FESMIRE: You've been p r e v i o u s l y 

2 sworn i n t h i s case; i s t h a t correct? 

3 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Any objection? 

5 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

7 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Are you a CPL? 

8 THE WITNESS: A Registered Professional 

9 Landman. 
10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. He w i l l be so 

11 admitted. 

12 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Tresner, I've handed you 

13 what's been marked Cimarex E x h i b i t 1, which a c t u a l l y 

14 encompasses a l l of Cimarex -- w e l l , except f o r a couple 

15 of n o t i c e e x h i b i t s and geology e x h i b i t s , so we're not 

16 going t o -- w e ' l l t r y t o keep t h i s simple. 

17 I f y o u ' l l t u r n a f t e r the f i r s t tab, what does 

18 t h a t r e f l e c t ? 

19 A. That's the shot of the acreage, the p o s i t i o n 

20 i n the Caprock area. The yellow i s Cimarex. The green 

21 i s Chesapeake and/or Chesapeake COG. The orange i s other 

22 operators. The maroon lay-down l a t e r a l s are w e l l s t h a t 

23 Cimarex has d r i l l e d t o date, both non-operated and w e l l s 

24 t h a t we d r i l l and operate. 

25 We d r i l l and operate over 20 w e l l s . I t h i n k 
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1 we've p a r t i c i p a t e d i n fo u r . And the green lay-down 

2 l a t e r a l l i n e s are pe r m i t t e d l o c a t i o n s . 

3 Q. I f you go passed the second tab, what i s that? 

4 A. That's the surface use agreement t h a t we have 

5 w i t h the land owner, B i l l Medlin. He a c t u a l l y owns fee 

6 surface t o a l l of Section 3, which i s covered under the 

7 agreement i t s e l f . 

8 Behind t h a t i s a p l a t of a l l of the t r a c t s 

9 t h a t B i l l Medlin has t h a t are covered by the surface use 

10 agreement. 

11 Q. The cross-hatched acreage? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. This agreement i s now almost a couple of years 

14 o l d ; i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Okay. And there's j u s t one agreement covering 

17 a l l of t h a t cross-hatched acreage? 

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. Let's move on t o the next tab. What i s t h a t 

20 f i r s t page? 

21 A. That i s the C-102 t h a t we f i l e d f o r the Boxer 

22 Fee Number 3 w e l l i n the west h a l f of the east h a l f of 

23 Section 3, 15, 31. 

24 Q. And Cimarex seeks t o d r i l l t h a t w e l l t o t e s t 

25 the Abo/Wolfcamp Formation? 
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1 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 Q. The surface l o c a t i o n w i l l be -- now, take a 

3 step back. The nort h e r n q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections are 

4 a c t u a l l y l o t s , are they not? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. So t h i s i s a s l i g h t l y i r r e g u l a r s e c t i o n . So 

7 although i t ' s l o t two i n the other acreage, the p r o j e c t 

8 area f o r t h i s w e l l w i l l be the west h a l f / e a s t h a l f of 

9 Section 3? 

10 A. That's c o r r e c t , d r i l l i n g from n o r t h t o south. 

11 Q. Then i f you go back about f i v e more pages t o 

12 another C-102, what does t h i s r e f l e c t ? 

13 A. That's the C-102 t h a t we f i l e d f o r the 

14 d r i l l i n g of the Boxer Fee Number 4 w e l l . 

15 Q. And the w e l l u n i t f o r t h a t w i l l be the east 

16 h a l f / e a s t h a l f of Section 3; cor r e c t ? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. And, again, i s t h a t being proposed t o be 

19 d r i l l e d from the n o r t h t o the south? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: May I ask a quick 

22 question, Mr. Bruce? 

23 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Jus t out o f c u r i o s i t y , 

25 because i t ' s been bugging me, why d i d you choose t o put a 
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1 northwest o f f s e t on t h a t between the surface l o c a t i o n and 

2 the bottomhole l o c a t i o n ? A l l the others are p r e t t y much 

3 p a r a l l e l l i n e s . Why does t h i s one have an angle t o i t ? 

4 THE WITNESS: I t h i n k my g e o l o g i s t would 

5 probably be b e t t e r t o speak on t h a t . 

6 MR. BRUCE: Are you t a l k i n g about the 

7 unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

8 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Yes. Why i s the 

9 bottomhole l o c a t i o n 600 or so f e e t f a r t h e r east from the 

10 surface l o c a t i o n ? 

11 MR. BRUCE: I was going t o f o l l o w t h a t up. 

12 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Hayden, the surface 

13 l o c a t i o n i s unorthodox, and Cimarex w i l l be applying 

14 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y f o r t h a t unorthodox l o c a t i o n ; correct? 

15 A. Correct. 

16 Q. Aren't t h e i r some surface issues out there 

17 t h a t r e q u i r e d -- o r i g i n a l l y , i t was proposed at an 

18 orthodox l o c a t i o n ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

19 A. That's t r u e . Yes. To my knowledge, there's 

2 0 something i n t h a t northeast/northeast quarter t h a t 

21 prevented us from having the standard setback l o c a t i o n . 

22 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. That answers my 

23 question. 

24 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) And then the o the r pages are 

25 s imply mat te rs t h a t are u s u a l l y a t tached t o - - the 
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1 a d d i t i o n a l s w i t h the C-102s are j u s t a d d i t i o n a l p l a t s 

2 t h a t Cimarex u s u a l l y submits w i t h an APD t o the Division? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Okay. Now, l e t ' s discuss your e f f o r t s t o 

5 o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of the p a r t i e s . When d i d 

6 Cimarex f i r s t get an ownership r e p o r t of acreage i n 

7 Section 3? 

8 A. I be l i e v e i t was toward the end of 2007. I 

9 t h i n k i n October. 

10 Q. So you've been l o o k i n g a t -- j u s t l i k e --

11 Cimarex, along w i t h COG and Chesapeake, have been i n t h i s 

12 township, l o o k i n g around f o r s i m i l a r periods of time? 

13 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. "Looking around" i s probably a very i n a r t f u l 

15 way of p u t t i n g i t . But they have been l o o k i n g at 

16 d r i l l i n g w e l l s out here f o r several years? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Under the next tab, there's a bunch of 

19 correspondence. I don't t h i n k you have t o go through i t 

2 0 l i n e by l i n e . But what does t h i s r e f l e c t ? 

21 A. These are the w e l l proposals t h a t I made f o r 

22 the Boxer 3 Fee Number 3 Well, COG's w e l l proposal. Each 

23 w e l l proposal contains a l e t t e r t h a t b r i e f l y describes 

24 how we i n t e n d t o d r i l l the w e l l , the footages and so 

25 f o r t h . I t ' s accompanied by an a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r 
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1 expenditure. 

2 And i n t h i s tab you have COG w e l l proposal, 

3 the Chesapeake w e l l proposal, and then the proposals t h a t 

4 went out t o the r e s t of the p a r t i e s , namely Chisos, Pure, 

5 La Blanco Company and F i r s t Roswell Company. 

6 Q. Okay. Now, along w i t h -- w e l l , a c t u a l l y , i n 

7 t h i s w e l l u n i t , I b e l i e v e , the Number 3 w e l l , COG 

8 a c t u a l l y does not own an i n t e r e s t ; i s t h a t correct? 

9 A. They do not. That's my understanding. 

10 Q. Behind the next tab, i s t h i s the 

11 correspondence regarding the Boxer 3 Number 4? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t , same paperwork. 

13 Q. Same paperwork? 

14 A. The w e l l proposals, the AFEs, and the 

15 d e s c r i p t i o n of how we plan t o d r i l l the w e l l . 

16 Q. Did you have phone c a l l s w i t h each of these 

17 p a r t i e s , too? 

18 A. I t a l k e d t o everyone i n v o l v e d on m u l t i p l e 

19 occasions. 

20 Q. Then i n your l e t t e r s here, i n June, you d i d 

21 submit o p e r a t i n g agreements t o the various p a r t i e s ? 

22 A. Yes. And those o p e r a t i n g agreements were 

23 signed by Cimarex and ready f o r t h e i r signatures, as 

24 w e l l . 

25 Q. Now, Cimarex has p a r t i c i p a t e d i n w e l l s w i t h 
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1 Chesapeake and COG, has i t not, i n t h i s township? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. So each of you are p r e t t y f a m i l i a r w i t h each 

4 other's p r e f e r r e d JOA forms? 

5 A. I t h i n k so, yeah. 

6 Q. I n your op i n i o n , has Cimarex made a g o o d - f a i t h 

7 e f f o r t t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of the p a r t i e s i n 

8 these w e l l u n i t s ? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Turn t o the next tab, where you set f o r t h the 

11 working i n t e r e s t ownership i n the two proposed w e l l 

12 u n i t s . Would you discuss t h a t , please? 

13 A. That's the breakdown of the ownership i n the 

14 Boxer 3 Fee Number 3 w e l l i n the west h a l f of the east 

15 h a l f , 161.06-acre spacing u n i t . The west h a l f of the 

16 northeast q u a r t e r i s owned 10 0 percent by Cimarex. The 

17 west h a l f of the southeast q u a r t e r , you have Cimarex, 

18 Chesapeake, Chisos, Pure and F i r s t Roswell Company. 

19 Those i n t e r e s t s i n the w e l l come out t o Cimarex w i t h 

20 about 70 percent Pure, Chesapeake, F i r s t Roswell and 

21 Chisos. 

22 Out of those f i v e owners, two have signed our 

23 o p e r a t i n g agreement, and t h a t ' s under the other column, 

24 the t o t a l committed i n t e r e s t s , where Cimarex has 70 

25 percent, F i r s t Roswell w i l l be i n f o r 6 and Chisos f o r 4. 
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1 Q. So i n t h i s w e l l u n i t , a t t h i s p o i n t , over 81 

2 percent of the working i n t e r e s t owners have committed t o 

3 Cimarex's w e l l ? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. What about the next page regarding the Boxer 3 

6 Well Number 4? 

7 A. Same t h i n g . I t ' s j u s t a breakdown of the 

8 ownership by t r a c t . The f i r s t t r a c t being the east h a l f 

9 of the northeast, where you have Cimarex and F i r s t 

10 Roswell. Tract 2, east h a l f of the southeast, where you 

11 have Cimarex, COG, Penroc and then a p o r t i o n of i n t e r e s t 

12 t h a t I r e a l l y am not at a p o i n t t o -- I'm t r y i n g t o 

13 f i g u r e out who owns i t . 

14 Q. I t h i n k i f you look a t -- COG submitted an 

15 i n t e r e s t ownership breakdown c h a r t . Most of t h i s i s at 

16 New Mexico Boys and G i r l s Ranch; c o r r e c t ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And w i l l Cimarex, s i m i l a r l y t o COG -- you're 

19 having t i t l e rechecked again, are you not? 

20 A. I'm a c t u a l l y having a stand-up d r i l l i n g t i t l e 

21 o p i n i o n done. 

22 Q. So there w i l l be maybe one or two a d d i t i o n a l 

23 i n t e r e s t s who may need t o be n o t i f i e d ? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. One o the r t h i n g . Let me g i v e you COG's 
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1 E x h i b i t 2. There's an i n t e r e s t t h a t COG c r e d i t s t o OXY. 

2 What i s your o p i n i o n regarding t h a t i n t e r e s t ? 

3 A. I t ' s my o p i n i o n t h a t t h a t i s a c t u a l l y owned by 

4 Cimarex. There's a recorded document i n the county 

5 records t h a t w i l l r e f l e c t t h a t . 

6 Q. So at t h i s p o i n t , you dispute COG's statement 

7 t h a t t h a t i s now an OXY or OXY/COG i n t e r e s t and t h a t t h a t 

8 i s c o n t r o l l e d by Cimarex? 

9 A. I t ' s my op i n i o n t h a t Cimarex owns t h a t 

10 i n t e r e s t , the 31 percent. 

11 Q. Okay. And i n l o o k i n g at the t o t a l committed 

12 i n t e r e s t s , Cimarex i n the east h a l f / e a s t h a l f , c o n t r o l s 

13 about 75 percent of the working i n t e r e s t ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And Penroc, again, has signed your -- F i r s t 

16 Roswell has signed the JOA f o r t h a t Number 4 w e l l ; 

17 correct? 

18 A. And so has Penroc. 

19 Q. Okay. Turning t o the next tab, there i s 

20 serie s of l e t t e r s . What do they r e f l e c t ? 

21 A. These are j u s t l e t t e r s from the partners t h a t 

22 want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposals t h a t Cimarex has 

23 made, l e t t e r s of support, the f i r s t one being from 

24 Penroc. They support Cimarex as the operator and agree 

25 t h a t the best way t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l would be from n o r t h 
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1 t o south, l i k e Cimarex has proposed. 

2 The second l e t t e r i s from Sue Ann Craddock of 

3 Chisos, who i s also a working i n t e r e s t owner i n Boxer 3 

4 Fee Number 3 Well. The t h i r d l e t t e r i s from Thomas E. 

5 Jennings of F i r s t Roswell Company, showing h i s support i n 

6 the operations t h a t Cimarex i s proposing. 

7 Q. Now, Cimarex -- j u s t a couple of questions on 

8 the basic land issues. I mean, Cimarex would have 

9 p r e f e r r e d t o have had ev e r y t h i n g t i e d up before i t went 

10 t o hearing; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

11 A. That would be c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. But COG f i l e d i t s p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n before 

13 you did? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. As a r e s u l t , Cimarex f e l t compelled t o f i l e 

16 i t s counter a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. One other t h i n g , j u s t l o o k i n g a t Section 3 i n 

19 general, when i t comes t o ownership, as t o the northwest 

20 q u a r t e r of Section 3, who i s the working i n t e r e s t owner 

21 there i n the Abo/Wolfcamp? 

22 A. We're a c t u a l l y g e t t i n g a stand-up t i t l e 

23 o p i n i o n done on t h a t northeast quarter, as w e l l . I've 

24 g o t t e n a v e r b a l . 

25 Q. I'm asking about the northwest q u a r t e r . 
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1 A. The northwest? Okay. Same there. I t ' s 

2 c u r r e n t l y being examined, and i t ' s my o p i n i o n t h a t we own 

3 100 percent of the northwest and most of the northeast 

4 qu a r t e r . 

5 Q. On one of the e x h i b i t s , i t was shown t o be 

6 Kevin O. B u t l e r & Associates, I nc., who does operate 

7 c e r t a i n w e l l s i n a u n i t out the r e . But does Cimarex have 

8 an agreement w i t h B u t ler? 

9 A. We have a term assignment from Kevin 0. B u t l e r 

10 & Associates t h a t covers h i s r i g h t s below the base of the 

11 south Caprock Queen Unit below the depths of 5,500 f e e t . 

12 Q. Now, going back t o some of the proposal 

13 l e t t e r s , you had Cimarex's AFE attached t o those proposal 

14 l e t t e r s . What cost does Cimarex p r o j e c t on those wells? 

15 A. I bel i e v e i t ' s 3.8 -- $3,776,971. 

16 Q. I s t h a t a reasonable cost and i s t h a t cost i n 

17 l i n e w i t h the cost of other w e l l s d r i l l e d t o t h i s depth 

18 i n t h i s area of Chaves County? 

19 A. As f a r as I'm concerned, yes. 

2 0 Q. How many w e l l s has Cimarex d r i l l e d i n t h i s 

21 township? 

22 A. Approximately 2 0 w e l l s t h a t we've d r i l l e d and 

23 continue t o operate. 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Sorry. Can you r e s t a t e 

25 those r a t e s again? 
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1 MR. BRUCE: That was my next question. 

2 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) What overhead r a t e s does 

3 Cimarex propose? 

4 A. I b e l i e v e d r i l l i n g , 7,000, and producing, 700. 

5 Q. Are those rates comparable t o those used by 

6 other operators i n t h i s township? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. I f a working i n t e r e s t owner e l e c t s t o go 

9 non-consent i n these w e l l s , do you request a 200 percent 

10 r i s k charge be assessed against them? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And do you propose t h a t Cimarex Energy Company 

13 of Colorado be appointed the operator of these wells? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. That's the op e r a t i n g arm of Cimarex? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of Cimarex's 

18 a p p l i c a t i o n s and the d e n i a l of COG a p p l i c a t i o n i n the 

19 i n t e r e s t of conservation and the prevention of waste? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Were the land e x h i b i t s you discussed under 

22 Tabs 1 through 6 of E x h i b i t 1 prepared by you or under 

23 your s u p e r v i s i o n or compiled from company business 

24 records? 
25 A. Yes. 
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1 MR. BRUCE: May I approach the witness? 

2 EXAMINER FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

3 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Hayden, I've handed you a 

4 couple of a d d i t i o n a l e x h i b i t s . 

5 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Before we go any 

6 f a r t h e r , you were t a l k i n g about Tabs 1 through 6. 

7 MR. BRUCE: Yeah. U n f o r t u n a t e l y , I'm 

8 counting them, r a t h e r than having them labeled. But i f 

9 you'd go through the f i r s t seven tabs, I apologize. 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Through the working 

11 i n t e r e s t c a l c u l a t i o n s i n the Boxer 3 Fee? 

12 MR. BRUCE: Through the l e t t e r s from 

13 Penroc, et a l . 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: That would be, from my 

15 count, e i g h t . No. You're r i g h t . I'm sorr y . I 

16 apologize. 

17 MR. BRUCE: The f i r s t seven. 

18 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Tresner, E x h i b i t 2, what 

19 does E x h i b i t 2 r e f l e c t ? 

20 A. That i s -- those are the company's t h a t we 

21 n o t i f i e d and t h e i r o f f s e t operators or working i n t e r e s t 

22 owners adjacent sections or t r a c t s . 

23 Q. And i n the past, the D i v i s i o n has r e q u i r e d 

24 i n t e r e s t -- operators f o r c e p o o l i n g a non-standard u n i t 

25 t o n o t i f y the o f f s e t operators or working i n t e r e s t owners 
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1 i n t h a t formation; i s t h a t correct? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Was n o t i c e given t o a l l of those o f f s e t 

4 operators? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. I s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n my a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e 

7 submitted as E x h i b i t 3? 

8 A. I've got 1 and 4. I don't have E x h i b i t 3. 

9 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I've got 2 and 3. 

10 A. Yes, t o answer your question. 

11 MR. BRUCE: And Mr. Examiner, E x h i b i t 4 i s 

12 my a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e t o the i n t e r e s t owners being 

13 pooled. You w i l l note t h a t I d i d not -- Pure Energy, I 

14 do not show a green card f o r them. That was returned, 

15 and t h a t ' s why I have t o -- I have r e - n o t i f i e d , but as a 

16 r e s u l t , t h a t ' s another reason we need t o continue t h i s 

17 matter. I t h i n k I gave n o t i c e t o -- t h e i r address 

18 changed w i t h i n the past month or so, and I d i d get n o t i c e 

19 f o r the August 5th hearing, I b e l i e v e . 

2 0 As I said, I move the admission of the f i r s t 

21 seven tabs of E x h i b i t 1 and E x h i b i t s 2, 3 and 4. 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 MR. HALL: I ob j e c t t o the one unsigned 

24 l e t t e r from Mr. Merchant. Otherwise, no o b j e c t i o n . 

25 MR. BRUCE: That o b j e c t i o n i s f i n e . We 
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1 w i l l submit another one. 

2 EXAMINER FESMIRE: So we w i l l admit 

3 e x h i b i t s --we w i l l admit those e x h i b i t s i n E x h i b i t 1 

4 t h a t are should have been numbered 1 through 6 --

5 MR. BRUCE: 1 through 7. 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: -- 1 through 6, and we 

7 w i l l c o n d i t i o n a l l y admit Number 7 pending p r e s e n t a t i o n of 

8 a signed copy. 

9 MR. BRUCE: And E x h i b i t s 2 through 4? 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: And E x h i b i t s 2 through 

11 4. 

12 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

13 (Cimarex Tabs 1 through 6 of E x h i b i t 1, E x h i b i t s 2, 3, 

14 and 4 were admitted.) 

15 MR. BRUCE: I pass the witness. 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

17 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. HALL: 

19 Q. Mr. Tresner, I want t o ask you about your 

2 0 surface use agreement w i t h Medlin. Can you t e l l us how 

21 f a r along Cimarex i s i n n e g o t i a t i n g surface damages w i t h 

22 Mr. Medlin f o r your proposed loca t i o n s ? 

23 A. For these proposed l o c a t i o n s , a l l we've done 

24 i s put f o u r stakes i n the ground. We're not q u i t e there 

25 yet on s e t t l i n g any k i n d of damages. 
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1 Q. Has a s i t e v i s i t occurred? 

2 A. No. S i t e v i s i t s have occurred, but not f o r 

3 these f o u r w e l l s . 

4 Q. A s i t e v i s i t has not occurred w i t h Mr. Medlin? 

5 A. Not f o r these f o u r w e l l s , no. 

6 Q. When were you f i r s t aware t h a t the Marshall & 

7 Winston w e l l i n Section 3 5 was abandoned? 

8 A. Gosh, I couldn't t e l l you. Probably s h o r t l y 

9 a f t e r they d r i l l e d through the l a t e r a l and d i d n ' t 

10 encounter what they wanted t o f i n d . 

11 Q. I s i t accurate t o say t h a t Cimarex's w e l l 

12 proposals were p r e c i p i t a t e d by the Marshall & Winston 

13 dryhole? 

14 A. Not at a l l . 

15 Q. Had no bearing on Cimarex's d e c i s i o n t o o r i e n t 

16 these wells? 

17 A. No. 

18 Q. I understood your testimony t h a t your w e l l 

19 proposals, based on your e x h i b i t s , went out on A p r i l 8th; 

20 i s t h a t correct? 

21 A. The w e l l proposals t o COG and Chesapeake went 

22 out on A p r i l 8th. 

23 Q. And your w e l l proposal d i d not include a JOA; 

24 i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

25 A. Did not. 
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When d i d your JOA go out t o the p a r t i e s ? 

2 A. The operating agreements were mailed t o a l l of 

3 the working i n t e r e s t owners except COG and Chesapeake. 

4 Q. And why the delay? 

5 A. We're both p r e t t y f a m i l i a r w i t h each f i r m ' s 

6 op e r a t i n g agreement, and they know what t o expect. 

7 Co­ Do you provide COG w i t h the exact same form of 

8 op e r a t i n g agreement f o r every w e l l proposal? 

9 A. For these f o u r w e l l s ,yes. 

10 Q. Only i n these f o u r wells? 

11 A. And i n other w e l l s . 

12 Q. Have you provided them w i t h proposed operating 

13 agreements t h a t d i f f e r from what were proposed f o r these 

14 wells? 

15 A. Over the course of the past almost three 

16 years, I'm assuming I probably have. 

17 Q. When d i d you request your d r i l l i n g order t i t l e 

18 o p i n i o n t o be commenced? 

19 A. Between two t o three weeks ago. 

20 Q. And before t h a t --

21 A. Possibly a l i t t l e b i t longer. 

22 Q. And before t h a t time, what were you working 

23 w i t h t o determine ownership i n Section 3? 

24 A. Some f i e l d ownership r e p o r t s t h a t had been 

25 

1—Uasaa 

provided by f i e l d c o n t r a c t -- f i e l d landmen. 
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1 Q. I b e l i e v e you i n d i c a t e d t h a t i t was your 

2 understanding, based upon, I b e l i e v e you said documents 

3 of record, t h a t Cimarex was the owner of the i n t e r e s t s 

4 acquired from Bold; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

5 A. That i s my op i n i o n . The east h a l f of the 

6 southeast q u a r t e r of Section 3 was included under our 

7 assignment from Bold. 

8 Q. And have you p e r s o n a l l y read the instrument of 

9 record you were r e f e r r i n g t o t h a t e s t a b l i s h e d that? 

10 A. I have, but not w i t h i n the past month or so. 

11 Q. Do you know i f i t describes Section 3? 

12 A. I'm confident t h a t i t does. 

13 Q. Let's look a t what we've marked as COG E x h i b i t 

14 18. I s t h i s the instrument you were r e f e r r i n g to? 

15 A. These are the two assignments t h a t we acquired 

16 from Bold Energy. 

17 Q. And i s t h i s a p a r t i a l assignment of o i l and 

18 gas and mineral lease t h a t ' s f i l e d of record i n Book 605, 

19 page 851? 

20 A. This appears t o be the one. 

21 Q. And i f you look a t E x h i b i t A t o t h a t 

22 assignment, does i t describe Section 3? 

23 A. No. And I probably should have mentioned 

24 t h i s , t h a t we went back and got an amendment signed of 

25 these two assignments. Both Bold and OXY signed t h a t 
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1 amendment, and I t h i n k the amendment covers t h i s Section 

2 3 p r o p e r t y . 

3 Q. I s i t a c o r r e c t i v e assignment? 

4 A. B a s i c a l l y , yes. 

5 Q. And i s i t f i l e d of record? 

6 A. The one t h a t I'm t h i n k i n g o f, yes, i t i s . 

7 Q. Would you know book and page number? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. Date? 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. Would you agree, based on your f a m i l i a r i t y 

12 w i t h o i l and gas land t r a n s a c t i o n s i n Chavez, Eddy, Lea 

13 County, t h a t any of the Bold i n t e r e s t s t h a t were not 

14 assigned t o Cimarex, were acquired by OXY? 

15 A. And t h a t ' s why they signed the amendment. 

16 Q. Mr. Tresner, i s there any land issue t h a t 

17 prevents Cimarex from e s t a b l i s h i n g lay-down u n i t s i n the 

18 n o r t h h a l f of Section 3? 

19 A. Land issues t h a t would prevent us from 

20 d r i l l i n g lay-down l a t e r a l s versus stand-up? 

21 Q. Yes. 

22 A . Not t h a t I ' m aware o f . 

2 3 MR. HALL: N o t h i n g f u r t h e r , Mr . Examine r . 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k I have a f ew 
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1 questions. I'm going t o see i f I can f i g u r e out t h i s tab 

2 system t h a t Mr. Bruce put together f o r us. 

3 THE WITNESS: That was a c t u a l l y my doing. 

4 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That you c a r e f u l l y put 

5 together f o r us. I be l i e v e i t ' s Tab 2. I'm lo o k i n g f o r 

6 the C-102s. 

7 THE WITNESS: The t h i r d one, I be l i e v e . 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

9 CROSS-EX7AMINATI0N 

10 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

11 Q. I j u s t want t o make sure I understand your 

12 testimony. You sa i d t h a t these C-102s were f i l e d ? 

13 A. These are the C-102s t h a t our r e g u l a t o r y 

14 department has generated --

15 Q. So they haven't been --

16 A. t h a t w i l l be f i l e d , i f they haven't 

17 already. 

18 Q. I see. I wanted t o make sure I understood 

19 t h a t . Thank you. 

20 Now, where i s the l e t t e r w i t h the operating 

21 agreement? I t h i n k i t ' s i n the next tab. 

22 A. Yeah, toward the back, the l e t t e r s t h a t I sent 

23 out. 

24 Q. I see. Those l e t t e r s are dated June 24 th ; i s 

25 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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1 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 Q. Do you r e c a l l a conversation you had w i t h 

3 Mr. Brower at Chesapeake? 

4 A. I've had m u l t i p l e conversations w i t h 

5 Mr. Brower. 

6 Q. Do you r e c a l l a conversation you had on June 

7 18th w i t h Mr. Brower? 

8 A. Not n e c e s s a r i l y . 

9 Q. Okay. I f you could go t o the tab t h a t i s two 

10 back, t h a t gives the i n t e r e s t breakdown. 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. As I understand t h i s document, i t shows -- i t 

13 breaks down f o r each of the 8 0 acres i n your proposed 

14 non-standard spacing u n i t and p r o j e c t area; i s t h a t 

15 correct? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Does Cimarex have an i n t e r e s t i n each of the 

18 40 acres i n the p r o j e c t area? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Mr. Tresner, I don't know i f you know t h i s , 

21 but I b e l i e v e t h a t Mr. Bruce asked you i f Cimarex Energy 

22 of Colorado should be named the operator? 

23 A. Um-hum. 

24 Q. Do you know why i t i s t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n was 

25 brought by Cimarex Energy Company? 
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1 A. The a p p l i c a t i o n ? No, I don't. 

2 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Okay. That's a l l the 

3 questions I have. Thank you. 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Examiner? 

5 EXAMINATION 

6 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

7 Q. So there was no n o t i c e sent t o OXY; i s t h a t 

8 correc t ? 

9 A. No. No, s i r . 

10 Q. Because i n your t i t l e search, you found t h a t 

11 OXY's -- the land t h a t was presumed t o be OXY's was 

12 a c t u a l l y --

13 A. By Cimarex. Yes. 

14 Q. -- owned by Cimarex? So there i s no no t i c e 

15 t o OXY yet . So i t seems l i k e there's a b i t of a t i t l e 

16 dispute i n t h i s matter i n t h i s whole area. But you're 

17 p r e t t y convinced t h a t you guys don't a l l use the same guy 

18 i n the courthouse, I would guess, d i f f e r e n t person, 

19 but --

20 A. Yeah. 

21 Q. This Kevin B u t l e r , you d i d provide him no t i c e 

22 as p a r t of the o f f s e t t o the NSP, but you sa i d t h e i r 

23 acreage i s a c t u a l l y c o n t r o l l e d now by Cimarex? 

24 A. Yes. Cimarex c o n t r o l s Kevin B u t l e r ' s Wolfcamp 

25 and Abo r i g h t s under t h i s p r o p e r t y , these t r a c t s , Section 
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1 3 . 

2 Q. What would be the -- i f you take the south 

3 h a l f of Section 3, south h a l f equivalent of Section 3, 

4 what would Cimarex's i n t e r e s t be? 

5 A. I n the west h a l f of the southeast quarter, 

6 Cimarex owns 4 0 percent i n t h a t t r a c t . And i n the east 

7 h a l f of the southeast q u a r t e r , Cimarex owns approximately 

8 34 percent. So 34 percent times a quarte r , and 40 

9 percent times a quarte r , would give you --

10 Q. Nothing i n the southwest? 

11 A. No. That's a c t u a l l y owned by Chesapeake and 

12 COG, f i f t y - f i f t y . 

13 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I have no more 

14 questions. 

15 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Anything f u r t h e r , Mr. 

16 Bruce? 

17 MR. BRUCE: One question. I wanted t o 

18 c l a r i f y what Ms. Munds-Dry asked you. 

19 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 0 BY MR. BRUCE: 

21 Q. Cimarex Energy Company owns the a c t u a l working 

22 i n t e r e s t ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And Cimarex Energy Company o f Colorado i s the 

25 o p e r a t i n g e n t i t y ? 
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1 A. Yeah. 

2 Q. So the a p p l i c a t i o n s were f i l e d i n the name of 

3 the working i n t e r e s t owner? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l . 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

7 MR. HALL: Nothing. 

8 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Thank you very much, 

9 Mr. Tresner. 

10 THE COURT REPORTER: Can we take a break? 

11 EXAMINER FESMIRE: We've worn the court 

12 r e p o r t e r out, so l e t ' s take a ten-minute break. 

13 (A recess was taken.) 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Let's go back on the 

15 record. The record should r e f l e c t t h a t we've reconvened 

16 i n Cases 14500, 14507 and 14508. 

17 I b e l i e v e , Mr. Bruce, t h a t you were about t o 

18 c a l l your next witness. 

19 MR. BRUCE: Yes, our g e o l o g i s t . 

2 0 EXAMINER FESMIRE: His name is? 

21 MR. BRUCE: Ralph Worthington. 

22 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Worthington, you've 

23 been p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

24 MR. WORTHINGTON: Yes. 

25 MR. BRUCE: L a t e l y , I've taken t o 
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1 numbering those tabs, so w e ' l l s t a r t w i t h Tab 8. 

2 RALPH WORTHINGTON 

3 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record? 

7 A. Ralph Worthington. 

8 Q. Where do you reside? 

9 A. Midland, Texas. 

10 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

11 A. Cimarex Energy Company and I'm a r e g i o n a l 

12 geologic manager. 

13 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

14 D i v i s i o n ? 

15 A. Yes, I have. 

16 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert petroleum 

17 g e o l o g i s t accepted as a matter of record? 

18 A. Yes, they were. 

19 Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y at Cimarex 

20 include t h i s p o r t i o n of Chaves County? 

21 A. Yes, i t does. 

22 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. 

23 Worthington as an expert petroleum engineer -- petroleum 

24 g e o l o g i s t . 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you have 
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1 any objection? 

2 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

4 EXAMINER FESMIRE: H e ' l l be so accepted. 

5 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) I f you could look at your 

6 f i r s t p l a t , and could you describe t h a t f o r the 

7 Examiners? 

8 A. This i s a n i n e - s e c t i o n p l a t showing the area 

9 of i n t e r e s t , Section 3, centered i n the p l a t . I have an 

10 isopach and a s t r u c t u r e map depicted on t h i s map. 

11 The s t r u c t u r e map i s i n d i c a t e d by the gray 

12 l i n e s w i t h the higher side t o the northwest corner and 

13 lower area t o the southeast coroner. The black l i n e 

14 represents the isopach of the p o r o s i t y w i t h i n the lower 

15 Abo dolomite i n t e r v a l . That i s our t a r g e t i n t e r v a l . 

16 Also on the map, I've got spotted various 

17 w e l l s and l o c a t i o n s and permits and s t u f f l i k e t h a t . 

18 I've also got a l i n e i n d i c a t i n g the l i n e of 

19 cross-section, which i s going t o be my next e x h i b i t . And 

2 0 the yellow acreage c o l o r here represents Cimarex's 

21 leasehold. 

22 Q. Before I ask you some questions on t h i s , why 

23 don't we go t o the next tab and discuss your 

24 cross-section? 

25 A. This i s a cross-section that goes from north 
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1 t o south i n d i c a t e d by the red l i n e on the nin e - s e c t i o n 

2 p l a t . I t shows logs from the three w e l l s t h a t connected 

3 the one t o the n o r t h , the Gulf O i l Company Caprock Un i t . 

4 As i n d i c a t e d on previous maps, t h i s i s a 1958 sonic l o g 

5 and i n d u c t i o n a l e l e c t r i c l o g . 

6 And f o r t h i s i n t e r v a l , we only have a one-inch 

7 scale, so i t i s a -- what I would q u a l i f y as a poor l o g , 

8 b a r e l y able t o c o r r e l a t e w i t h , l e t alone t r y t o do any 

9 k i n d of an a l y s i s w i t h as f a r as i d e n t i f y i n g p o r o s i t y . 

10 The second -- and on t h a t I have the sonic l o g on the 

11 l e f t column and the i n d u c t i o n e l e c t r i c l o g on the r i g h t . 

12 The next one i s the Marshall & Winston Caprock 

13 State Well t h a t was p r e v i o u s l y discussed as the only dry 

14 hole w i t h i n t h i s t r e n d . Y o u ' l l n o t i c e on the l e f t side 

15 of my wellbore, there i s not a p o r o s i t y l o g . There was 

16 not a p o r o s i t y l o g ran i n t h i s w e l l . 

17 According t o the comments on the w e l l header 

18 f o r the r e s i s t i v i t y l o g , there were o l d problems, and the 

19 operator requested t h a t the o p e r a t i n g company or the 

2 0 Schlumberger or whoever logged i t , not t o run t h a t l o g . 

21 And then t o the r i g h t of t h a t i s a mud l o g of t h a t 

22 v e r t i c a l p i l o t hole. 

23 The t h i r d w e l l i n the cr o s s - s e c t i o n i s the 

24 Cimarex Energy Company Wasp 2 State Number 1, which i s 

25 the southern-most w e l l on t h i s c r o s s - s e c t i o n . And, 
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again, I have a p o r o s i t y l o g i n the l e f t - h a n d column. 

2 Right of the wellbore column, I have the r e s i s t i v i t y l o g , j 

3 and t o the r i g h t of t h a t i s the mud l o g t o t h a t i n t e r v a l . j 

4 I have the various tops marked across the 

5 

6 

c r o s s - s e c t i o n . 7And I've also i d e n t i f i e d the p o r o s i t y i n 

the Wasp w e l l by the c o l o r green through there and j 

7 i d e n t i f i e d t h a t as the h o r i z o n t a l t a r g e t . 

8 Q. I s t h a t a r e c e n t l y d r i l l e d well? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. That's p a r t of the l o g t h a t Mr. Gawloski wants 

11 t o get h i s hands on; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. That's what he said, yes. 

13 Q. Let's go back t o your f i r s t e x h i b i t . You j 

14 d r i l l a zero l i n e f u r t h e r t o the n o r t h than your two j 

15 f e l l o w g e o l o g i s t s do? j 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. Why do you do that? 

18 A. Because I don't r e a l l y have a data p o i n t t h a t 

19 t e l l s me I ve got zero p o r o s i t y . I've got vague 

20 i n d i c a t o r s t h a t the zone i s g e t t i n g t i g h t e r as we go t o 

21 the n o r t h , and then I'm assuming t h a t t h a t Gulf w e l l 

22 there i n Section 34 i s a zero p o r o s i t y w i t h i n t h a t 

23 i n t e r v a l . 

24 But the Caprock Well t h a t we t a l k e d about 1 

25 before, my argument would be t h a t we don't have a 
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1 p o r o s i t y l o g so, t h e r e f o r e , I can't put a value on t h a t 

2 p o r o s i t y map. We do have i n d i c a t o r s from mud logs and 

3 from the r e s i s t i v i t y l o g , but the i n t e r v a l i n question, 

4 has some thickness t o i t . We j u s t don't know what the 

5 p o r o s i t y i s or anything l i k e t h a t . The mud l o g does 

6 i n d i c a t e a show w i t h i n t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

7 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , there i s some r e s e r v o i r i n 

8 the Marshall & Winston well? 

9 A. P o t e n t i a l l y , yes. 

10 Q. Now, from a geologic standpoint, why would you 

11 p r e f e r t o d r i l l these w e l l s as stand-up wells? 

12 A. From a standpoint of i d e n t i f y i n g where our 

13 boundary i s , we s t i l l have t h a t as a b i g unknown, so we 

14 need a good data p o i n t t o t r y t o prove t h a t ' s the r e s t of 

15 our leasehold. We need data p o i n t s at the n o r t h p a r t of 

16 t h a t s e c t i o n . 

17 Secondly, from a geosteering standpoint, 

18 d r i l l i n g from an unknown back t o a known i s much more 

19 comforting t o our geosteering s p e c i a l i s t s , because they 

20 have a t a r g e t t h a t they can aim f o r . With our Wasp w e l l 

21 p i l o t hole i n the southwest/southwest of Section 2, we 

2 2 have a very t h i c k porous i n t e r v a l t h a t we can d i r e c t our 

23 wellbore towards. 

24 Q. So the geosteering could s t a r t where i t ' s an 

25 unknown but d e f i n i t e l y go t o a known, a well-known data 
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1 p o i nt? 

2 A. But i t would be a known when we d r i l l a p i l o t 

3 hole. So i t ' s an unknown today. We d r i l l a p i l o t hole, 

4 then we would have t h a t second piece of the puzzle. 

5 Q. And you're not w i l l i n g t o condemn acreage i n 

6 the n o r t h h a l f of Section 3? 

7 A. A b s o l u t e l y not. 

8 Q. On the other hand, i t ' s not your job -- i t ' s 

9 c e r t a i n l y not your j o b t o recommend d r i l l i n g dryholes t o 

10 your management? 

11 A. No, s i r , i t ' s not. 

12 Q. I'm going t o hand you --

13 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Would you l i k e t o 

14 approach the witness? 

15 MR. BRUCE: I f I may. 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

17 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) I've handed you Mr. Gawloski's 

18 E x h i b i t 10. I n l o o k i n g at t h a t , what Cimarex proposes t o 

19 do w i t h the Boxer Numbers 3 and 4 doesn't appear t o be 

20 much d i f f e r e n t than what Cimarex has done w i t h i t s 

21 F r a n k l i n 18 Fee Number 4 w e l l over i n Section 18; 

22 correct? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

24 Q. And that well has been d r i l l e d ? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Are you planning on d r i l l i n g the next w e l l , 

2 the 18 Number 3, i n the west h a l f / e a s t h a l f of Section 

3 18? 

4 A. Yes, we are. 

5 Q. I t h i n k the engineer w i l l discuss t h a t w e l l 

6 f u r t h e r , but does t h a t w e l l look t o be a successful t e s t ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Would t h a t also support your d e c i s i o n t o d r i l l 

9 these w e l l s on a stand-up basis? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l each q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

12 s e c t i o n , from what you know now, each q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

13 s e c t i o n i n the Boxer 3 Number 3 and the Boxer 3 Number 4 

14 w e l l s be productive from the Abo/Wolfcamp formation? 

15 A. Yes, I be l i e v e i t w i l l be. 

16 Q . I know you, b a s i c a l l y , answered t h i s , but 

17 comparing the maps of the three g e o l o g i s t s today, do you 

18 b e l i e v e t h a t the e f f e c t i v e p o r o s i t y l i n e i s b a s i c a l l y i n 

19 the middle of Section 3? 

2 0 A. I would say I have no idea. I t could be much 

21 f u r t h e r n o r t h . I t ' s probably not much f u r t h e r south, but 

22 without a data p o i n t --

23 Q. I t ' s s p e c u l a t i v e a t t h i s p o int? 

24 A. Yes, i t i s . 

25 Q. And i s i t i n the i n t e r e s t o f a l l the opera tors 
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t o get a f i r m idea on the northern boundary of t h i s | 

2 r e s e r v o i r ? 1 

3 A. Absolutely. 

4 
ii 

Q. And i t ' s not j u s t Cimarex t h a t i t would j 

5 b e n e f i t ? ! 

6 A. No. 

7 Q. One f u r t h e r p o i n t . You sa i d t h a t you would 

8 p r e f e r t o s t a r t at a c e r t a i n p o i n t and d r i l l toward known j 

9 c o n t r o l ? 

10 A. Yes. i 

11 Q. COG's w e l l does e x a c t l y the opposite, does i t ] 

12 not? j 

13 A. Yes, i t does. ! 

14 Q. So i t ' s d r i l l i n g west t o where they propose j 

15 t h a t i t t h i n s out? 

16 A. Yes. Without a c o n t r o l p o i n t there, you 

17 r e a l l y don't know. The nearest c o n t r o l p o i n t i s way down 

18 halfway i n the s e c t i o n -- west h a l f of Section 9. So 

19 they're l i t e r a l l y over two miles away from the nearest 

20 c o n t r o l p o i n t . 

21 Q. And so from t h a t standpoint, you be l i e v e 

22 Cimarex's w e l l proposals f o r the 3 and 4 w e l l s are 

23 p r e f e r a b l e t o COG's? 

24 A. Yes, I do. 

25 MR. BRUCE: Do you have any other comments j 
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1 on your e x h i b i t s , Mr. Worthington? 

2 A. I don't b e l i e v e I do. Yeah. I may say j u s t 

3 t o c l a r i f y a l i t t l e more on the map, t h i s does show j u s t 

4 those w e l l s d r i l l e d down t o the Abo/Wolfcamp i n t e r v a l , 

5 because there are shallow w e l l s out here i n t h i s area but 

6 I l e f t them o f f the map. 

7 Q. Over t o the n o r t h and west, there's a Queen 

8 waterflood? 

9 A. I t i s a Queen w a t e r f l o o d , yes, an o l d 

10 abandoned Queen w a t e r f l o o d or p a r t i a l l y abandoned. 

11 Q. Okay. Did you prepare the s t r u c t u r e map and 

12 the cros s - s e c t i o n f o r p r e s e n t a t i o n today? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of 

15 Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n s i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation 

16 and the preven t i o n of waste? 

17 A. Yes, i t i s . 

18 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the 

19 admission of the e x h i b i t s behind Tabs 8 and 9, the 

20 c r o s s - s e c t i o n and the s t r u c t u r e map. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

22 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: The cross-section of 

25 maps between those tabs t h a t should have been numbered 8 
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and 9 will be so admitted. \ 

2 Mr. Hall? | 

3 (Cimarex Tabs 8 and 9 of E x h i b i t 1 were admitted.) | 

4 CROSS-EXAMINATION j 

5 BY MR. HALL: 

6 Q. Mr. Worthington, what r o l e d i d the abandonment 

7 of the Marshall & Winston Caprock State Well i n Section j 

8 35 have i n Cimarex's d e c i s i o n t o o r i e n t these u n i t s j 

9 stand-ups? 

10 A. Well, I don't know t h a t i t had much of a r o l e , 

11 other than, i f anything, i t r e i n f o r c e d our determination 

12 t o t r y t o e s t a b l i s h some k i n d of a c o n t r o l p o i n t t o the 

13 boundaries of t h i s r e s e r v o i r . 

14 Q. Could you o b t a i n a c o n t r o l p o i n t by d r i l l i n g 

15 across t o Section 3 from your acreage i n Sections 2 or 

16 Sections 4? j 

17 A. From Section 4, yes. From Section 2, yes, j 

18 t h a t would be another data p o i n t . 1 

19 Q. And you i n d i c a t e d i t would be of b e n e f i t t o 

20 Cimarex t o prove up i t s acreage holdings t o the n o r t h end 

21 of t h i s p l a y by having a d d i t i o n a l data? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. How does -- do you know i f COG has any 

24 ownership i n t e r e s t i n the n o r t h e r n p a r t of the play? 

25 A. My landman says they don't have any ownership, 
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1 so I don't b e l i e v e they do. 

2 Q. So i t wouldn't b e n e f i t them t o prove up your 

3 acreage by d r i l l i n g these stand-up u n i t s ; i s t h a t 

4 correct? 

5 A. That would be c o r r e c t . Unless they have 

6 acreage t o the n o r t h of t h a t . 

7 Q. What i s your p o r o s i t y c u t o f f used i n drawing 

8 your isopach? 

9 A. The p o r o s i t y c u t o f f t h a t we use at my company 

10 i s a combination of 4 percent c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y from 

11 the neutron d e n s i t y curve. But we've als o used, i n 

12 a d d i t i o n t o t h a t , I b e l i e v e i t ' s a minus two on the 

13 d e n s i t y curve. 

14 Q. And you don't have any p o r o s i t y a v a i l a b l e on 

15 the Marshall & Winston mud log? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. So how do you a t t r i b u t e 15 f e e t of value t o 

18 t h a t w e l l on your isopach? I s t h a t what we c a l l geologic 

19 license? 

20 A. I t ' s j u s t an e x t r a p o l a t i o n . 

21 Q. I s i t e q u a l l y probable t h a t the zero contour 

22 l i n e i s l o c a t e d t o the south of where you've drawn i t ? 

23 A. Yes, i t is.. 

24 Q. We t a l k e d b r i e f l y about your contours . You ' re 

25 showing even on your map the t h i c k e s t p a r t o f the 
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1 r e s e r v o i r i s l o c a t e d i n the south h a l f of Section 3? 

2 A. That's r i g h t . The r e s e r v o i r thickens t o the 

3 south. 

4 Q. And we t a l k e d b r i e f l y about your stand-up w e l l 

5 i n Section 18, t h a t Franklin? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t you had b e t t e r w e l l c o n t r o l 

8 down there? 

9 A. At the time we d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l , I believe we 

10 had d r i l l e d w e l l s i n Section 17, and so we d i d have a 

11 c o n t r o l p o i n t i n the n o r t h h a l f -- i n t h a t southwest p a r t 

12 of the n o r t h h a l f i n Section 17. So t h a t was a c o n t r o l 

13 p o i n t t h a t we were d r i l l i n g toward, yes. 

14 Q. And i s your lay-down w e l l i n Section 17 a good 

15 producer? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 MR. HALL: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k Mr. H a l l covered 

20 i t . No questions. 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Examiner? 

22 EXAMINATION 

23 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

24 Q. I f you're going t o get p o i n t s , do you guys --

25 on these w e l l s , are you going t o d r i l l p i l o t holes? 
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Yes. i 

2 Q. So you're going t o -- so you would have four 

3 wells logged across the top? \ 

4 A. Yes. I b e l i e v e they are a l l planned t o j 

5 include a p i l o t hole. 

6 Q. So you're going t o get p o i n t s t h e r e . That 

7 sounds good. But why not get a p o i n t by s t a r t i n g a 

8 couple of w e l l s i n the southwest q u a r t e r of 3 and d r i l l 

9 p i l o t holes there? j 

10 A. We have done that before. We've alternated \ 

11 p i l o t holes from opposite ends so t h a t we do have t h a t I 

12 c o n t r o l p o i n t . 

13 Q. That one w e l l , according t o t h i s isopach, i t 

14 looks l i k e you're g i v i n g i t about 13 f e e t ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

15 A. I don't t h i n k I put t h a t k i n d of a number on 

16 i t . 

17 Q- I mean on the Marshall & Winston w e l l ; i s t h a t 

18 r i g h t ? 

19 A. I don't know t h a t I ' d l a y my r u l e r on there. 

20 Q. What I mean i s , you d i d n ' t have a -- a l l you 

21 had was an i n d u c t i o n l o g , i s t h a t r i g h t , and a mud log? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. That's k i n d of a -- 1 

24 A. My p o i n t i s t h a t there i s no number there. So j 

25 I can move t h a t l i n e e i t h e r way. But I don't know t h a t 1 
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1 i t ' s a zero, but I don't know t h a t i t ' s not 10 or 12. I 

2 don't know t h a t . 

3 Q. How o l d i s t h a t well? 

4 A. I t was completed i n A p r i l of t h i s year. 

5 Q. Oh, i t ' s a brand new well? 

6 A. Yes, the Marshall & Winston w e l l . 

7 Q. And i t was d r i l l e d u nsuccessfully, but i t 

8 was -- they went ahead and d r i l l e d i t east/west. 

9 A. They d i d . 

10 Q. And do you t h i n k i f i t was d r i l l e d 

11 north/south, i t might have been a l i t t l e b e t t e r ? Was i t 

12 a f a i l u r e of the completion on i t ? 

13 A. I j u s t don't t h i n k they r e a l l y were i n the 

14 s e c t i o n as they d r i l l e d t h e i r l a t e r a l . 

15 Q. They d r i l l e d i t i n the wrong spot? 

16 A. They -- maybe. Well, obviously, they d r i l l e d 

17 a dry hole. 

18 Q. Any b a i l - o u t i n t e r v a l s here? These w e l l s are 

19 not Chesapeake's? 

2 0 A. I don't b e l i e v e we own the r i g h t s t o the 

21 Queen. I b e l i e v e t h a t there may be another i n t e r v a l t h a t 

22 we've been e v a l u a t i n g c a l l e d the San Andres. That i s 

23 another zone t h a t we encounter shows i n f r e q u e n t l y when 

24 we d r i l l out here. That i s a zone t h a t we've been 

25 e v a l u a t i n g a t e s t i n a c t u a l l y a l i t t l e f u r t h e r west of 
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1 here. As f a r as I know, there's no immediate t e s t i n 

2 t h i s area. 

3 Q. That wasn't a d e c i s i o n f a c t o r i n where t o 

4 d r i l l your v e r t i c a l ? 

5 A. No, i t was not. 

6 Q. When you draw these contour maps, as a 

7 g e o l o g i s t , you have some s o r t of r e g i o n a l theory t o use 

8 your c o n t r o l p o i n t s t o a c t u a l l y do the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , 

9 in s t e a d of j u s t l e t t i n g the computer obviously do i t ? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. I n t h i s area, what i s your theory? How d i d 

12 you decide t o --

13 A. Well, our o r i e n t a t i o n here i s r e g i o n a l . And 

14 what we t h i n k has happened here i s t h a t the u n i t s , as 

15 described e a r l i e r , were deposited, but there's been 

16 subsequent di a g e n e t i c a l t e r a t i o n s t o these. And the top 

17 has been mentioned, the a n h y d r i t i c dolomite. That's not 

18 a d e p o s i t i o n a l surface. That's a diag e n e t i c surface. 

19 And i t appears t o be very i r r e g u l a r , and i t appears t o be 

2 0 t h i n n i n g as you go t o the n o r t h . 

21 That i n t e r v a l t h a t ' s a f f e c t e d i s t h i n n i n g t o 

22 the n o r t h , where i f you go very much f u r t h e r , i t ' s gone. 

23 So i n other words, the anhy d r i t e has come down through 

24 t h i s lower Abo r e s e r v o i r i n t e r v a l and completely occluded 

25 a l l the p o r o s i t y and has created the pinch-out f o r t h i s 
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1 t r a c t . 

2 Q. So i t g r a d u a l l y pinches out somewhere toward 

3 the north? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. I guess one more question on t h a t . That w e l l 

6 t h a t was -- they decided not t o run the r a d i o a c t i v e logs 

7 i n t h i s w e l l f o r a reason. I t must have had some 

8 problems. 

9 A. They must have had some k i n d of a hole 

10 problem, mechanical problem or something l i k e t h a t , 

11 s t a b i l i t y of the hole. 

12 Q. S t a b i l i t y of the hole? But you're proposing a 

13 w e l l t o be d r i l l e d , i t looks l i k e about 900 f e e t 

14 southwest of t h e r e . And you don't t h i n k y o u ' l l have the 

15 same hole problems? 

16 A. I t h i n k there's a shale w i t h i n the upper p a r t 

17 of the Abo t h a t creates a l o t of hole problems and s t u f f 

18 l i k e t h a t . My company has found a way t o get around 

19 t h a t . I b e l i e v e they're using an oi l - b a s e mud t o d r i l l 

20 through t h a t i n t e r v a l t o prevent s w e l l i n g of the clays 

21 and shales and s t u f f l i k e t h a t . So we've been able t o 

22 s u c c e s s f u l l y d r i l l t h a t w i t h o u t any problem. 

23 EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

24 

25 
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1 EXAMINATION 

2 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: 

3 Q. Mr. Worthington, you t a l k e d about p i l o t holes. 

4 I t h i n k I've f i g u r e d i t out. Could you t e l l me e x a c t l y 

5 what you mean when you t a l k about these p i l o t holes? 

6 A. I t w i l l give you the d i r e c t i o n . I t w i l l guide 

7 you t o where you want t o be. So d r i l l v e r t i c a l l y down 

8 through the formation, run your e l e c t r i c logs i n the r e , 

9 and then you've been able t o i d e n t i f y your t a r g e t 

10 i n t e r v a l , and then you compare i t t o your t a r g e t at the 

11 end of your l a t e r a l a mile away. 

12 So a p i l o t hole, I guess, would be described 

13 as something t h a t ' s going t o guide your way. 

14 Q. So i t ' s j u s t a v e r t i c a l w e l l --

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. -- under your surface l o c a t i o n , and i t ' s not 

17 where you i n t e n d t o be a f t e r you k i c k o f f ? 

18 A. That's r i g h t , yeah. The landing p o i n t f o r 

19 your h o r i z o n t a l w e l l would be some 2- t o 500 f e e t away 

2 0 from t h a t v e r t i c a l p o i n t . 

21 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I have no 

22 f u r t h e r questions. Do you have anything else? 

23 MR. BRUCE: I have no f u r t h e r questions of 

24 t h i s witness. 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Thank you very much, 
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Mr. Worthington. 

2 Mr. Bruce, do you have another witness? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Yes, sir. \ 

4 EX7AMINER FESMIRE: Would you s t a t e your i 

5 name, please? 

6 MR. LAUTENSCHLEGER: Jason Lautenschleger. 

7 Jason w i l l s u f f i c e . 1 

8 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Yeah, except f o r the 

9 record, so you're going t o have t o s p e l l i t f o r us. 

10 MR. LAUTENSCHLEGER: 

11 L-a-u-t-e-n-s-c-h-l-e-g-e-r. j 

12 JASON LAUTENSCHLEGER 

13 Having been f i r s t d uly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

14 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. BRUCE: 

16 Q. You've already s t a t e d your name, ! 

17 Mr. Lautenschleger. Where do you reside? 

18 A. Midland, Texas. j 

19 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

20 A. Cimarex Energy as a r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

21 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

22 D i v i s i o n ? 

23 A. I have not. 

24 Q. Could you summarize your educational and 

25 employment background f o r the Examiners? j 
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1 A. I graduated w i t h a BS i n petroleum engineering 

2 from Colorado School of Mines, Northern Colorado. And I 

3 have been employed by Cimarex since 20 07. 

4 Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y -- and you 

5 are a r e s e r v o i r engineer? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a t Cimarex 

8 include t h i s p o r t i o n of Southeast New Mexico? 

9 A. Yes. That has been my focus. 

10 Q. This p a r t i c u l a r area? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender the 

13 witness as an expert r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I s there any objection? 

15 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

17 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Lautenschleger, are 

18 you a r e g i s t e r e d p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer? I'm assuming 

19 not, since you've only got three years out of co l l e g e . 

2 0 THE WITNESS: I have one year out of 

21 co l l e g e . 

22 EXAMINER FESMIRE: One year? 

23 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . I began working 

24 w i t h Cimarex w h i l e i n school. 

25 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Notwithstanding t h a t 
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1 there are no o b j e c t i o n s , w e ' l l accept your c r e d e n t i a l s . 

2 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Would you look at your f i r s t 

3 e x h i b i t and j u s t b r i e f l y i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiners? 

4 A. The f i r s t e x h i b i t i s a township map r e f l e c t i n g 

5 the lower Abo/Wolfcamp l o c a t i o n s t h a t I have included i n 

6 my subsequent graphs. 

7 Q. A l l of these have been d r i l l e d and completed; 

8 correct? 

9 A. No. Some of them are i n the process of being 

10 d r i l l e d , some of them are w a i t i n g on completion, and some 

11 of them are producing. 

12 Q. But these are -- so a c t i o n has been taken on 

13 d r i l l i n g these wells? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . These are not permits. These are 

15 a c t u a l -- l i k e something a f t e r spud. 

16 Q. Okay. Move on t o your next tab. What does 

17 t h a t r e f l e c t ? 

18 A. This i s a graph of Township 15 South, 30 East, 

19 of the lower Abo/Wolfcamp w e l l s shown on the 

2 0 aforementioned map, summarizing operator experience and 

21 who's done what here. 

22 And what t h i s r e f l e c t s i s t h a t Cimarex has 

23 d r i l l e d and i s o p e r a t i n g or producing 20 w e l l s , and t h i s 

24 i s a much g r e a t e r f i g u r e than the competition. 

25 Q. Mr. Tresner t e s t i f i e d about the AFE. I t was 
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1 about 3.8 or $3.9 m i l l i o n , i f I r e c a l l . But from your 

2 experience, has Cimarex been d r i l l i n g w e l l s i n l i n e w i t h 

3 t h a t general cost p r o j e c t i o n ? 

4 A. Yes. Cost, as we a l l know, has r i s e n r e c e n t l y 

5 and f a i r l y r a p i d l y . I f you look at any given time i n the 

6 l a s t year t h a t I've been working t h i s t r e n d , our costs 

7 have been less than our competitors. 

8 Q. And go t o your f i n a l tab. What does t h i s 

9 r e f l e c t ? 

10 A. This i s a p l o t of comparing the w e l l s t h a t I 

11 had production a v a i l a b l e f o r . Most of these are 

12 east/west l a t e r a l s . One, the F r a n k l i n 18-4, the 

13 green-colored one, i s the only north/south l a t e r a l i n the 

14 township. And the red on the very top i s the average of 

15 the east/west l a t e r a l s . 

16 Q. Through the 35th day of production? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . I t ' s j u s t a cumulative value. 

18 Q. Now, what i s the average f o r the east/west 

19 w e l l s , the lay-down wells? 

20 A. The average cumulative value f o r the east/west 

21 w e l l s I have a v a i l a b l e i s 11,824 b a r r e l s on the 35th day 

22 of prod u c t i o n . 

23 Q. Then you have the green l i n e , the F r a n k l i n 

24 18-4H. What i s that? 

25 A. That number i s 15,261 b a r r e l s . 
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1 Q. How much gre a t e r i s t h a t than the average 

2 east/west well? 

3 A. Percent d i f f e r e n c e i s 29 percent greater. 

4 Q. The F r a n k l i n 18-4H i s your f i r s t v e r t i c a l w e l l 

5 i n t h i s area? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. There's another w e l l p e r m i t t e d t o the west of 

8 t h a t F r a n k l i n 18-4, the F r a n k l i n 18-3. What i s the 

9 sta t u s of t h a t well? 

10 A. I t i s t o be d r i l l e d as soon as the r i g i s 

11 a v a i l a b l e , and t h a t w i l l be about three weeks. 

12 Q. So i n l o o k i n g at t h i s , the f i r s t v e r t i c a l w e l l 

13 performed above average f o r the lay-down wells? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. And the second page of t h i s tab, i s t h a t 

16 simply the backup data f o r your p l a t ? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . I t shows the numbers v a r y i n g i n 

18 f i v e - d a y increments, the cumulative values, as w e l l . 

19 Q. How many w e l l s has Cimarex d r i l l e d t h i s year 

2 0 i n t h i s township, roughly? 

21 A. Maybe 10 would be an approximation. 

22 Q. And what was -- I meant t o ask t h i s before. 

23 What was the i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l on the F r a n k l i n 18-4 well? 

24 A. The w e l l IP'd a t approximately 750 b a r r e l s a 

25 day. 
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Q. That's b e t t e r than average, too, i s n ' t i t -- ] 

2 A. Yes, s i r . j 

3 Q. -- the p o t e n t i a l on the well? j 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. Now, I mean, i t ' s apparent t h a t the large ! 

6 m a j o r i t y of w e l l s i n t h i s township have been d r i l l e d as i 

7 lay-down u n i t s . j 

8 A. Yes. ! 

9 Q. Does t h a t n e c e s s a r i l y mean i t ' s the best t h i n g 

10 t o do? 

11 A. No. j 

12 Q. And I t h i n k you were here l i s t e n i n g t o j 

13 Mr. Gawloski t e s t i f y , were you not? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. I t h i n k h i s statement was t h a t the i n i t i a l j 

16 w e l l s i n t h i s township were d r i l l e d as lay-down, and j 

17 people j u s t kept doing t h a t . 

18 A. Sure. I f you d r i l l a east/west l a t e r a l i n a 

19 s e c t i o n , t h a t sets up the whole s e c t i o n t o be d r i l l e d j 

20 east/west. 

21 Q. So once one w e l l i s d r i l l e d i n a se c t i o n , t h a t 

22 sets up the other three w e l l s i n the section? j 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. I n your op i n i o n , would i t be b e t t e r t o t e s t 1 

25 Section 3 w i t h stand-up wells? 
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A. Yes. 1 
i 

2 I 
Q. Do the r e s u l t s from your f i r s t stand-up w e l l j 

3 i n t h i s township support that? J 
i 

4 A. Yes, i t does. 

5 Q. Were the e x h i b i t s under Tabs 10, 11 and 12 | 

6 
i 

prepared by you or under your supervision? i 

7 A. Yes. I 

8 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of Cimarex's 1 

9 a p p l i c a t i o n s i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

10 pr e v e n t i o n of waste? I 

11 A. Yes. j 

12 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the 1 

13 admission of Tabs 10 through 12. j 

14 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . j 

15 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . j 

16 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Tab 10 through 12 are j 

17 admitted i n t o the record. 

18 (Cimarex Tabs 10 through 12 of E x h i b i t 1 were admitted.) j 

19 MR. BRUCE: Pass the witness. 

20 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

21 CROS S-EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. HALL: j 

23 Q. Can you t e l l us what your reference t o the j 

24 F r a n k l i n 18-4H, what's the c u r r e n t production r a t e on 

25 that? 
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1 A. I t i s over 300. 

2 Q. I t has declined? 

3 A. They always do. 

4 Q. I s Cimarex producing i t s east/west w e l l s i n a 

5 manner t h a t 1s any d i f f e r e n t from i t s production of the 

6 north/south wells? 

7 A. No. The way we produce our w e l l s i s 

8 determined by the p r o d u c t i v i t y of the w e l l a t a given 

9 time. I n i t i a l l y , we produced i t one way. And as the 

10 r e s e r v o i r pressure declines i n the l o c a l i z e d r e g i o n 

11 around t h a t wellbore, then we produce i t a d i f f e r e n t way. 

12 Q. T e l l us how you produce them. Are they on a 

13 pump? 

14 A. I n i t i a l l y -- they're a l l on a pump, yes. 

15 I n i t i a l l y , we are completing them and producing them on 

16 the ESP, e l e c t r i c a l submersible pump. This allows us t o 

17 get g r e a t e r draw down and o b t a i n higher i n i t i a l r a t e s . 

18 Then when the pressure i s drawn down, we then change t o a 

19 beam pump, which i s o p e r a t i o n a l l y less expensive, and we 

20 continue t o produce the w e l l t h a t way. I t ' s a matter of 

21 achieving the r a t e t h a t the r e s e r v o i r i s w i l l i n g t o give 

22 up w i t h a pump i n f l o w / o u t f l o w performance. 

23 Q. From a r e s e r v o i r engineering perspective, i s 

24 there any reason why you cannot develop the n o r t h h a l f of 

25 Section 3 w i t h lay-down u n i t s ? 
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1 A. No. 

2 Q. Your recommendation i n response t o Mr. Bruce's 

3 question t h a t Section 3 be developed w i t h stand-up u n i t s , 

4 i s based on not h i n g more than s t a t i s t i c a l a n a l y s i s ; i s 

5 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

6 A. No, t h a t ' s not c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Cimarex i s not contending, i s i t , t h a t COG i s 

8 not a competent operator i n the Abo/Wolfcamp? 

9 A. I'm a f r a i d I'm not sure -- you're asking me i f 

10 we b e l i e v e they're a competent operator? 

11 Q. Yes. 

12 A. I b e l i e v e they're a competent operator. 

13 However, we are more experienced i n the region and have 

14 shown t o be able t o d r i l l and complete these w e l l s more 

15 e f f e c t i v e l y , less expensively, and o b t a i n b e t t e r r e s u l t s . 

16 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . Pass the 

17 witness. 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

19 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 0 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

21 Q. Have you performed any produc t i o n curves f o r 

22 your F r a n k l i n 4-H well? 

23 A. Performed prod u c t i o n curves? 

24 Q. Have you made a pro d u c t i o n curve? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. I t looks t o me l i k e you d i d n ' t provide i t . 

2 Does i t look any d i f f e r e n t than your east/west w e l l s i n 

3 the area? 

4 A. No. They d e c l i n e s i m i l a r l y , i f t h a t ' s what 

5 you're asking. The data i s a c t u a l l y demonstrated on the 

6 l a s t e x h i b i t I provided n u m e r i c a l l y . 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. That's a l l the 

8 questions I have. 

9 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Examiner? 

10 EXAMINATION 

11 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

12 Q. Do you put these on automation, the w e l l s out 

13 there? Or do you j u s t have pumpers going on? 

14 A. We have pumpers checking these t h i n g s . I 

15 don't know i f they're automated. I be l i e v e they're not. 

16 Q. But there's p l e n t y of e l e c t r i c i t y out there? 

17 A. Yeah. The e n t i r e township i s e l e c t r i f i e d . 

18 That's one of the f i r s t t h i n g s t h a t ' s done a f t e r the w e l l 

19 i s d r i l l e d . 

2 0 Q. Are those ESPs, nowadays, v a r i a b l e speed 

21 drives? 

22 A. Yes, we include v a r i a b l e speed d r i v e s . That 

23 way we can optimize the l i f e of the pumps. 

24 Q. And you can't put them i n t o the curve, can 

25 you? Or i t ' s not advisable? 
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1 A. Not advisable, no. 

2 Q. What i s the radius of your b u i l d on the -- i s 

3 i t 300 feet? 

4 A. That's approximately the v e r t i c a l s e c t i o n 

5 t h a t ' s accumulated over --we use short radius. 

6 Q. Considered short radius? 

7 A. Yeah. 

8 Q. What's the g r a v i t y of the w e l l out there? I 

9 mean, i s i t --

10 A. The API? 

11 Q. I s i t a vast d i f f e r e n c e between the -- i s i t 

12 easy t o separate from the water? 

13 A. Yes. We don't have problems w i t h t h i s . 

14 Q. No problems? 

15 A. Yes. I don't know the precise number. 

16 Q. Do you get i n v o l v e d i n the completions? 

17 A. I do. I am on s i t e . 

18 Q. You witness the f r a c jobs? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. Design them? 

21 A. (Witness nods head.) 

22 Q. You and the s e r v i c e companies design the f r a c 

23 jobs? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. Can you - - I guess f o r my - - can you t e l l us 
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1 about i t a l i t t l e b i t ? 

2 A. Sure. Our completion co n s i s t s of -- we've ! 

3 done i t a number of d i f f e r e n t ways. We've t e s t e d i 

4 p e r f o r a t i o n s , p e r f and plug operations, and we t e s t e d 

5 open hole packers. The predominant method of choice has | 

6 been open hole packer systems and we've gone t h a t route. I 

7 That's a plumbing d i f f e r e n c e . 

8 Now, the f l u i d system t h a t ' s pumped has been j 

9 mostly the same. I n i t i a l l y , i n the f i e l d , you might c a l l 

10 i t an a c i d f r a c , where you go i n and do an a c i d spot of | 

11 about 5,000 gall o n s of 15 percent NEFE HCL, and then j 

12 f l u s h t h a t away, and then come i n w i t h a c r o s s - l i n k e d j 

13 a c i d , something equivalent t o BJ deep spot, and then pump j 

14 t h a t f r a c w i t h t h a t . j 

15 I n the development of the e n t i r e Abo tre n d , j 

16 operators began using -- s t a r t e d pumping a large amount ! 

17 of sand and prop i t and began seeing a b e n e f i t from t h a t . ; 

18 And we also began doing that over a year ago. [ 

19 And so the f r a c has changed over t o a f r a c ! 

20 t h a t ' s very s i m i l a r , where we pump a 5,000 g a l l o n -- t h i s 

21 i s per stage -- 5,000 g a l l o n s of 15 percent NEFE aci d , j 

22 and then we sweep t h a t away and come i n w i t h another 

23 5,000 ga l l o n s of the BJ deep spot or equiva l e n t , and | 

24 sweep t h a t away. And then we come i n and we f r a c the 

25 w e l l w i t h a 17-pound c r o s s - l i n k bore 8 system as our pad, 
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1 and we s t i c k w i t h t h a t , and we pump a 20-40 prop i n , and 

2 we t a i l i n w i t h r e s i n coat t o prevent sand flowback. 

3 EXAMINER FESMIRE: See, t h i n g s haven't 

4 changed t h a t much. 

5 THE WITNESS: They have. They've gone 

6 from 35,000 pounds t o t a l i n a w e l l t o two m i l l i o n pounds 

7 of p r o f i t . 

8 Q. (By Examiner Jones) Two m i l l i o n ? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. You have t o t r u c k t h a t i n w i t h a t r a i n . 

11 A. Yeah. 

12 Q. How many pounds per g a l l o n do you get, the 

13 maximum concentration? 

14 A. Maximum co n c e n t r a t i o n has been up t o fou r 

15 pounds per g a l l o n . 

16 Q. How many stages? 

17 A. We've been using nine. We t r i e d one w i t h 

18 10 --

19 Q. Ten packers? 

2 0 A. -- several have been w i t h 13. Yes, s i r . 

21 Q. Then you go d r i l l i t a l l out and --

22 A. Yes. We d r i l l out the p o r t s and r e t u r n the 

23 l i n e r system back t o a f u l l bore. 

24 Q. That r e s i n coat doesn't come back at a l l ? I 

25 mean, i t helps your sand not t o come back? 
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1 A. Sure. | 

2 Q. So you can a c t u a l l y run i n w i t h a submersible J 

3 pump and not get i t eaten up by the sand? j 

4 A. I had one f a i l u r e w i t h an ESP, and t h a t was on 

5 a w e l l t h a t we -- we were not able t o push our c o i l j 

6 t u b i n g out a l l the way. This was before we had the p o r t s 

7 t h a t we could d r i l l out. j 

8 The company we work w i t h f o r open hole packer 

9 systems and s t u f f , they have switched from using a P110 j 

10 p o r t t o a d u c k - t a i l hardened seat, t o where we're now j 

11 able t o d r i l l the 64 wellbore, and we haven't had any j 

12 t r o u b l e c l e a n i n g out the l a t e r a l s , and we haven't had j 

13 sand c o l l e c t i o n issues. j 

14 Q. Do you pump your f r a c down a casing, or i s i t 

15 down a work s t r i n g ? j 

16 A. The v e r t i c a l p a r t of the w e l l i s down 

17 seven-inch P110, and the h o r i z o n t a l i s down fou r and a 

18 h a l f inch, the l i n e r system. j 

19 Q. Okay. So you don't have a dead s t r i n g or 

20 anything t o measure your bottomhole pressures? j 

21 A. No. Those are c a l c u l a t e d bottomhole pressures 

22 from surface pressures. j 

23 Q. I guess what I'm -- the p a r t we're t a l k i n g j 

24 about here i s , the pressures t h a t you get on your f r a c i 

25 jobs, do you n o t i c e any d i f f e r e n c e between stand-up w e l l s 
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1 and the lay-down wells? I n other words, as f a r as the 

2 p o r o s i t y around the wellbore. 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. You don't n o t i c e any? 

5 A. I haven't n o t i c e d any d i f f e r e n c e . I've only 

6 had one w e l l . So, you know, my numbers are -- I have a 

7 l o t of data p o i n t s here and j u s t a few here. That might 

8 be tough t o determine. I haven't observed a decrease. 

9 Q. So you don't have f a i l u r e s of f r a c s when you 

10 d r i l l c e r t a i n d i r e c t i o n s ? Your f r a c jobs go o f f okay? 

11 A. We have screened out on east/west l a t e r a l s , 

12 and we have screened out stages on the north/south 

13 l a t e r a l . Some of our best w e l l s have screened out on a 

14 given stage. 

15 Q. So you have no r e a l o p i n i o n on the stress 

16 d i r e c t i o n out here? 

17 A. I have an op i n i o n . 

18 Q. What do you th i n k ? 

19 A. Well, there's a d d i t i o n a l data besides the 

20 s t a t i s t i c s of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n presented, and t h a t would 

21 lead me t o b e l i e v e t h a t the o r i e n t a t i o n of the f r a c t u r e s 

22 i s g r e a t e r than a n o r t h e a s t l y -- gre a t e r than an 045 

23 o r i e n t a t i o n and more i n t o an east/west o r i e n t a t i o n . 

24 Q. More toward northeast/southwest? 

2 5 A. More than 45 degrees. 
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A l i t t l e more? j 

2 A. Yes. M a r g i n a l l y more. j 

3 Q. So i t k i n d of mimics your s t r u c t u r e mound a 

4 l i t t l e b i t ? | 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. The dip? 1 

7 A. Unrelated i n my o p i n i o n , but, yes. j 

8 EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. That's a l l I j 

9 have. 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I do have a couple of 

11 questions. 

12 EXAMINATION 

13 BY EXAMINER FESMIRE: j 

14 Cl­ The f i r s t one, though, i s s o r t of a r e l a t e d j 

15 one t h a t W i l l asked you. Where do you hang those ESPs? 

16 Are they up above the beginning of the radius, or are 

17 they r i g h t down -- tucked in? 

18 A. Well, they're as low as we can get them. | 

19 Q- So you tuck them i n u n t i l they don't go any 

20 f a r t h e r ? 

21 A. Yes. We don't jam then i n the hole, but put 

22 them as you know, c a l c u l a t e the depth t h a t the curve 

23 has landed and put them th e r e . 

24 Q. Can I t a l k a minute about EURs? Have you done 

25 any work, other than the average -- using the average t o 
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1 get an EUR on some of these wells? 

2 A. Yes. I have EURs f o r w e l l s i n the e n t i r e 

3 tr e n d , not a v a i l a b l e w i t h me today, but I have done t h a t 
4 work and a n a l y s i s . 

5 Q. Could you t e l l me what s o r t of range we're 

6 lo o k i n g at? 

7 A. An average -- l e t me preface t h i s . I n the 

8 Caprock, i f you look a t an e n t i r e d i s t r i b u t i o n of the Abo 

9 tre n d , i n the Caprock we f i n d -- i t ' s Township 15 South, 

10 31 East -- the w e l l s are on the upper end of t h a t 

11 d i s t r i b u t i o n . So an average i n Caprock i s over 300. I t 

12 ranges between 300 and. 350. 

13 Q. Are we t a l k i n g h o r i z o n t a l wells? 

14 A. Yes, s i r , the h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s . 

15 Q. They have t o be r e - f r a c ' d d u r i n g t h e i r 

16 l i f e t i m e ? 

17 A. No. This i s determined from de c l i n e curve 

18 a n a l y s i s , c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i v i t y . 

19 Q. Given the Section 3 l o c a t i o n s , do you have an 

2 0 o p i n i o n of what the EUR would be on the Chesapeake 

21 w e l l -- I mean, the Concho w e l l s running east/west? 

22 A. I t i s my o p i n i o n t h a t I have no t e c h n i c a l 

23 basis t o j u s t i f y a d i f f e r e n c e between any given 40 i n 

24 t h a t s e c t i o n . As you've seen, the maps vary. You have 

25 t o look a t what the maps are drawn from. And t o 
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1 determine a d i f f e r e n c e , you would have t o assign i t --

2 give i t some basis -- and the only p o i n t of c o n t r o l i s 

3 the Wasp i n the next s e c t i o n . So I can't d e l i n e a t e a 

4 given 4 0 from another. 

5 Q. So i t ' s your testimony t h a t we'd probably get 

6 the same per w e l l EUR when we d r i l l n orth/south or 

7 east/west? 

8 A. You may a c t u a l l y o b t a i n more, i f a f r a c t u r e 

9 o r i e n t a t i o n i s more orthogonal t o a north/south w e l l . 

10 Q. So I guess i t ' s your testimony t h a t by only 

11 d r i l l i n g two east/west w e l l s , we would be l e a v i n g 

12 reserves i n the ground? 

13 A. I f you only d r i l l e d two versus the f o u r , yes, 

14 you would be abandoning the reserves. 

15 Q. Do you have an op i n i o n as t o the amount of 

16 reserves we would be leaving? 

17 A. That o p i n i o n would be based on averages and 

18 the one data p o i n t i n Section 2. I couldn't e x t r a p o l a t e 

19 t h a t . A f t e r the w e l l s are d r i l l e d , I can p i n p o i n t i t . 

20 One of the advantages t o north/south l a t e r a l s 

21 t h a t Cimarex i s proposing i s t h a t you have your data 

22 p o i n t at the s t a r t of your l a t e r a l , you have a data p o i n t 

23 at the end of your l a t e r a l . And, you know, there's a l o t 

24 of t h i n g s going on i n between there, but at l e a s t I have 

25 two data p o i n t s , r a t h e r than one, f o r t h a t p r o r a t i o n 
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1 u n i t . That helps me i n terms of booking accuracy and 

2 f i t t i n g i t v o l u m e t r i c a l l y and f o r the SCC purposes. 

3 Q. The EURs you're t a l k i n g about, what k i n d of 

4 p r o j e c t e d l i f e are you expecting on these w e l l s t o get 

5 those 300 plus EURs? 

6 A. They're 40, 60 years, i n t h a t range. The 

7 w e l l s f l a t t e n out considerably over t h e i r l i f e t i m e . They 

8 s t a r t high and d e c l i n e r a p i d l y and f l a t t e n out. A number 

9 t o k i n d of put on t h a t might be 100 b a r r e l s a day. 

10 Q. They f l a t t e n out at 100 b a r r e l s per day? 

11 A. They don't stay p e r f e c t l y f l a t , but they --

12 the percent d e c l i n e i s g r e a t l y reduced. 

13 Q. At about 100 b a r r e l s per day? 

14 A. Some are higher, some are lower, yes. 

15 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r 

16 questions. Mr. Bruce? 

17 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

18 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

19 MR. HALL: One question. 

2 0 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. HALL: 

22 Q. You i n d i c a t e d you have no t e c h n i c a l bas is t o 

23 a t t r i b u t e more reserves t o any p a r t i c u l a r 40-acre t r a c t 

24 than another i n Sec t ion 3; i s t h a t accurate? 

25 A. Tha t ' s accura te . 
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1 Q. Does t h a t mean t h a t you d i d not look at the 

2 geologic maps? 

3 A. No. I looked at the geologic maps, but I also 

4 looked at what those geologic maps are based on, and 

5 they're based on one data p o i n t of c o n t r o l and another 

6 questionable data p o i n t of c o n t r o l . We're i n f e r r i n g t h a t 

7 i t ' s t h i n n i n g , but i t could be t h i c k e n i n g . You don't 

8 know u n t i l you d r i l l i t . We are c u r r e n t l y shooting 

9 seismic t o help de f i n e t h a t edge. 

10 Q. So you l i s t e n e d t o Mr. Worthington t e s t i f y 

11 today? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. And you would agree w i t h him t h a t i t ' s e q u a l l y 

14 probable t h a t the n o r t h h a l f of Section 3 i s not 

15 productive? 

16 MR. BRUCE: I would o b j e c t . I don't 

17 b e l i e v e t h a t was Mr. Worthington's testimony. I t h i n k he 

18 t e s t i f i e d t h a t the zero l i n e might be a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t 

19 than he --

2 0 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I t h i n k the Examiners 

21 w i l l have a copy. 

22 MR. HALL: Let me r e s t a t e t h a t . 

23 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Do you be l i e v e t h a t i t ' s 

24 e q u a l l y probable t h a t the zero contour l i n e on the 

25 isopach could be lo c a t e d e i t h e r n o r t h or south of where 
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1 i t ' s drawn on Mr. Worthington 1s map? 

2 A. I t could be equa l l y . 

3 Q. So you don't disagree? 

4 A. No. 

5 MR. HALL: That's a l l I have. 

6 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No more questions. 

8 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Anything else? 

9 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . That's my case. 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: I assume nobody wants 

11 t o give a c l o s i n g statement? 

12 MR. BRUCE: I t h i n k i t ' s p r e t t y apparent 

13 where we're going. 

14 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Okay. We w i l l take 

15 these three cases under -- oh, Mr. Hall? 

16 MR. HALL: While we're s t i l l here, l e t me 

17 move the admission of COG E x h i b i t 18, which i s the 

18 instrument t h a t ' s recorded i n Book 605, page 851, i n 

19 Chaves or Eddy County. I'm not sure which. 

2 0 MR. BRUCE: Aren't there two recorded 

21 instruments? 

2 2 MR. HALL: I t ' s a lso the assignment t h a t ' s 

23 recorded a t 605, page 848, as w e l l . Both comprise 

24 E x h i b i t 18. 

25 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 
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EXAMINER FESMIRE: E x h i b i t 18 w i l l be i 

2 admitted. And W i l l reminds me t h a t we w i l l not take i t 

3 under advisement. We w i l l continue i t t o the September 

4 2nd D i v i s i o n hearing date and take i t up again then. 

5 You've i n d i c a t e d t h a t the a d d i t i o n a l evidence t h a t you're 

6 wanting t o present w i l l be a v a i l a b l e t o the D i v i s i o n 

7 when? 

8 (COG E x h i b i t 18 was admitted.) 

9 MR. HALL: That remains t o be seen. 

10 EXAMINER FESMIRE: You want t o leave i t 

11 open u n t i l September 2nd? 

12 MR. HALL: We w i l l know, I t h i n k , i n 

13 advance of September 2nd. 

14 MR. BRUCE: I f we do, we can p r e - f i l e i t . 

15 But at t h i s p o i n t , we don't see any need f o r a d d i t i o n a l 

16 l i v e testimony. 

17 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Why don't we put a 

18 l i m i t on i t , August 15th, so we can look a t i t before j 

19 the hearing. August 15th, I don't even know i f i t ' s a 

20 weekday, but i t ' s the weekday on August 15th or 

21 immediately -- the f i r s t workday immediately preceding 

22 August 15th. 

23 MR. BRUCE: The 15th i s a Sunday. 

24 EXAMINER FESMIRE: So i t w i l l be the 16th. 

25 I s there anything else before the Hearing Examiners 
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1 today? 

2 MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

3 EXAMINER FESMIRE: Thank you a l l . We w i l l 

4 a d j o u r n . 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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23 

24 

25 
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